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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of China
Healthwise Holdings Limited (the “Company”] and its subsidiaries
(together the "Group”), | present to you the annual results of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is Unit
1209, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong and the telephone and facsimile numbers of the

Company are (852) 2268 8248 and (852) 2548 5575.

RESULTS

The Board announced on 2 December 2019 that the financial year end
date of the Group had been changed from 31 March to 31 December.

The above change was fo align with the financial year end date of the
Company'’s substantial shareholder which have a significant influence
over the Company and whose accounts are fo be closed at the financial
year end dafe of 31 December. The Board considers that this change
will minimise the resources, such as audit fee, applied for the
preparation of the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group arising from the difference in the financial year end dates of the
Company and ifs above mentioned substantial shareholder.

The Company hereby announces its annual results for the year ended
31 December 2020 (the "Reporting Year” or “FY20"). For the Reporting
Year, the Group's turnover from continuing operation increased by
approximately (“approx.”) 28% to approx. HK$138 million, compared
with approx. HK$108 million for the nine months ended 31 December
2019 (the "FP19" or “Corresponding Period”).

Gross profit margin from continuing operations for the Reporting Year
was approx. 44% compared to approx. 46% in the Corresponding
Period. Overall, loss attributable to owners of the Company was
approx. HK$25 million compared with HK$124 million in the
Corresponding Period. The Directors do not recommend the payment of
any dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (FP19: Nil).
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Chairman’s Statement
EEHE

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Reporting Year, revenue from confinuing operation increased
due to (1) the increase in revenue from the Chinese health product
segment from HK$89 million in FP19 to HK$11
Reporting Year; and (2) the increase in revenue from the money lending
segment from HK$21 million in FP19 to HK$30 million in the Reporting
Year.

2 million in the

The Group recorded a decrease in loss for the year ended 31
December 2020 as compared fo the nine months ended 31 December
2019. The decrease in loss was mainly due fo (i) decrease in fair value
loss on financial instruments from HK$58 million in FP19 to HK$5
million in the Reporting Year; and (i) gain on disposal of subsidiaries
engaged in the OBM Toys business of HK$46 million.

Chinese Health Products

Chinese health products business engaged in the sales of Chinese and
other pharmaceutical products, health products, ginseng and dried
seafood products to wholesaler and retailer. Nam Pei Hong Sum Yung
Drugs Company Llimited, one of our subsidiaries, engages in the
business of trading and refail of “Sum Yung” (2E) and dried seafood
products since 1977 and the brand name of “Nam Pei Hong" (F1£1T)
is highly recognised in Hong Kong and Southern Mainland China.

During the Reporting Year, this segment had contributed revenue of
approx. HK$112 million (FP19: HK$89 million) and segment loss of
appProx. HK$1 million inc|uding the impairment losses of non-current
assets of approx. HK$3 million (FP19: HK$18 million (inc|uo|ing the
impairment losses of non-current assets of approx. HK$ 11
at 31 December 2020, there were 10 (31 December 2019
shops of Nam Pei Hong.

million)) As
1) retail
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Money Lending

During the Reporting Year, the Group’s money lending business
generated inferest income on loans amounting fo approximately HK$30
million (FP19: HK$21 million), and reported a segment loss (before
taxation) of approximately HK$33 million (FP19: segment profit (before
taxation) HK$2 million). The average monthly outstanding balance of
loans receivables was approximately HK$280 million (FP19: HK$247
million). During the Reporting Year, the Group granted new loans in the
aggregate principal amount of approximately HK$27 million to 3
customers and extended the final repayment dates of four existing loans
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$153 million. The Group's
customers made drawings in the aggregate principal amount of HK$27
million from the existing and new loans, and repaid HK$25 million to

the Group.

During the Reporting Year, a customer failed to repay a loan with
outstanding principal amounts of HK$64 million together with the
accrued interest thereon according to the loan agreement. The Group
has commenced legal proceedings against the customer to recover the
outstanding principal and interests thereon. Up to the date of this report,
the date of the first hearing is yef to be defermined.

At the end of the Reporting Year, the directors assessed the collectability
of the loans receivable. An allowance for expected credit losses on
loans receivable of approximately HK$59 million (31 December 2019:
HK$11 million) was recognised based on a valuation prepared by an
independent professional valuer. Such allowance for expected credit
losses was made in accordance with the impairment model of HKFRS @
Financial Instruments and had no effect on the Group's cashflow.
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Chairman’s Statement
EEHE

Investment in Financial Instruments

During the Reporting Year, the Group's investment in financial instruments
business generated dividend income and realised loss on sale of
financial instruments amounting to net loss of approximately HK$4
million (FP19: HK$2 million], and reported a segment loss of
approximately HK$ 11 million (FP19: HK$61 million) including (i) a loss
of approximately HK$5 million (FP19: HK$58 million) arising on
change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
and [ii) a realised loss of approximately HK$6 million (FP19: HK$3
million) by disposal of certain listed equities.

Movements in the listed equities held by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2020 and the nine months ended 31 December

2019 are as follows:

REESMIA
RBEFE  AEERESRTAXRBELRE
WARHESRTAELCDERER  BIRFHE

MR BEET(—NAYEBRSE: —BEET)
EEFHBEA—T a8 T(— M KB
B AT—B&8ET)  BRIBRATFEFARR
ZEMEEZATEEDELEZEROTBER
FT(—NEEESE: ATN\B&S8ERL)  RijHE
ETLEmRAZEEREBERONBEBT(— LAY
WHE - =a&8ET) -

HE-Z-EFE+-_A=+—HILEEREEZ
TE-NF+_A=+—HILNEA KEBEAE
R ETmRAZEE T

Audited Audited
REX REZ
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
= —EFNF
+t=A=+—-R +t=A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT
At beginning of year/period F),/ 8110 138,581 228,022
Acquisifions YeiE 10,861 710
Loss arising on change in fair value NHEEFEE 2 EE (5,409) (58,094
Disposals e (36,334) (32,057)
At end of year/period FARER 107,699 138,581
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Details of certain significant Hong Kong listed equities held by the

Group at 31 December 2020 are as follows:

Chairman’s Statement

TERBBLMBRAFHBFNOT :

Fair value as
compared fo

EFRERE

R-ZZB-_TFT_A=1+—8 AEEFENE

Fair value loss

the consolidated recognised
Cost of Number of fofal assets of during the
shares af shares held of Fair value at the Group at year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020
R=B=%F REZE
+=A=1-H It 23
it St 2:3 REB-RE R-B-2E QAVEHEAZE +-A=t-A
TZB=+-BM tZA=t-B tZA=t-BH KREEAEZ LEEBRR
BBRA  REHRHHKE ATE 1.3 ZAVEFR
Name of Hong Kong listed equities Principal aciivifies HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EELTRAER TREH TER Tk TER TAR
IDG Energy Investment Limited [stock code: 650 Upstieam ol and gas business, ING liquefaction and
DCRRRERRRAR * (DG Energy exporfing, ING imporiing, processing ond sales,
Investment Limited] (B2 R%% : 650) and ING logisfics sevices, as well as relafed
energy invesiment fund management
FEERER  RICRAR(INGD)RICRER -
INGH#R - MT RHAERINGARIR -
IR R EESER 27,500 25,000 25,000 6% 250)
Yunfeng Financial Group Limited Provision of financial services, including securiies brokerage,
[stock code: 376) wealth management and invesiment, corporate finance
EUSREEFERDA (RO : 370) consulancy, ESOP (Employee Stock Ownership Plan)
administration, and investment research
REESRRE AEEFEL WEERRKE
PEREFARE BIBRBIEERRERE - 36,486 7,526 24,234 6% (2,634)
Huanxi Media Group Limited Media and entertainment related businesses, and
[stock code: 1003) provision of properly agency related services
BEBREEARAR" IREE IR IR S5 D IR R OB A5
[Huanxi Media Group Limited)
(KR < 1003) 25,093 16,860 23773 5% (1,517)
*ERES
FESERFEZRARAT —ToTFR 9
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Chairman’s Statement
EEHE

Details of certain significant Hong Kong listed equities held by the R-ZT—NAF+-F=+—H AEEFHHE

Group at 31 December 2019 are as follows: TEAEB LETRAFEBOT :
Fair value
Fair value as gain/loss)
compared fo recognised
the consolidated during the
Cost of Number of fofal assefs of nine months
shares ot shares held at Fair value ot the Group at ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
RZF-h% “E0F
TZA=t-B +zZA=+-H
RZE-NE  RIZ-NF  ROT-AWF ATEEASE NVEAEER
TZA=+-B +ZA=t-B +ZA=t-B GRKE4E ZRTE
BRGHRA  BEHRHEE HATE 2uE s/ (EE)
Name of Hong Kong listed equities Principal activities HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BELTREER E:334 TR T TR TR
IDG Energy Investment Limited [stock code: 650]  Upstream oil and gas business, ING liquefaction and
DG AERIZEBRAA * IDG Energy exporting, NG imporiing, processing and sales,
Investment Limited| (X355 : 650) and ING logistics services, as wel as invesiment
in energy-elated and other indusiry and business
LiFmRES  INGRICRHA
INGHER » T RHERINCHRRE -
NEREERIARREMITEREBIRE 44,000 40,000 40,400 7% (5,200]
Global Mastermind Capitol Limited Investment in listed and unlisted companies
[stock code: 905 in Hong Kong ond in the PRC
RRABREER AT *(Clobal Mastermind -~ HEREERFBAN LW RFELTAR
Capital Limited) (B {5 - 905) 87,975 195,560 17,595 3% [21,310]
Yunfeng Financial Group Limited Provision of financial services, including securities brokerage,
[stock code: 376) wealth management and invesiment, corporate finance
ERSBEEERAT(RANRS : 376) consultancy, ESOP [Employee Stock Ownership Plan)
administration, and investment research.
RECERY  AEEFEL VEERERRE
PRBELH  BIRRAAERRRERE 36,486 7,526 26,868 4% (8,880)

* EHBE
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The Group had made investments with a short to long ferm perspective
with the objective of making capital gain as well as income from
dividend. The Group invested in a diversified portfolio of listed equity
securities in various industries. The directors believe that the future
performance of the Hong Kong listed equities held by the Group is
largely affected by economic factors, investor sentiment, demand and
supply balance of an investee company's shares and fundamentals of
an investee company, such as investee company’s news, business
fundamentals and development, financial performance and future
prospects. Accordingly, the directors closely monitor the above factors,
particularly the fundamentals of each individual investee company in the
Group's equity portfolio, and proactively adjust the Group's equity
portfolio mix in order to improve its performance.

OBM Toys

Given the continuous loss-making position of the Own Brand
Manufacturing ("OBM") toys segment with net liabilities in recent
financial periods, and the uncertainties faced by the OBM toys business,
the Company has disposed of this segment on 30 October 2020. It is
considered that such disposal will enable the Group to improve its
financial position and eliminate any uncertainty arising from the OBM
toys business with an aim to stabilising the future financial performance
of the Group. Details of which are set out in the Company's

announcements dated 19 August 2020 and 30 October 2020.

PLANS AND PROSPECTS
Chinese Health Products

In view of the increasing awareness in health and the aging of
population in Hong Kong, demand for health care products, especially
Chinese medicine, “Sum Yung” ( 2 E )and dried seafood in Hong
Kong has grown sfeadily in recent years.

As a result of the global outbreak of COVID-19, the number of tourists
visiting Hong Kong has significantly reduced which negatively impact
the retail market of Hong Kong. At the same time, the various COVID-19
related restrictions on social distancing and cross-border activities
impacted the entire refail market. To take advantage of the shift to online
shopping due to COVID-19, the Group will continue to develop online
sales channels for our Chinese health products.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
EEHE

At this moment, the global pandemic is sfill ongoing but the arrival of
COVID-19 vaccines has brought hope for economic recovery.
Nevertheless, the Group will continue to invest in the health care
business and fo develop its refail business of “Sum Yung” (2 E ) dried
seafood products and other healthy food products in Hong Kong with
an aim fo broaden its revenue base especially to the youth generation
and middle class consumers. The Group expects the number of fourisfs
to Hong Kong will rebounce as soon as the situation in relation to the
COVID-19 becomes stable which will have a positive future impact on
the refail market of Hong Kong and the Group's performance on
Chinese health products.

Money Lending

Despite certain uncertainties in the global economy such as the
tightening of US-China trade relationship and the global outbreak of
COVID-19, the demand for money lending business remain stable
during the Reporting Year and the Group's loans receivables together
with accrued interest receivables decreased slightly to HK$223 million
(31 December 2019: HK$264 million). The Group expect the business
environment for money lending to be difficult given the current outbreak
of COVID-19 and the increase in unemployment rate because many
economic activities could not be carried out normally. The Group will be
more cautious by strengthening ifs credit policy and risk control policy.

Investment in financial instruments

The Group will closely monitor various factors such as global economy,
investment senfiment and fundamentals of investors and their future
prospects and protectively adjust our portfolio in order to improve our
performance. The Group will change our equity portfolio mix from fime
fo time and realise the equities held by the Group info cash as and
when appropriate.

Business Portfolio Management

The current business strategies of the Group with an aim to achieve the
best use of ifs resources and improve its overall performance and
portfolio diversification have been continuously evaluated. The Company
has been actively looking to diversify the revenue sources of the Group
in order fo creafe shareholders’ value through making investments and/
or acquiring business or projects that have promising outlooks and
prospects.

12 China Healthwise Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020
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GROUP RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's cash and bank balances were
approx. HK$35 million (31 December 2019: HK$55 million). The
Group's fotal borrowings and convertible loan notes were approx.
HK$20 million (31 December 2019: HK$19 million) and HK$86
million (31 December 2019: HK$110 million), respectively. Gearing
ratio, calculated as the total borrowings divided by shareholders’ equity
was approx. 36% as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019
39%). As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded tofal current
assets of approx. HK$289 million (31 December 2019: HK$545
million) and total current liabilities of approx. HK$50 million (31
December 2019: HK$264 million). The current ratio of the Group,
calculated by dividing the fofal current assets by the current liabilities,
was approx. 578% (31 December 2019: 206%). The Group recorded
a decrease in shareholders’ fund from approx. HK$327 million as at
31 December 2019 to a net asset position of approx. HK$296 million
as at 31 December 2020. The decrease was mainly due to shares
repurchased by the Company and the operating loss of the Group
during the Reporting Year.

EMPLOYEES
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approx. 11

and confract workers based in Hong Kong headquarters. The number of

0 employees

employees of the Group varies from time to time depending on
operation needs and they are remunerated based on industry practices.

APPRECIATION

In conclusion, | would like to sincerely thank my fellow Board members
and senior management, and all the employees for their contribution
and dedications to the Group, which enabled us to overcome the
challenges encountered during the Year. My appreciations go fo our
investors, customers, financiers and suppliers for their support to the
Group during the past year.

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman and Executive Director

29 March 2021

Chairman’s Statement
EEHE

SEHERRABES

R-Z-ZF+-_A=+—0 xEEZHEER

RITEFOR=THRESEL(CZE-NF+-A
=t+—B ATHA&ERL) - AEEZREENR

MBRERZEIINR-_TEET(ZE—NF
TZA=1t—H8: —THhBEEET)RN\TRES
i’%i(:::*hiJr*H*wL*E —R-TEE

L) R=FT-_TFE+_A=+—0 BEE&EL
R(NBEERUAERERAE)NREDZ

=tR(ZF— 71¢+ A=+—R:B5Z
=t - RZZF_TFF+_A=1+—8  K&H
ffﬁmébéfﬁ,ﬁ@@f@ BATLBEERL(=F

—NF+ZA=1+—8: ABETFRhE&ET) &

mBEREEANRATESL(ZE—NF+=A
=+—H: ZEASTEEEETL) - XEBE R

th(Muw@JﬁEi'fﬁ ARBREHE)ORA
DAttt/ \(ZE-NF+=-A=t—B:8
DZZBAERN)  AREZSEREEHA TN
FHtoA=1THYO=B=-TELESETRLE
—E-TEFE+ A=+ -HEEFENRRD
“EATARBEET - ZRA T EBHRBESF
EARRAEE RN RAEERGLLEBRME -

==

R-ZE-THE+_A=+—B XEEERD
—B-TREERAHNIAN ZEREBES-
AEBzEREHESERELEFTEMIARKIEHLE
B UWEREITRBEOIESIHH -

&l

RE AABHUREEFTAR SREEELE
BETITHASENERMEEA %’Ej}ﬁiﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁlﬁi

NHEENEERE - BUAROHE - RATELL
HeRREE FF BRESMEEBRHE - &
SRENBEFEHANEEOI

iR
ITEFHNTEE
2 —F=RA=+NH

PESAREERARAT —E_TER 13



Management Discussion and Analysis
TEEEMRRE S

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Reporting Year, the Group recorded an increase in revenue
from continuing operations for approx. 28% from approx. HK$108
million for the nine months ended 31 December 2019 to approx.
HK$ 138 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The increase
was due to (1) the increase in revenue from sales the Chinese health
product segment from HK$89 million in FP19 to HK$112 million in the
Reporting Year; and (2) the increase in revenue from the money lending
segment from HK$21 million in FP19 to HK$30 million in the Reporting
Year.

Cost of goods sold ("COGS’") from continuing operations increased by
approx. 33% compared fo FP19. The increase was attributable to the
corresponding increase in revenue as mentioned above during the
Reporting Year. The COGS from continuing operations were approx.
HK$77 million in FY20 compared with approx. HK$58 million in FP19.

The gross profit from continuing operations increased to approx. HK$6 1
million for the Reporting Year versus approx. HK$50 million in FP19.
Gross profit margin decreased to approx. 44% (FP19: 46%) for the
Reporting Year.

Other income, gains and |osses, net from continuing operations for the
year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to a gain of approx. HK$ 1
million (FP19: loss of HK$72 million). Other income, gains and losses,
net mainly included (1) fair value loss on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of HK$5 million (FP19: HK$58 million); (2)
government grants of HK$6 million (FP19: Nil); and (3) loss on disposal
of subsidiaries of HK$ 14 million in FP19.

Selling and distribution expenses from continuing operations for the year
ended 31 December 2020 decreased to approx. HK$30 million,
representing a slight decrease of approx. 3% against approx. HK$31
million in the Corresponding Period. Despite an addition of three
operating months in the Reporting Year comparing with FP19, the slight
decrease in selling and distribution expenses was mainly due to the
decrease in shop renfal expenses in the Reporting Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TEEEMRE S
Gross Profit Ratio Selling Expense/Revenue
EF% HEME WA

For the year ended 31 December 2020, for the period from  For the year ended 31 December 2020, for the period from 1
1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019 and for the year ended  April 2019 to 31 December 2019 and for the year ended 31
31 March 2019, 31 March 2018 and 31 /\/lorch 2017 March 2019, 31 March 2018 and 31 /\/lorch 2077

REBEE-F— Tfﬁ‘/’ A=+—HIFFE - 715527 REE-F_ZFF+ _A=1+—HIFE —NWEFMA
A—HEZE-ZF—NF+= ﬁ + Ei@?ﬁ?%&%&é —HE-FE-AFF+_A=1— Eltﬁﬁf%(&%téf%q N
—NF= ﬁ 1+—A- ~NFE=A=+—ARK=-F F=A=1+—H —F-NF==A=1+—HAR-_F—+F=
—tF=FA=1— Eitfl—"—/; A=+—HILFE

31 December 2020
L

31 December 2019 46% 31 December 2019

—2-nEt-A=t-A —®-RFt-A=t-A 2575
% 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 0% 6 12 18 2 3
General and Administrative expenses from continuing operations for the  HZEZZT_TF T -_H=+—HIEFE ' KEHF

year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to approx. HK$35 million, %‘“%ﬁ-‘é%%%ﬁzﬁ’] BEITBRERAOR=TAEES
resulting in an increase of approx. 13% as compared with the previous 7T * BERTEARIE ML B 5 2+ = (— N B E
period (FP19: HK$31 million). Despite an addition of three operating  f : =F—E&BIT) - @ERLE N — ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁ

months in the Reporting Year comparing with FP19, the general and [ @ RBEFEAFIE B A EHFZE - E—K
administrative expenses only increased 13% because of a slight RITHASZEABSZ+= " Jﬁ?.%ﬁﬁiﬁ%i&
decrease in the number of employee during the Reporting Year. NiE B ABRIPTEL

Finance costs from confinuing operations incurred mainly for convertible ¥ & FEAE AR B FHELE EHE R E KA

loan nofes and other borrowings during the Reporting Year was approx. T ZELBBRBREFREBEREMEE - B8

HK$ 19 million as compared with approx. HK$ 18 million in FP19. —ThE&8BT M- AVBERBENALD
—TN\B&BT-

Impairment loss under the expected credit loss model increased to  RI|MEFE - HEAEEEBBEIIET 2R EEE
approx. HK$49 million for the Reporting Year versus approx. HK$6  EELHMFHAEES T M—NFFERFEL L
million in FP19. The impairment loss mainly in relation to the loan BN EB&EBT - HEEIEFZHEWEREHA -
receivables was recognised based on a valuation prepared by an  J3IRIEE L B HERATEGHERER © BEEE
independent professional valuer. The increase in the impairment loss iﬂHIE%EEAiﬁiirW_%gﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁgg
was mainly due to a borrower failed to repay a loan with outstanding  RIBHEEEERZ RKEEASEAATHEEAT
principal amounts of HK$64 million together with the accrued interest K& EFHF & K’%.E%LTEZ%)EEF?ﬁﬁé A
thereon according fo the loan agreement in the Reporting Year. The LAUEBFTAREEARSERIE - BHABHEEES
Group has commenced legal proceedings against the borrower o 1BEE IRIBEE AV BRELEAFOREHMITA
recover the outstanding principal and interests thereon. Such allowance — AIREREEL - HASENRSRTETE -
for expected credit losses was made in accordance with the impairment

model of HKFRS @ Financial Instruments and had no effect on the

Group's cashflow.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
THBHRR A

All'in all, the Group recorded a loss attributable to shareholders of

approx. HK$25 million in the Reporting Year compared with approx.
HK$124 million in FP19.

General and administrative expenses/Revenue

—RRITHEX WA

For the year ended 31 December 2020, for the period from

] April 2019 to 31 December 2019 and for the year ended
1 March 2019, 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017

BEME  ARERBREFEESRERREERE
M_ThasERT MR- AMBHEIAL
—fE-THEEET -

Finance Costs/Revenue

BMERAE, WA

For the year ended 31 December 2020, for the period from 1
April 2019 to 31 December 2019 and for the year ended 31
March 2019, 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017

%Jééfyf S FF A= —HIFFE R-IZFE-NFN BE-_FT-_FTFf_A=+—HIFE R-ZZFE—NFIUA
A—HZ—ZF—NF+= H + EutHﬁFW&%tifY —HE=-ZF— iszvL H +—HIFHREAREE =T,
—NWF=A=+—H" —NF=ZA=+—HE= F=A=+—H" —NFZA=Z+—HAR=—ZF—F+F=
—tF=A=1+— Eutfﬁ/; A=+—HIFFE
31 December 2020 31 December 2020
g 0] Maren 20 18% _p LA 2017 2.0%
LS ;I

0% 10 20 30 40 0 3 6 9 12 15 18

RESULT OF DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Profit for the year from discontinued operation in FY20 amounted fo
HK$44 million, which represents (1) the results of the OBM toys segment
1 January 2020 to 30 October 2020, being the
date on which the companies in the OBM foys segment ceased to be
subsidiaries of the Company; and (2) gain on disposal of the OBM toys
segment of HK$46 million.

for the period from

GROUP RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2020, the non-current assefs increased approx.
170% to approx. HK$ 146 million compare with approx. HK$54
million in the previous year. The increase in non-current assefs was
mainly due fo certain current loan receivables as at 31 December 2019
had become non-current as at 31 December 2020 after extension of
such loan receivables.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Management placed much emphasis on inventory control and will
maintain a sufficient inventory level fo match future demand and to control
cost of sales. The decrease in inventories of approx. 30% compared fo
the Corresponding Period, value of inventories decrease from approx.
HK$69 million as at 31 December 2019 to apProx. HK$48 million as
at 31 December 2020 as a result of the disposal of the OBM toys
segment. Inventories tumnover days were 228 days compared with 258
days excluding the discontinued operations (89 days including the
discontinued operations) in the Corresponding Period.

Inventories

rE BEARE

31 December 2020
—®-®E+-A=+—8

31 December 2019

47,964

31 December 2020
—g-eE+-A=t+—8

31 December 2019

TEHBIWE S
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HEEBAANTAKXR) MAEEBEREIA
= AG N

Total Liabilities

137,987

“E-nEt=B=t-A 69,939 3 nEt=A=t-H Al
31 March 2019 31 March 2019
—B-hF=A=1-A 71748 —Z-NF=A=1+-AR 304,352
31 March 2018 31 March 2018
s nF=p=t-8 829 e ety 346,022
31 March 2017 31 March 2017
—2—tE=A=t-H 42100 e tF=A=t-8 217758
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The trade receivables decreased significantly of approx. 82% as at 31
December 2020 to approx. HK$7 million, compared with approx.
HK$39 million as at 31 December 2019 as a result of the disposal of
the OBM toys segment. Debtor tumnover days were 18 days in FY20
compared with 11 days excluding the discontinued operations (36 days
including the discontinued operations) in FP19. The Management
regularly evaluates the Group's customers, assesses their known financial
position and the credit risks.

Cash and bank balance as at 31 December 2020 were approx.
HK$35 million, compared with approx. HK$55 million as at 31
December 2019. The Group dealt with different revenue and
expenditure currencies during the Reporting Year such as HK$, US$ and
RMB.

Trade payables, other payable and accrued charges recorded a
significant decrease against the Corresponding Period. Trade payables,
other payables and accrued charges were approx. HK$20 million as at
31 December 2020 compared with approx. HK$118 million as at 31
December 2019 as a result of the disposal of the OBM foys segment.
The trade payables mainly consisted of payables relating to material
purchases and the trading products. During the Reporting Year, credifor
turnover days were 51 days compared with 68 days excluding the
discontinued operations (85 days including the discontinued operations)

in FP19.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TEEEMRRE S

Borrowings and convertible loan notes decreased fo approx. HK$106
million as at 31 December 2020 from approx. HK$129 million as af
31 December 2019, mainly attributable to the early redemption of part

BEERATRABRERREEE T -NAF+=-A
=t—BZH—EB-ThEEETRLE_FT—

f¢+ A=+—BzH—RBZEXB8&ET

of the convertible loan notes during the Reporting Year. EHRREFEREBELB,TERERER
FTEL »

Debtor Turnover Days Current Ratio

FEW R FCGEE RE LR

31 December 2020 n 31 December 2020 5.78

==¥Ft=A=—A —2-2F+=A=+-8 :

31 December 2019 36 31 December 2019 206
—E-AFtZA=t-A = hE+=g=+—8 d
31 March 2019 31 March 2019
—E-NF=ZA=+-R ‘2 —E-NF=A=t+-A 295
31 March 2018 30 31 March 2018 110
—E2-N\F=A=t+—-8 —ZE-N\F=A=t+-H .

31 March 2017
—Z—tE=A=t-A -

0 10 20 30 40 50

Days
RE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had fofal assets of HK$434
million which was financed by shareholders’ fund, payables and
borrowings. The Group mainly generated revenue and incurred costs in
HK$, US$ and RMB and did not have any related hedges for the year
ended 31 December 2020. No financial instrument was used for
hedging purpose. The Group adopted a prudent funding and treasury
policy and managed the fluctuation exposures of exchange rate and
inferest rate on specific transactions.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's borrowings were repayable on
demand or within one year. All borrowings were denominated in HK$
(bore interest at a fixed rate] and were pledged by a subsidiary’s
investment in Hong Kong listed equities with carrying amount of HK$69
million. As at 31 December 2020, the convertible loan notes issued by
the Company amounted to HK$86 million which bore interest at 6% per
annum and will be matured over one year upon the extension of the
maturity date for two years from 10 October 2020 to 10 October
2022 at their principal amount or can be converted into ordinary shares
of the Company at the holder's option at the fixed rate of HK$1.0 per
share of the outstanding principal.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TEEEMRE S

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded total current assets of M- ZTE-TF+—-A=+—H  KEBEEBLRH
BEREH_BNATNLEEETLRBEELR
WAETEBL - AEBZRBLE(UARBDEER
EREURBDABRABEFE)NSBN Z

approx. HK$289 million and total current liabilities of approx. HK$50
million. The current rafio of the Group, calculated by dividing the fofal
current assefs by total current liabilities, was approx. 578%. The Group
recorded a decrease in shareholders’ funds from approx. HK$327  HBEL+N\ - AEBEHEEREELH T NE
million as at 31 December 2019 1o approx. HK$296 million as at 31 Jr A=+—Bz#H=RB=FTta8ETRIZE
December 2020. The decrease was mainly due to shares repurchased —ZE-ZTHF+_A=+—HZH_EBLT BB
BIL e ZR O EERNMEFE AR AR R
1 RAEEFISFELEETE -

by the Company and the operating loss of the Group during the
Reporting Year.

Bank and other Borrowings

RITRHAMEER

Total Assets

EERE
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31 December 2020
Rb LR
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Tian T
Save as aforesaid or as otherwise disclosed herein, the Group did not & Fui Z el A EBRHEMSHWE LI R—F—

have any debt securities issued and outstanding, or authorised or
otherwise created but unissued, any term loans (secured, unsecured,
guaranteed or not), any other borrowings or indebtedness in the nature
of borrowing including bank overdrafts and liabilities under acceptances
[other than normal trade bills) or acceptance credits, any mortgages or
charges, or other material contingent liabilities or guarantee at the close
of business on 31 December 2020. Foreign currency amounts have
been translated at the approx. exchange rates prevailing at the close of
business on 31 December 2020.

The Group's operation relied upon the support from suppliers and
financial institutions. Facilities and credit terms are provided on the basis
of which certain financial and operational undertakings are complied
with. On behalf of the Board, the Directors are of the opinion that, after
taking info accounts the Group's internal resources and cash flow from
operations, the Group will have sufficient working capital fo safisfy its
present requirements for the next twelve months from the date of this
report in the absence of unforeseen circumstances.
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DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 19 August 2020, the Group disposed the enfire issued share
capital in its subsidiary, LC Global Holdings Corporation, at a
consideration of HK$ 1 resulting in a gain on disposal of approximately

HK$46 million. This disposal was completed on 30 October 2020.

On 27 October 2019, the Group disposed the entire issued share
capital in its subsidiary, Keytime Global limited, at a consideration of
HK$1 resulting in a loss on disposal of approximately HK$ 18 million.

On 26 September 2019, the Group disposed the entire issued share
capitals in its subsidiary, Notton Limited, af an aggregate consideration
of HK$ 1 resulting in a gain on disposal of approximately HK$4 million.

Given the continuous loss-making position of the abovementioned
disposal groups with net liabilities in recent financial periods, the
Company considers that the abovementioned disposal will enable the
Group to improve its financial position and eliminate any uncertainty
arising from the disposed business with an aim to stabilising the future
financial performance of the Group.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A summary of the principal risks and uncertainties which may impact the
Group's financial conditions, results of operations or future performance
and how the Group to mitigate these risks is sef out below.

This summary should nof be regarded as a complete and comprehensive
statement of all potential risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, but
rather those risks which the Group currently believes may have a
significant impact on the Group's performance and future prospects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Description

AES

TEHBIWE S

Mitigating actions
B R 15 i

Strategic risk
RESMERR

Economic risk
4 7 L gz

Credit risk
ZEERE

Strategic risk is the risk that medium and long-
term profitability and/or reputation of the
Group could be adversely impacted by the
failure either to identify or implement the
correct strategy, or fo react appropriately to
changes in the business environment.
SRS 1 LR 73 [ R BE 38 5 X B B IE R SR RS
FHEERRBELEEREMEARSE
B AR REAETIRE N KR SHBBERT
7l

Economic risk is the risk of any downturn in
economic conditions could impact the
Group's performance through higher bad
debts as a result of customers' inability to
repay loans and lower asset values.
rERBRASIEATFPENEEERME
BUZ Eﬁi*j]l]&éiéf BREMFZELEE
R ETE A TTTER

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the
Group if a customer or counferparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations.

EERBANERMIEZEFIRSHF
KREBITHAENEET  AEERZUEE
b= =i

HERE

Extensive investment management experience
of the Board.

EEENREBECEEKER -

Regularly review on strategy and performance
of each business unit.

TE B ET B RIS B AL 2 REG M RA -

Perform comprehensive due diligence on all
potential acquisitions.

BB BEWEERETEAEMES

Regularly review forward looking indicators to
identify economic conditions.

TE BT ATRE MEFR AR A BRI ER IR -

Fully understand customers and carry out credit
quality assessment on customers before
granting loans.

REHERAEE THEPLHEFLETE
EERE -

Regularly monitor loans receivables and assess
for their recoverability.

EHEREWE AR E A EARE -
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Principal risks

TERM

Description
RE

Mitigating actions
B BRI

Liquidiry risk
mENE & Bk

Price risk

ErgRR

Exchange risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not
be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due.
RBECERAREBEREEITEIHZ
W EE 2 R -

Price risk is the risk that changes in equity
prices will affect the Group's income and the
value of its holdings of equities.

(BAR ELER 5 7 B AN SR B U R H P iR AR
REEZREZSH AR -

Exchange risk is the risk that changes in
foreign exchange rates will affect the Group's
income and the value of ifs holdings of assets.
EXRERSBTZERNEBRANERTE
EBEZIMNEEXEE 2 ER
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Regu\or|\/ monitor |iquidH\/ and statement of
financial position.
EHERRBES KV BARRAE -
Maintain appropriate liquidity to cover
commitments.

REBBEERDE S LB AG

Limit liquidity risk exposure by investing only in
securities listed on stock exchanges.
BRERENX G ETRBFREIRBDESR
Bz

Ensure acceptable and appropriate finance in
place, or believed to be available before
committing investment projects.

AERER B RERE A RAH AIEE LE

Regularly monitor equity portfolio to address
any porifolio issues promptly.
EHREEREREAS UK EEERRE
HEMHRE -

Spread price risk exposure by investing a
number of equities.

KEZERELAD BEBRER

Closely monitor statement of financial position
and cashflow exchange risk exposures and
where considered appropriate use of financial
instruments, such as forward exchange
contracts, foreign currency options and forward
rofe agreements, to hedge this exchange risk.
B BRI R LIRS RE L RER - I
EERRERNBATERSRIA(NE
HASMNE & 49 - SMNEEIRE MR B R 1535 ¥
REXIE SRR
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TEHBIWE S

Principal risks Description Mitigating actions

TERAR AES B RRIE

People risk People risk is the risk of loss the services of ~ ®  Provide competitive reward and benefit
AERR any directors, senior management and other packages that ensure our ability fo aftract and

legal and regulatory risk
ERMEERR

key personnel which could have a material
adverse effect on the Group's businesses.
AERBRASENES SREEABNRE
MEBABRIEMB A EHAEBERE
REATHFEZ R o

legal and regulatory risk is the risk that a
breach of laws and regulations could lead to
litigation, investigations or disputes, resulting
in additional costs being incurred, civil and/
or criminal proceedings and reputational
damage.
ERMEERRBRERIER TS
HERA - AESA Y  EEBRINIA R
Eh/IMERFREEEREZRAR -

Capital and Financial Risk

Our capital and financial risk management are set out in the Note 40

and Note 41 to the financial statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the Reporting Year, the Company repurchased a total of
139,600,000 ordinary shares of the Company at an aggregate price
of approximately HK$4 million on the Stock Exchange. As at the date of
this report, the 139,600,000 repurchased shares were cancelled.

refain the employees we need.
RHEA BTN 2 R LB FEARRAE
EHRN TSI RBERTFZAT -

e Ensure that the staff of the Group has the right
working environment fo enable them to do the
best job possible and maximise their
satisfaction at work.
BRASBEZETIAREZTIFRENSE
IHRBFAARHT TIEREKRREIRS
INITHEREE -

=

®  Monitor changes and developments in the
regulatory environment and ensure that
sufficient resources being made available to
implement any required changes.

ERRERECHEGPNERIBRABZIE

RRABREMREZZS -

e Seek legal or other specialist advice as
appropriate.
HERSERIHEMEEALER -

BA R R E R

BAPTH) B AN e 755 TR e B B A A R AR P RE 40
KEE4T ©

BRARE

RBEFER  ARABEBRIAAREONES
BALBOARARAaH—RB=ThBEAT+ERER
o BEARERY  Z—R=THLEATER
BEERMND TIEHE -
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SHARE CONSOLIDATION
On 25 September 2020, the Company consolidated every ten (10)

issued and unissued ordinary share in the share capital of the Company
of par value of HK$0.1 each into one (1) ordinary share of HK$1.0

each in the share capital of the Company (the “Share Consolidation”).

Before the Share Consolidation, the authorised share capital of the
Company is HK$1,500,000,000 divided into 15,000,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company of par value of HK$0.1 each, of which
7,704,808,360 ordinary shares of the Company have been issued.
Immediately after the Share Consolidation, the authorised share capital
of the Company become HK$1,500,000,000 divided into
1,500,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of par value of
HK$1.0 each, of which 770,480,836 ordinary shares of the Company

was in issue.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

During the Reporting Year, no proceed from fund raising activities was
used. As at 31 December 2020, there was no unutilised proceed from
fund raising activities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND ACQUISITIONS

Saved from those mentioned in this report, the Group did not have any
other significant investments or acquisitions or sales of subsidiaries
during the Reporting Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognise the importance of achieving the highest

standard of corporate governance consistent with the needs and
requirements of its businesses and the best interest of all of its
stakeholders, and the Board is fully committed to doing so. The Board
believes that high standards of corporate governance provide a
framework and solid foundation for the Group to manage business risks,
enhance fransparency, achieve high standard of accountability and
profect stakeholders’ interests.

The Group has adopted a corporate governance statement of policy
which provides guidance on the application of the corporate
governance principles on the Group, with reference to the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the "CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Goveming the Listing of Securities (the "Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock
Exchange”).

Save for the deviation from code A.4.1 and code A.6.7 which are
explained below, in the opinion of the Directors, the Company has
complied with all code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout

the year ended 31 December 2020.

CODE PROVISION A.4.1

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Although
all independent non-executive directors have not been appointed for a
specific ferm, they will all retire at the annual general meeting af least
once every three years and will be eligible for re-election in accordance
with the CG Code. In the opinion of the Directors, the refirement of each
non-executive director af the annual general meeting at least once every
three years shall have the same effect of appointing them with a specific
term of three years. Therefore, the Directors consider that the deviation
from the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code is appropriafe in such
circumstance.

Corporate Governance Report
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CODE PROVISION A.6.7

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. One Independent Non-executive Director was absent
from the Company’s extraordinary general meeting held on 23
September 2020 due fo other business commitments.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactfions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities of the
Company by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, upon specific
enquiries made by the Company, that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2020. To ensure Directors’ dealings in the securities of the
Company (the “Securities”) are conducted in accordance with the
Model Code and securities code of the Company, a Director is required
to notify the Chairman in writing and obtain a written acknowledgement
from the Chairman prior to any dealings in the Securities.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for providing leadership and control of the
Company and monitoring the performance of the management,
approving the financial statements and annual budgets. It focuses on the
formulation of business strategy, policy and control. Day-to-day
operations of the Company are delegated to the Executive Directors and
senior management of the Group. The Board reviews and approves key
matters affecting the Company's strategic policies, finances and
shareholders, such as financial statements, dividend policy and major
corporafe acfivities. Decisions of the Board are communicated to the
Management through Executive Directors who have aftfended Board
meefings.

The Board currently comprises six Executive Direcfors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. There is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material /relevant relationship) among
members of the Board. Their names and brief biographies are sef out on
pages 48 to 50 of this Annual Report.

26 China Healthwise Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020

SFRNRSCE ALG.7 1%

RIBEEEATRISTRANRXEAG.7 & - B IEH
TEEREMFRTESTALERRASAHEM
ROBHDREHE TR - — 2B IIFNTESH
RERBEMEBMREARANR-_FT_FTFN
AZ+=BR1T2BERERNAE -

ESETESRRGZBRETR

RABRM EMRAIKI SIS EMBEITAES
EITHEHFR %'JE’JTE ESFRI([F2ESFR]]) - fERE
EEEARABHF2BRTTH « ERAQBWEHA
BEHE %%%%ﬁmﬁ EREBE_Z-_FF
+=ZA=+— EiifﬂﬁL#H SPRIFTE 2
REEE - BIBRESNEE BHE(FH])
Wl TR ST R R AN R R %#W EEREE
AMEHF  EEEBANTRE WERSEEZ
%EEEM\ °©

Exg

EXeARAERITHARR YEREREL
= Ttt)&ﬂﬂ%#ﬁ%&i&i‘ﬁi# cEEEHIER
RS - BRRITES - ARRZATEEET)
ERASEZHTEERGRERBET -EF
SEMIHEBEFERNRRRBRR  BER
BRERzZEREH PP BHRE  REBKRE
BOREH EFQCREDNBBLFESZSS
BIATEFANGEERE -

EEeHABRANRNITEST R =B IFNTT
EX - EFeXEZAYLEEMEERE(BEME
2% ZBAEMER MEEER) REMR
RERESHRANFRFISESOR -



The Independent Non-executive Directors are high calibre executives
with diversified industry expertise and bring a wide range of skills and
experience fo the Company. One of the Independent Non-executive
Director possesses recognized professional qualifications in accounting.
All' Independent Non-executive Directors bring independent judgement
on issues of strategy, performance, risk and people through their
contribution at Board meetings.

The Board has received from each Independent Non-executive Director
a written annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Board considers that the three Independent Non-
executive Directors, representing one-third of the Board, are independent
in character and they also meet the independence guidelines as sef out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Board meetings are scheduled at approx. quarterly intervals, and
additional meetings will be held when required. The Directors have
access fo all relevant information as well as the advice and services of
the Company Secretary of the Company. Independent professional
advice may be taken by the Directors as required. There were eleven
Board meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2020.

All Direcfors are subject fo refirement by rotation once every three years
and are subject fo re-election in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group
are clearly defined and segregated to ensure independence and proper
checks and balances. The Chairman focuses on the business strategy
and direction of the Company and has executive responsibilities,
provides leadership for the Board and ensures proper and effective
functioning of the Board in discharging of its responsibilities. The Chief
Executive Officer is accountable to the Board for the overall
implementation of the Company’s strafegies and the co-ordination of
overall business operations.

There is currently no officer carrying the fifle of Chief Executive Officer
up to the date of this annual report. In the absence of the Chief
Executive Officer, the duties of the Chief Executive Officer have been/
will continue fo be underiaken by other executive members of the Board,
namely Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton, Mr. leung Alex, Ms. Lo Ming
Wan, Mr. Tse Chi Keung and Mr. Yuan Huixia, therefore, in the
opinion of the Directors, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer have been/will continue 1o be properly segregated in
the absence of an officer carrying the fitle of Chief Executive Officer.

J—
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, to
oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees have been
posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website
and are available to shareholders upon request.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS ATTENDED/HELD

The attendance records of each Director at the meetings of the
shareholders, the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December 2020
are sef ouf below:

EEXZEE

EXeCRU=-MZES  EZZES M
ZEGghiRREES  UERARFRABEITEZ
B ARAMAEZZREHREARENR
REEETIF - EFREGNREEECDTIE
EARRMEERBZAEE - W ARIRESRKER]
HERH -

HE " BITEBRIE
SEEREE T _TF+_A=+—HIEFE
TERE E2g BEZZEg FMZEEgk
REZESEHMNIHIIAT

2020
Annual
General  Extraordinary
Remuneration Nomination Audit Meeting General
Board Committee Committee Committee ("AGM") Meeting
—ECEE
BREFAE
(TRREF &
=g FHEEE EEZE® BREE® x&l) L3P
Executive Directors BiTEE
Mr. Lei Hong Wai (Chairman) FIREBEE(FE) 11/11 1/1 1/1 - 1/1 2/2
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton REIE LA
[Vice Chairman) (BIERE) 11/11 - - - 1/1 2/2
Mr. Leung Alex PRI 11/11 - - - 1/1 2/2
Ms. Lo Ming Wan BHRBLLT 11/11 - - - 1/1 1/2
Mr. Tse Chi Keung HEBREE 11/11 - - - 1/1 2/2
Mr. Yuan Huixia REBERLE 8/11 - - - 0/1 0/2
Independent Non-executive BYFHITES
Directors
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen =ERLE 8/11 1/1 1/1 3/3 1/1 2/2
Mr. Lai Hok Lim REFLE 8/11 1/1 1/1 3/3 1/1 1/2
Mr. Lien Wai Hung ERELE 8/11 1/1 1/1 3/3 1/1 2/2
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

To assist Directors’ confinuing professional development, the Company
recommends Directors to attend relevant seminars to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. During the year ended 31 December
2020, the Directors have participated in continuous professional
development programmes, such as external seminars organised by
qualified professionals, to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills in relation to their confribution fo the Board. A record of the fraining
received by the respective Directors are kept and updated by the
Company.

The Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating any suitable fraining fo
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

According fo the records provided by the Directors to the Company
pursuant to the CG Code, all Directors have participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities during the Reporting Year
under review. The individual training record of each Director for the year
ended 31 December 2020 is summarised below:

J—
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Directors’ duties and

responsibilities/
Corporate Governance/
Updates on Laws, Rules and
Regulations

Business related/Accounting/
Financial/Management or
other professional skills

EECRBERRBE CXER E3: 1P - b v
EB - RBIR R 2 EE EEGHMEERRE
Attending Attending
Reading seminars/ Reading seminars/
materials conferences materials conferences
HEMHE HEMEE
BEM R = e =
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. lei Hong Wai (Chairman) TERE(ZE) v v v v
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton REIE ST
(Vice Chairman) G ESD) v v v v
Mr. leung Alex RS v v v 4
Ms. Lo Ming Wan MAEREs L+ v v v v
Mr. Tse Chi Keung EilSE:bea 4 4 v v
Mr. Yuan Huixia RIBESLE v 4 4 v
Independent Non-executive BYFHITES
Directors
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen mEHREE v v v/ v/
Mr. Lai Hok Lim ZREARE S v/ v v v
M. Llien Wai Hung EERSE 4 v v 4
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DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure for
formulating policies on remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Company. Details of the remuneration of each of
the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2020 are sef out in Note
15(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

The details of the five individual with highest emoluments are set out in
Note 15(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of the members of senior management (excluding
directors) by band are sef out in Nofe 15 fo the consolidated financial

statements.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee in 2005. The
Remuneration Committee currently consists of three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Hok Lim, Mr. Wong Tak Chuen and
Mr. Lien Wai Hung and the Chairman, Mr. Llei Hong Wai. Mr. Lai Hok
Lim is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The function of the
Remuneration Committee is fo review and make recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s remuneration policy for all remunerafion of
Directors and senior management. The fees of the Non-executive
Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors) are
defermined by the Board.

All members of the Remuneration Committee met one time during the
year ended 31 December 2020 for a proposal on remuneration
packages and employment contracts for submission to the Board for
approval.

The Company adopfs a competitive remuneration package for ifs
employees. Promotion and salary increments are assessed based on a
performance relafed basis in order to attract, retain and motivate
talented executives/employees fo strive for future developments and
expansion of the Company. To provide the Company with a flexible
means of giving incentive to rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits fo the executives/employees, a share option
scheme was adopted by the Company in 2012. Details of the 2012
share opfion scheme are set out on pages 44 to 46 of this Annual
Report.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee in 2006. The

Nomination Committee currently consists of three Independent Non-

executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Hok Lim, Mr. Wong Tak Chuen and
Mr. Lien Wai Hung and the Chairman, Mr. Llei Hong Wai. Mr. lei
Hong Wai is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee. The function
of the Nomination Committee is to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board on a regular basis and make recommendations fo the Board
regarding any proposed changes to complement the Group's corporate
strategy.

The Company adopted a policy on board diversity on 25 June 2013.
The review of effecfiveness of the Board Diversity Policy was conducted
by the Board and all findings are satisfactory.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee will
consider various aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy, including
but not limited to gender, age, culiural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge, indusfry and
regional experience and length of service.

On selection of candidates for directorship of the Company, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity. All appointment will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates would bring to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee
conducted an annual review of the structure, size and composition of the
Board and the independence pursuant to code provision A.5.2 of the

CG Code.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, an Audit Committee was established on 14
March 2000. The Audit Committee currently consists of three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Tak Chuen,
Mr. Lai Hok Lim and Mr. Lien Wai Hung. Mr. Wong Tak Chuen is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Chairman of the Audit Committee
has appropriate professional qualifications and experience in financial

matters.

By reference to “A Guide for the Formation of An Audit Committee”
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
written ferms of reference which describe the authority and duties of the
Audit Committee were prepared and adopted by the Board since the
date of establishment. The principal activities of the Audit Committee
include the review and supervision of the Group's financial reporting
process [including the preparation of the interim and annual results,
internal controls and corporate governance.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee held
three meetings including the review of the annual results for the nine
months ended 31 December 2019, change of auditors of the Company
and the interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2020 before
their submission to the Board and monitored the integrity of such
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Audit Committee also
had a private meefing with the independent audifor without the presence
of management fo discuss any area of concem. The atfendance of each
member of the Audit Committee is set out in the section headed

"Number of Meetings Attended,/Held" of this Report.

The Audit Committee has also discussed and reviewed the key audit
matters defermined by the external auditor under Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing for the year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions sef out in code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed and is satisfied with the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, fraining and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the Company'’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration paid or

payable o the independent auditor for the audit services amounted to
approx. HK$ 1,400,000 and non-audit services amounted to approx.
HK$129,000.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive
announcements and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements as sef out on pages 66 to 216. The statement of the external
auditor about ifs reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is
set out on pages 60 to 65.

The Directors confirm that, fo the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for the design
and implementation of internal controls and risk management which
covers financial reporting, operations, compliance and risk management
of the Company, as well as continuous monitoring the effectiveness of
such infernal controls and risk management. The Board has delegated
such responsibility to the management of the Company. The
management, under the supervision of the Board, has established an on-
going process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks

faced by the Group.
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The Audit Committee reviews the internal controls and risk management
that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis. The Audit
Committee also considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of sfaff of the Group's accounting and financial reporting
function, as well as their training programmes and budges.

(@) the process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

The processes used fo identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification
e |dentifies risks that may potentially affect the Group's
business and operations.

Risk Assessment
e Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment criteria
developed by the management; and

e Considers the impact and consequence on the business and
the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response
e Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment: and

e Defermines the risk management strategies and internal
confrol processes fo prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting
e Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensures that appropriafe internal control processes are in

place;

®  Revises the risk management strafegies and infernal control
processes in case of any significant change of situation;
and

e Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management and

the Board regularly.
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(b)

(c)

(d)

the main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

Control procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and disposition; ensure compliance with
relevant lows, rules and regulations; ensure proper maintenance
of accounting records for provision of reliable financial information
used within the business or for publication; and to provide
reasonable assurance against material misstatement, loss or fraud.

an acknowledgement by the board that it is responsible
for the risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness. It should also explain that
such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and reviewing their effectiveness.
The Board oversees the overall risk management of the Group and
endeavours fo idenfify, contfrol impact of the identified risks and
facilitate implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The
risk management and internal control systems of the Company are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

the process used to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

The Company does not have an internal audit function and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to sef up an
infernal audif function within the Group in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the Group's business. It was decided that the
Board would be directly responsible for internal control of the
Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

F
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The Board has engaged APAC Compliance Consultancy and
Internal Control Services Limited as its risk management and
internal control review adviser (the “Adviser”) to conduct the
annual review of the risk management and internal control systems
for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the nine months
ended 31 December 2019. Such review is conducted annually
and cycles reviewed are under rotation basis. The scope of
review was previously defermined and approved by the Board.
The Adviser has reported findings and areas for improvement to
the Audit Committee and management. The Board/Audit
Committee are of the view that there are no material internal
control defeats noted. All recommendations from the Adviser are
properly followed up by the Group to ensure that they are
implemented within a reasonable period of time. The Board
therefore considered that the risk management and internal control
systems are effective and adequate.

the procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

An information disclosure policy is in place to ensure potential
inside information being captured and confidentiality of such
information being maintained until consistent and fimely disclosure
are made in accordance with the listing Rules. The policy
regulates the handling and dissemination of inside information,
which includes:

e Designated reporting channels from different operations
informing any potential inside information to designated
depariments;

e Designated persons and departments to determine further

escalation and disclosure as required; and

e Designated persons authorised to act as spokespersons and
respond fo external enquiries.

The Board is satisfied that the internal confrol system in place covering

all material controls including financial, operational and compliance

confrols and risk management functions for the year under review and

up to the date of issuance of the annual report is reasonably effective

and adequate.
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COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. lo Ming Wan, is the Company Secretary of the Group and has

day-fo-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. She reports to the
Chairman. Ms. Lo has confirmed that she has undertaken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31

December 2020.

DIVIDEND POLICY

On 31 December 2018, the Company has approved and adopted a
new dividend policy. The Company considers the new dividend policy
creates flexibility on the Board in declaring the payments of dividends.

Under the new dividend policy, the Company does not have any pre-
determined dividend payout ratio. The declaration, payment, and
amount of dividends are subject to the Board's discretion having regard
to the following factors:

[a)  the earnings, financial conditions, capital requirements and future
plans of the Group;

(b)  the shareholders” interests of the Company;
(c)]  the economic outlook;

(d)  the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by the
Compoany to its shareholders;

[e) the statutory and regulatory restrictions on the payment of
dividends by the Company; and

() any other factors the Board may consider relevant.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders' interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual directors. All resolufions put forward
at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and of
the Stock Exchange affer each general meeting.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person
for election as a Director of the Company are available on the
Company's website (www.healthwisehk.com).
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Procedures for shareholders to convene extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposal at general meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies law [the “law”). However, shareholders are requested to
follow Article 72 of the Articles of Association (the “Articles”) of the
Company. Pursuant to Article 72 of the Arficles of the Company,
general meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of any two
or more members of the Company, or on the written requisition of any
one member which is a recognised clearing house, deposited at the
registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. Such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If the Board does not within 21 days from
the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly fo convene the
meeting, the requisitionists themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene the
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any
meefing so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. The Company
will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the Company:

Address: Unit 1209, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)
Fax: (852) 2548 5575

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed writfen requisition, nofice or stafement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) fo the above address and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders' information may be disclosed as required by law.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company highly values its relationship with its shareholders and
other stakeholders. It has put in place an effective corporate
communication system which provides fransparent, regular and timely
public disclosures to s shareholders and other stakeholders. The main
features of the system are as follows:

e The Company mainfains a corporate website (www.healthwisehk.com)
on which comprehensive information about the Group, including
core business, financial reports, public announcements, circulars
and news of the Group, is disclosed. Shareholders can obtain
corporate communication electronically via the Company's
website.

*  The Company establishes and maintains different communication
channels with its shareholders and other stakeholders through
annual reports, interim reports and other publication.

e AGM provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange views
with the Board. The respective chairmen of the Board and Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees (or in the absence of
the chairmen of such Committees, another member of each
Committee or failing this his duly appointed delegate) will
endeavor to be available to answer questions raised by
shareholders.
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®  Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings for each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

®  Defails of the proposed resolutions to be put forward at a general
meeting are, where necessary or appropriate, included in a
circular to the shareholders dispatched prior to the date of the
relevant general meeting.

e All resolutions put to the vote of a general meefing are taken by
poll. The poll results are published on the Stock Exchange’s
website at www.hkexnews.hk and on the Company’s website in
accordance with Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

In addition, the Company has established the Investor Relations
Department with designated senior management for maintaining regular
dialogue with insfitutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of
the Company's developments. Enquiries from shareholders and other
stakeholders are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

Shareholders and other stakeholders may write directly to the Company
at ifs principal place of business in Hong Kong for any enquiries.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial

statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and
investment in financial instruments. The principal activities of ifs
subsidiaries are sales of Chinese health products, money lending and
investment in financial instruments.

An analysis of the Group's turnover and segment information is set out in
Note 7 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are sef
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 66 fo 69.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 is set out in Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 14

to 24.

The Company has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Company. The Company will seek
professional legal advice from legal advisers, where necessary, fo
ensure transactions and business to be performed by the Company are
in compliance with the applicable laws and regulations.

DIVIDENDS

The Direcfors do not recommend any dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2020 (period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December
2019: Nlil).

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
Reporting Year are set out in page 72 and Note 34 to the financial
statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2020 are sef ouf in Nofe 30 fo the financial
statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, p|onf and equipment are set out in
Note 16 fo the financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's emolument policies are based on the salaries paid by
comparable companies, employment conditions and responsibilities,
and individual performance of the Directors, senior management and
general staff and are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and are decided by the Board, having regard to the salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities,
and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme fo provide a flexible
and effective means of incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating to eligible participants who contribute the success of the
Group. Details of the schemes are sef out in the paragraph headed
"Share Option Scheme” below and Note 31 to the financial statements.

None of the directors waived any emoluments during the year ended

31 December 2020.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
21 June 2021 to Thursday, 24 June 2021 [both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to defermine
the entilement to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM of the Company fo
be held on Thursday, 24 June 2021, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus limited, at level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 18 June 2021.

INFORMATION ON SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 20 to the financial
statements.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the consolidated results, assefs and

liabiliies of the Group for each of the last five financial periods.

T FEHMBHRE
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TERBAAEENBEREMBREASHE 2

RARME BENMAE

Period from
1 April
Year ended 201910 Year ended 31 March
31 December 31 December BEZA=t+—-HIEE
2020 2019 2019 2018 2017
RZT—NF
BHZ MA—HZ
b St 23 —E-NEF
+=ZB=+—-H +ZA=1+—H
HEE AR ZE-NF ZE-N\F e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FAT FAT TAT TET
Revenue WA 137,853 107,907 451,615 561,190 319,221
Loss before income tax from RERBBELLERK
continving operations ZBRETEHAEE (72,929) (118,951) (71,712) (113,415) (263,838)
Income tox credit/(expense)  FT3EiER,/(AX) 3,648 (1,265] 1,967 (987) 1,220
Loss for the year from FRREFHELE
continuing operations 27 ERE (69,281) (120,216) (69,745) (114,402) (262,618)
Profit/[loss| for the year from  FRIRE B ILEL
discontinued operations ¥R 2HR,/(EE) 44,059 16,658) (34,667) (83,535) -
Loss for the year FREE (25,222) (126,874) (104,412) (197,937) (262,618)
Attributable to: AT AL
Owners of the Company KRB ZHEB A (25,222) (124,345) (95,316] (186,103] 241,937)
Non-controlling inferests FEERR RS = (2,529 (9,096 (11,834) (20,681)
(25,222) (126,874) (104,412) (197,937) 262,618)
Total assets BERE 434,278 598,427 697,792 620,172 532,394
Total liabilities BErsE 137,987 271,754 304,352 346,022 241,753
Tolal equity BB 296,291 326,673 393,440 274,150 290,641
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020, in the opinion of

the directors, the Company has no disfributable reserves.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company repurchased ifs
own ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

AR IR

RIE—NF+_A=+—HE-_ZE-_ZTF+=
AZ+—H EERAARQARWEAED RS -

BE HEIFED LEHES

HE_Z-ZF+-_RA=+—HIFE KRQF
R FrBRIE B & @B ERnT

Price per share

BREK
No. of ordinary Aggregate
share of consideration
HK$0.10 each Highest Lowest paid
Month of BREE B B85 BE FXSzBKE
repurchase BE A6 EEREA

'000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000
T BT BT TET
January 2020 —ETF—H 19,900 0.036 0.034 700
March 2020 —ZTTF=A 20,150 0.029 0.026 577
April 2020 —ETFHWHA 17,550 0.028 0.027 480
May 2020 —T_THEAR 29,850 0.030 0.028 875
June 2020 N 52,150 0.034 0.029 1,649
139,600 4,281

SHARE OPTION SCHEME BEPRREETE

On 14 September 2012, the shareholders of the Company approved

the adoption of a share option scheme (“the Scheme”).

Details of the Scheme are as follows:

(1)

Purpose

To provide a flexible and effective means of incentivising,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating, to eligible participants
who contribute the success of the Group.
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(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

Eligible persons

Any person who is an employee (whether full time or part time)
holding salaried office or employment under a contract of
employment or service contract or terms of employment
("Contract”) with the Group or is a Director (including executive
and non-executive directors) of the Group or any adviser,
consultant, agent, contractor, customer and supplier of any
member of the Group or any subsidiaries of the Company.

Maximum number of shares

The scheme mandate limit of the Scheme was refreshed by a
shareholders’ resolufion passed in the annual general meetfing of
the Company held on 4 September 2018, details of which have
been set out in the circular dated 30 July 2018. Accordingly, the
maximum number of shares available for issue under the Scheme
is 85,213,083, representing 10% of the issued ordinary share
capital of the Company as atf the date of the annual general
meefing affer the share consolidation of the Company on 25
September 2020.

The tofal number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding Options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under any other Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time. No options may be granted
under the Scheme and no options may be granted under any
other Schemes if this will result in the limit being exceeded.
Subject to specific approval of the shareholders of the Company,
the 10% limit may be refreshed with reference to the date of such
specific approval of the shareholders of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible person

Unless approved by shareholders, the total number of shares
issued and fo be issued upon exercise of the share options
granted to each eligible person in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised during the periods to be determined
and nofified by the Directors fo the grantees at the time of making
offers to grant share options fo them provided that such periods
shall not exceed the period of ten years from the date of offer.

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)
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(6) Acceptance of offers

Offers for the grant of share options must be accepted within 21
days after the offer date. Offers for grant of share optfions have to
be accepted together with remitiance in favour of the Company of
HK$1.00.

(7) Basis of determining the option exercise price

The subscription price for the Shares under the Scheme shall be @
price defermined by the Directors at its discrefion, provided that it
shall not be less than the whichever is the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as sfated in the daily quotation sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer; [ii] the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange'’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date; and [iii) the nominal value of the shares. Details of
the scheme are set out in the circular of the Company dated 29

August 2012.

(8) The remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme will remain in force unfil 14 September 2022, being
the date which falls ten years after the dafe of adoption of the
Scheme.

Details of the share options movement and outstanding as at 31
December 2020 have been disclosed in Note 31 to the financial
statements.

The Company operates the Scheme for 10 years from 14 September
2012 to 14 September 2022 and for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards fo eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operation. Further defails of the Scheme are sef
out in the circular of the Company date 29 August 2012

During the Reporting Year, no share options was granted, exercised or
lapsed and no outstanding share option as at 31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up fo the

date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lei Hong Wai (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton (Vice Chairman)
Mr. leung Alex

Ms. Lo Ming Wan

Mr. Tse Chi Keung

Mr. Yuan Huixia

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lai Hok Lim

Mr. Llien Wai Hung

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company's Articles, the Directors
refiring by rotation at the forthcoming AGM are Mr. leung Alex, Mr. Lai
Hok Lim and Mr. lien Wai Hung. They will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election as Directors at the Annual General
Meeting.

the Directors
EFERE
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Biographical defails of Directors and senior management are sef out as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. lei Hong Wai, aged 52, has over 15 years of extensive
experience in corporate management, investment and business
development. He is the chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Board and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Board. He
also holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lei
is also a director of Eternity Finance Group limited, the substantial
shareholders of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Lei is currently the chairman of the
board of directors and an executive director of Eternity Investment Limited
("Eternity”), a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”] under stock code: 764.
During the period from 10 April 2014 1o 2 September 2015, Mr. lei
was the chairman of the board of directors and an executive director of
Huanxi Media Group Limited ("Huanxi Media"), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange under stock code: 1003. Mr. Lei
was also the chairman of the board of directors and an executive
director of Man Sang International Limited (“Man Sang”), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange under stock code: 938,
during the period from 31 March 2016 to 3 April 2018 and 26 June
2015 to 3 April 2018, respectively. In 2002, Mr. lei was a director of
The Chamber of Hong Kong listed Companies Limited, which promotes
interaction amongst its members which are listed companies in Hong
Kong and the People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton, aged 55, has over 29 years of
experience in the area of corporate finance and securities industries. He
holds a Master Degree in Accounting and Finance from the University of
Lancaster in the United Kingdom. Mr. Cheung is also a director of
Eternity Finance Group limited, the substantial shareholders of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance. Mr. Cheung is currently the chairman of the board of
directors and an executive director of Global Mastermind Holdings
Limited ("Global Mastermind”| (stock code: 8063), a company listed on
GEM operated by the Stock Exchange and an executive director of
Eternity. Mr. Cheung was an executive director of the Company during
the period from 11 October 2016 1o 16 December 2016. Mr. Cheung
was also an executive director of Man Sang during the period from 26

June 2015 to 3 April 2018.
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Mr. leung Alex, aged 42, obtained his Bachelor of Commerce degree
from the University of Auckland, New Zealand in May 2000. Mr.
leung had worked in two infernational accounting firms from December
2000 to February 2012. He is a fellow member of both the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the CPA Australia. He
has more than 18 years of experience in auditing, accounting and
corporate management as well as in the field of corporate finance,
mergers and acquisition matters, financial and accounting management,
corporate governance and compliance affairs. He also holds
directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. leung is
currently an executive director of Affluent Parmers Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange under stock
code: 1466 and formerly known as Man Sang Jewellery Holdings
Limited). Mr. leung was also an executive director of Man Sang during

the period from 16 October 2014 1o 5 November 2018.

Ms. Lo Ming Wan, aged 35, obtained her Bachelor of Business
Administration in Accounting and Economics degree from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 2007. She is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom and
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. She has over 10
years of experience in auditing, accounting, company secretarial matters
and financial management.

Mr. Tse Chi Keung, aged 39, obtained his Bachelor Degree of
Accounting from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2005. He is
a member of the Hong Kong Institufe of Certified Public Accountants. He
has more than 12 years of experience in auditing, accounting and
financial management gained from certain senior positions in an
infernational accounting firm in Hong Kong and a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. He also holds
directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Yuan Huixia, aged 40, has been admitted as a practicing solicitor
in the People’s Republic of China and has over 16 years of exfensive
experience in corporate management, investment, legal affairs and
business development. He holds a Doctorate Degree in Llaw, a Master
Degree in law and a Bachelor Degree in law from the Southwest
University of Political Science and law in the People’s Republic of
China. During the period from 1 August 2016 to 5 November 2018,

Mr. Yuan was an executive director of Man Sang.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen, aged 56, is a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and the Insfitute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, respectively. He has
over 30 years of experience in auditing, financial management, mergers
and acquisitions gained from certain senior finance related positions in
an international accounting firm in Hong Kong, companies listed in
Hong Kong and a company listed in the United States of America. He is
currently the Finance Director of a private company in Hong Kong. Mr.
Wong is also an independent non-executive director of Huanxi Media
and Efemity. Mr. Wong was also an independent non-executive director
of Man Sang during the period from 12 July 2016 to 5 November
2018.

Mr. Lai Hok Lim, aged 62, has been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong
since 1989. He graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of Arts Degree and holds a Bachelor of Arts (Law) Degree from
the University of Sussex in the United Kingdom and a Bachelor of Llaw
Degree from Beijing University in the PRC. Mr. Lai is also an
independent non-executive director of Global Mastermind. Mr. Lai was
also an independent non-executive director of Man Sang during the
period from 1 December 2016 1o 5 November 2018.

Mr. lien Wai Hung, aged 57, has been a practising solicitor in Hong
Kong since 1997. Mr. lien was also the chairman of the board of
directors and an executive director of Zhi Cheng Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange under stock code:
8130, during the period from 15 September 2010 to 31 July 2018
and 27 April 2010 to 31 July 2018, respectively.
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Company Secretary

Ms. Lo Ming Wan, aged 35, obtained her Bachelor of Business
Administration in Accounting and Economics degree from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 2007. She is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom and
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. She has over 10
years of experience in auditing, accounting, company secretarial matters
and financial manaogement.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All Executive Directors have entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial term of three year commencing from the date of
their first appointment and also subject to the general requirement of
refirement by rofation and re<election at each annual general meeting of
the Company under the Articles of Association. The service agreement
shall continue unless terminated by either party by giving a written
notice. Under the agreement, the Executive Directors will receive an
annual fee.

Apoart from the above, none of the Directors has a service contract with
the Company which is not terminable within one year without payment
of compensation, other than sfatutory compensation.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assefs of the Company against all acfions, costs, charges,
damages, expenses, losses and liabilities which he/she may sustain or
incur in the execution of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has faken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against Directors of the Group.

DIRECTOR’S MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION
TO THE COMPANY'’S BUSINESS

No fransactions, arrangements and confracts of significance in relafion
to the Group's business fo which the Company’s subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which Direcfor of the Company and the
Director’s connected party had a material inferest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Reporting Year or at any time
during the Reporting Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this report, Mr. lei Hong Wai (Chairman and
executive director of the Company) and Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton
(Vice Chairman and executive director of the Company) have interest in
approximately 25.99% and 15.29%, respectively, of the issued share
capital of Eternity Investment Limited (stock code: 764, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange engaging in sale of
financial assets, property investment, money lending, and design and
sale of jewelry products, through themselves and their beneficial interests
in Twin Success International Limited. In addition, Mr. lei Hong Wai is
the chairman of the board of directors and an executive director and
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton is an executive director of Eternity
Investment Limited. Therefore, Eternity Investment Limited competes with
the Group’s money lending business and investment in financial

instruments business.

As at 31 December 2020, save as mentioned above, the Directors
were not aware of any business or interest of each Director,
management shareholder and their respective associate, that competes
or may compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict of
inferest which any such person have or may have with the Group.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2020, the interests of the directors and the chief
executive and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the regisfer mainfained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each of the
Company
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BEZERT HARAR B E&IT
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Mr. Lei Hong Wai Beneficial owner 57,463,636 7 A46%
TEREEAE EnEBAA

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executive B F XTI BEEIN R_E-_TF+ _-_F=+—

nor their associates had any inferests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations af 31 December 2020.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2020, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant fo Section 336 of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance shows that the following shareholders had
nofified the Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of
the Company.

(a) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each of

FERRK
R-B-BE+-A=1—8 FAAREES
RIS EPIE O HEE 2 EBRRBRMETR
THREC RS AL TERTRA 2 A WS
MEART -

(0 AAFRSKEEI0BTEER T

the Company A
Percentage of
Number of the issued share
issued ordinary capital of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held the Company
BEZERT HARAR D E&IT
BRRETE 514 ZERHAE BABD L
Eternity Finance Group Limited Beneficial owner 156,212,824 20.27%
KEMBEBERAF EnlEEA
Riche (BVI) Limited Inferest in a controlled corporation 156,212,824 20.27%
TP AE R
Eternity Investment Limited Inferest in a controlled corporation 156,212,824 20.27%
KNIERIEIREBRAR] RIE LB
Notes: Btet -

These Shares were registered in the name of Eternity Finance Group
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Riche (BVI) Limited, which in turn is
wholly-owned by Efernity Invesiments Limited, the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange under stock code: 764.

ZERMAKEVBEEER AR ZERERL -
H ARiche (BVI) Limited 2 2 & M B A 7] * i Riche
(BVI) Limited Bl Rk B R IEIREBR AR 2 EHER -
XIERBIREGR AR Z RN ZFER
(B RIR - 764) °

(b) Convertible bonds (b) WERRES
Number of
convertible Number of
Name of shareholder Capacity bonds held  underlying shares
BEz WK
REEHE 54 BEHHA HEROEE
Heng Tai Finance Limited Beneficial owner 85,500,000 85,500,000
EmEEA
Heng Tai Consumables Group limited  Interest in a controlled corporation 85,500,000 85,500,000
SREBEREEBRAA N
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Notes:

These convertible bonds were registered in the name of Heng Tai Finance
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Heng Tai Consumables Group
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange under stock code: 197.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Directors are
not aware of any other person or corporation having an interest or short
position in shares and underlying shares of the Company or its
associated corporation(s] which would require to be recorded in the
register required fo be kept by the Company pursuant fo section 336 of
Part XV of the SFO.

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS * INFORMATION
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

The following changes were made to the information of the Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up fo the date of this
report:

On 24 July 2020, Mr. lai Hok Lim has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Global Mastermind Holdings

Limited (Stock code: 8063).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

In the event that the Company issues, otherwise than pursuant fo the Old
Scheme and the Scheme, for cash consideration of any new shares or
securities [including options and warrants) in the Company convertible
into ordinary shares (the “New Issue Securities”), the holders of the
Company's preference shares (the “Preference Shares”) are entfifled to
subscribe, or procure subscribers to subscribe, for all or part of the New
Issue Securities. Any New Issue Securifies not subscribed for by the
holders of Preference Shares may be subscribed for by the holders of
ordinary shares in the Company upon terms and conditions no more
favourable than those offered to the holder of Preference Shares.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the contracts of service with the Directors or any persons
engaged in the fulltime employment of the Group, no confracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Group were entered info or exisfed
during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales and purchases atfributable to the Group's
largest customers and suppliers are as follows:

BrRBERE

AR~ B FER B EF B R LAt B M BITEMA
RAZHBHA BB EBRZES (BREBRE
RRAEE) MRS R E ([#HETESR]) - 8
ARRZBER(BERDFHEAGERBRRE
FEREARBBLINE D ZHBITES o EFAXL
AHBEEBAEARBZHBRTESAHRART]
BABRFBEARE  HERBEARGHETFER
BRBFAAZBBEGRR G ENES -

EEEH

EARFER ARRKEESARAKEE TS
BTEZEMALARITZRBELDIN - BHER
AEBZEBREMNERI D EH 2 EERITR
I HBRFREMAL

TERFRHED

REBZAREFREEFMLZHERFEERT Y
than T

For the For the nine

year ended  months ended

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

BE =

— —ENEF

+=A=+—-H +t=-H=+—H

LEE IENER

% %

— the largest customer - BRAEP 9 17
— five largest customers combined — BAREFAR 31 43
— the largest supplier — &RAHER 49 34
— five largest suppliers combined — ARHERMAEF 74 68

No Directors or their associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) and no
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5%

of the Company's share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or

customers noted above.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed (together with the management and

external auditor) the accounting principles and policies adopted by the
Group and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year

ended 31 December 2020.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant fo Rule
3.13 of the Llisting Rules. The Company considers that all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

CHANGE OF AUDITORS

BDO Llimited has resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect
from 23 July 2020. HIB Hodgson Impey Cheng limited has been
appointed as the auditor of the Company with effect from 27 July 2020
to fill the casual vacancy.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited shall refire in the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of HIB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as auditor of the Company will be
proposed af the forthcoming annual general meeting.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

At an exfraordinary general meeting (the "EGM") held on 26 May
2017, an ordinary resolution was passed by the independent
shareholders which approved the master purchase agreement dated 3
April 2017 entered info between LC Global Holdings Corporation (“LC
Clobal”), a subsidiary of the Company, and Llung Cheong (BVI)
Holdings Limited ("lung Cheong (BVI)") which is owned as to 30% by
Mr. leung Chung Ming and 70% by Mr. leung, Kenneth Yuk Wai who
is a son of one of the Company's substantial shareholder at the date of
the EGM, Mr. leung Lun, M.H.,
relation to, among other matters, the supply of consumer electronic
products, radio control /wireless products, electronic and plastic toys for
a term up fo 31 March 2020. On 25 November 2019, a new master

purchase agreement ("New Master Purchase Agreement”) has been

(the “Master Purchase Agreement’) in

entered into between LC Global and lung Cheong (BVI) to revise the
annual cap for the year ending 31 March 2020 under the Master
Purchase Agreement and renew the Master Purchase Agreement for a

period commencing from 25 November 2019 to 6 May 2020.

I—
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The annual caps in relation to the fransactions under the Master
Purchase Agreement (as renewed by the New Master Purchase
Agreement) for the year ending 31 March 2020 and the period from 1

April 2020 to 6 May 2020 would not exceed HK$120 million and
HK$40 million respectively.

For the nine months ended 31 December 2019, purchases under the
Master Purchase Agreement amounted to approx. HK$74 million. For
the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 March 2020, purchases under
the Master Purchase Agreement amounted to approx. HK$5 million. For
the period from 1 April 2020 to 6 May 2020, purchases under the

Master Purchases Agreement amounted to approx. HK$3 million.

On 31 January 2019, Mr. Lleung Lun, M.H. ceased to be a substantial
shareholder of the Company but remained as directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. On 7 May 2019, Mr. leung Lun, M.H.
ceased fo be a director of any subsidiary of the Company. Lung

Cheong (BVI) will no longer be a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules from 7 May 2020.

In accordance with Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company reviewed the continuing
connecfed fransactions in the paragraph above and confirmed that the
transactions were entered info:

[

] In the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(i)  Either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to
the Company than terms available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and

(i) In accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
ferms that were fair and reasonable and in the inferests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s auditor,
BDO Limited, was engaged to report on the Company’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 "Auditors’ Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Llisting Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountantfs.

The audifor has issued an unqualified letter containing findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected fransactions disclosed
by the Group in the paragraph above in accordance with Rule 14A.38
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Company is committed fo maintaining, and has maintained good

relationships with, its employees, customers and suppliers with a view to
fostering better mutual understanding and/or a sense of belonging
towards the Company. This is conducive to implementing the Group's
strategies and business objectives, as well as the Group's business
development and sustainability in the long ferm.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

As a responsible corporation, the Company is committed fo profecting
the environment in the areas where we operate. To ensure our business
development and sustainability, the Company endeavors to comply with
the laws and regulations regarding environmental protection and to
adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of resources, energy
saving and waste reduction.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this report, the public float of the shares of the
Company is sufficient to meet the minimum level as prescribed in the
Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The financial stafements have been audited by HIB Hodgson Impey
Cheng limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Llimited as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company's corporate governance principles and practice are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 25 to 40 of this
Annual Report.

On behalf of the Board
China Healthwise Holdings Limited

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman and executive Director

29 March 2021
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HLB) B #7 & 3 @ ¥ # o 4 m o 4

HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA HEALTHWISE HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islandls with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Healthwise Holdings Limited [the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 66 to 216,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated sfatement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes fo the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a frue and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ["HKICPA"] and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Audifors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate fo provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,

were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,

Independent Auditors’ Report
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BRELEE

MRERFEEREBEEFNREHE - HAHR

BUBBREANBREAEENEH - HEFTHE
EEERELRAMBHRRIL AE REETT

RRIEH) - BEETEHELFREREBNER -

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BREREE

Expected credit losses (“ECL”) assessment on loan
receivables

ERER:AREEER (RUFEER] TG

Refer to note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
BREGEVBHRERMTE24 -

At 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of loan
receivables was approximately HK$223,114,000.
Accumulated allowance for expected credit losses of
approximately HK$59,359,000 was provided for loan
receivables.

R-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—B BREFXEEEHAR
“RoT=BE-+—EBmTET  ERERERGHER
HEEERAFRBOATAE=Ta8NTET -

During the year ended 31 December 2020, allowance for
expected credit losses of approximately HK$48,657,000
was recognised for loan receivables.
BHE_Z_ZF+_RA=+—HIFE EREKER
RIEMEEBERBEONTF N B TS LTET -

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures.
The Group considers reasonable and supportable
information including historical and forward-looking
information that is relevant and available without undue cost
or effort for this purpose.

RERERH - EXEFEEERRAESABILN - &
SEEEAEYERENENEERALE N TEESHE
BREBFHHEBEER  BREBERAEILER -

We identified ECL assessments on loan receivables as a key
audit matter due to use of significant judgment and estimates.
EEBERER 2 EREEBRI LI RERESSE
B REAEDERAERHE LG -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEEREREERZAN

QOur procedures in relation fo management’s ECL assessment on
loan receivables included:
EEREEBHREEREL 2 BBMEREERNMETZRE
Freth

®  Understanding the credit control procedures performed by
management, including its procedures on periodic review
of loan receivables and ECL assessment on loan
receivables:

o THREBEBMETEEEERER BEFBREKER
KMEWEF z EEEE BB 2 EBREMER

®  Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy of aging
profile of loan receivables to the underlying agreements;

° 7 18 1 25 MR 1p e TR B B IR B SRR B 2 ZETE I
° Checking, on a sample basis, the subsequent sefilement of

loan receivables to bank receipts; and
o HERAIEWERERITURZ HBER : &

®  Assessing the appropriateness of the expected credit loss
provision methodology, examining the key data inpufs on
a sample basis fo assess their accuracy and complefeness,
and challenging the assumptions, including both historical
and forward-looking information, used to determine the
expected credit losses.

o IEEHEEFERENERGEE  WMEBMBEEA
BEAFEERLEECE  YERAREERNE
EBEMARR  BRELRAELER

We found that the management judgement and esfimates used
in ECL assessment on loan receivables were supportable by
available evidences.
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the period from
1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019 were audited by another auditors
who expressed an unmodified opinion on 20 March 2020.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon [the "Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider
whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears fo be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is o material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such infernal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either infend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alfernative buf fo do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detfect a
material missiatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected fo influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatfement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
infentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of infernal
confrol.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's infernal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

%5 3 # B B 3R

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exisfts, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obfained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to

continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group fo express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. Ve are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,

and fo communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought fo bear on our independence, and where

applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected o outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Hon Koon Fai, Alex.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Cerfificate Number: PO5029

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FEREREMEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZEZEZZ-_TF+-_A=+—HIEFE

Period from
1 April
Year ended 2019 1o
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
RZZE—NF
B= MA—RAZE
—B-FF —E-NF
+=A=+—-H +t-HA=t+—H
IEFE HAME
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE THET FHET
Continuing operations FRREXEY
Revenue WA 7 137,853 107,907
Cost of sales SHE KA (76,797) (58,364)
Gross profit EX 61,056 49,543
Other income, gains and losses, net HUA -~ WX REE - FEE 8 1,253 (71,956)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHET (30,030) (30,834
General and administrative expenses —ERTBER (34,642) (30,963
Finance costs R E A 10 (18,847) (17,662)
Impairment loss under expected credit RHEEERERIAT Y
loss model B EE (48,692) (5,593)
Impairment loss on property, M - BB RRERERE
plant and equipment 16 (166) -
Impairment loss on rightof-use assets fFR#EEERERIE 17 (2,861) (5,778)
Impairment loss on goodwill BERERRE 18 - (614)
Impairment loss on infangible assets A BRI EEE 19 = (5,094)
Loss before income tax from PNSESTFC-E 3
continuing operations BR RIS B AT B 18 9la) (72,929) (118,951)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frig®iie,/ (FAs) 11 3,648 (1,265)
loss for the year/period from FN/HBRRERHE
confinuing operations REXRB 2 B8 (69,281) (120,2106)
Discontinued operation ERIEREER
Profit/(loss) for the year/period from FRENREEKIE
discontinued operation mEEBZwH, (BE) Qb) 44,059 (6,658)
Loss for the year/period FR/ENER (25,222) (126,874)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FERSRAMZEKE R
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZEZZ-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

Period from
1 April
Year ended 2019 1o
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
RZZE—NF
Bz MA—B=E
b et 35 —E-NF
+=A=+—-H +t-—A=t+—H
LEFEE HARE
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E THET FHET
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, HBRHEREMEE
net of tax (F518) Wz
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently E& At EFH HIEE
fo profit or loss: BRMIER -
Exchange differences arising from BREBINEBEELZ
translation of foreign operations b i Z 58 20 (1,876)
Exchange differences reclassified o profit ~ M EMNBARIREHHIEE
or loss upon disposal of subsidiaries BE BN ER 33 (188) 35,091
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the 4R, HA A T E 1%
year/period, nef of tax Hmem(EE) s (168) 33,215
Total comprehensive loss for the FR/HANZHEEBBEE
year/ period (25,930) (93,659
(Loss)/profit for the year/ period AT AT RIEFERBR
attributable fo: (&518), & F -
Owners of the Company PAN/NCIEZ ZE DN
— from continuing operations — KA EREER (69,281) (117,687)
— from discontinued operation — REBERIEREXE 44,059 (6,658)
Loss for the year/period affributable FAENRQRER A
fo owners of the Company FE(RE518 (25,222) (124,345)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FEREREMEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZEZEZZ-_TF+-_A=+—HIEFE

Period from
1 April
Year ended 2019 1o
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R-F—N#F
BE MA—H=E
—B-BF —ENF
+=A=+—-H +t-HA=+—H
IEFE HAM
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
g3 FHERT TET
Non-controlling inferests FEER A R
— from continuing operations — REFELEXRD - (2,529
— from discontinued operation — REDRILEEER - -
Loss for the year/period aftributable fo FRHRIEIE AR B
non-confrolling interests B8 - (2,529)
(25,222) (126,874)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income LR AL ERFER, BN
for the year/period affributable to: 2E(BR) WAL :
Owners of the Company RREEBA (25,390) (99,853)
Non-controlling interests FEE IR R = 6,194
(25,390) (93,659
Total comprehensive (loss)/income KRB A ANEL
affributable to owners of the Company: 2HE(BR) WAL :
— from continuing operations — RERBKEER (69,261) (93,195
— from discontinued operation — REBRIEEEER 43,871 (6,658
(25,930) (99,853)
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ofit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

FERREMRER®
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZEZZ-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

Period from
1 April
Year ended 2019 o
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R-F—hF
BE MA—B=E
— —ENF
+=A=+—H +t-—A=+—H
IEFE HAR
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE THET FHET
(restated)
Ex]l
Loss per share attributable to owners of RAFBELEEBRELILEE
the Company from continuing and B2 ARREER AR
discontinued operations FRE1E
— Basic and diluted — EARREE (3.25) (15.34)
13 cents &l cents &Il
Loss per share attributable to owners of RAFEKEEEB 2 ANARES
the Company from continuing operations A JE{E &A% &8
— Basic and diluted — BERREE (8.94) (14.52)
13 cents Al cents 11
Eamnings/(loss) per share affributable to REBRIEKREERE 2 RNAF]
owners of the Company from HEAELEERER,(EE)
discontinued operations
— Basic and diluted — EARREE 5.69 (0.82)
13 cents &A1l cents Il
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R MEIKAR

As at 31 December 2020

R-F-FF+-A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EF —ZE-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ihg=s FHET FHIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB NEE 16 BOS 4,903
Rightof-use assets FRESE 17 3,100 12,074
Goodwill [EES 18 - -
Infangible assefs BIVERE 19 - -
Financial assets af fair value through BRATEFABRECeRMEE
profit or loss 21 2,611 18,306
Deferred tax assets IR IR E B 29 3,608 3,569
Loan receivables BUE 24 135,978 15,000
145,692 53,852
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 22 47,964 68,939
Trade and other receivables, deposits FEUNE SRR K H A FEUR R IA -
and prepayments Re RIERHKIE 23 13,569 51,259
Lloan receivables TEUE R 24 87,136 248,831
Financial assets at fair value through BRATEFABE EMEE
profit or loss 21 105,088 120,275
Tax recoverable AU EIF IR = Q
Pledged bank deposits EHEFRITER 26 = 8,190
Cash and cash equivalents HERIRLEEY 26 34,829 47,072
288,586 544,575
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables and [T ZEER R B At 258
accrued charges LERTE A 27 20,325 117,663
lease liabilities HESBE 17 6,175 12,034
Borrowings (ER= 28 20,000 18,685
Tax payable FEETIA 3,847 5,158
Convertible loan notes AR EREE 38 = 110,038
50,347 263,578
Net current assets REEERE 238,239 280,997
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAMSE 383,931 334,849
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As at 31 December 2020

olidated Statement of Financial Position

SaMBRAR
RZFZFF+-A=1+—H

2020 2019
—E_ZHF —E-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 FET FET
Non-current liabilities ERBES
Llease liabilities HESBE 17 2,140 6,256
Convertible loan notes AR EREE 38 85,500 -
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFTEEE 29 = 1,920
87,640 8,176
Net assets EEZFE 296,291 326,673
EQUITY =
Share capital fi&N 30 770,481 786,546
Reserves s (474,190) (459,873
Equity atiributable to owners of KAEHER AEGEZ
the Company 296,291 326,673
Non-controlling inferests IEVERR = 32 = -
Total equity T 296,291 326,673

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2021 and are signed on its

behalf by:

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Lei Hong Wai
TR

Director

EF

PREB R EERERAR

Tse Chi Keung
#ER
Director

EF

ZEEFR

REMBHRENR-_Z=_—F=A=-+hBEES
SHUENIRAETIE - WR THEERKRESE

BEPM BT A % AR B B RS ¥R R 2 MR R D
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FEEQEBRE

ment of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZEZEZZ-_TF+-_A=+—HIEFE
Convertible
Share loan Exchange Attributable to
Share Share opfion  nofes — equity fluctuation ~ Accumulated  owners of the  Non-confrolling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Company inferests Tofol
Gl
BXEE- KRF
BE ROEE  BREERE BERE EXRDRG 2iEE  BEAEGE  FERER @t
HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
FET i Tt i Fitn T Fitn TFEL T
[Note 30) [Note 31)
(Hf3£30) (it 31)
A1 Apil 2019 RZE-NEMA-A 852,131 337,166 15,742 19,835 [13,250] [756,178) 455,446 (62,006] 393,440
Exchonge differences arising on BERNERELVERER
franslafion of foreign operations - - - - 110,599) - 10,599 8723 (1.876]
Exchange diferences reclossified o~ R EHBARHZNHE
profit or loss upon disposol of ERG/ENEE
subsidiaries - - - - 35,001 - 35,001 - 35,001
Loss for the period BhEE - - - - - [124,349) [124,349) [2,529) [126,874)
Total comprehensive loss for HrzEBRER
the period - - - - 24,492 [124,349) 99,853 6,194 93,659
Release on lapse of equitysefled IEREEIRAAER
share'based payment N FERERE - - 115,742) - - 15,742 - - -
Repurchase and cancellotion of shores B &R 3 65,585) - - - - 36,665 28,920) - 28,920)
Disposal of subsidicries HEHBAR - - - - - - - 55,812 55,812
At 31 December 2019 and RZZ-nEF-A=+-H
orsay 2020 e osto 37166 SRS N2 BBl 367 L
Exchange differences arising on HEBNRBELZENZE
fronslofion of foreign operaions - - - - 20 - 20 - 20
Exchonge differences redossified o~ R EMBARBENHEZ
profit o loss upon disposal of BaZELEE
subsidiories - - - - (188) - (188) - (188)
Loss for the year FNEE - - - - - (25,222) 25,222 - 25,222)
Totol comprehensive loss for the year ~ FR2AFEEE - - - - (168) 25,222) 25,390) - 25,390)
Repurchase and cancelofon of sheres L s B {3 (16,065 - - - - 11,073 (4,992) - (4,992)
At 31 December 2020 R-E-FF+-A=1-A 770,481 337,166 - 19,835 11,074 842,265) [296,291) - [296,291)

Nature and purpose of reserves are disclosed in Note 34.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FeERenER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZEZZ-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

Period from
Year ended 1 April 2019 1o
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
RZZE-NF
Bz MA—BZ
ot ot 33 “E-NF
t=A=+—-8 +t-A=t+—H
LLEE HAA]
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
LiF TET TET
Operating activities rExK
loss before income tax from REFEEEEED
confinuing operations BRPTSELRIE IR (72,929 (118,951
Profit/ (loss) before income tax from KEERIEREEK
discontinued operation BRETEBALER(E51E) 46,040 (7,3706)
(26,889) (126,327)
Adjustments for: BMATIEE A
Interest income HEWA 8 (8) (167)
Interest expenses BB 9lb), 10 19,947 19,055
Depreciation of property, W% - BB RREITE
plant and equipment 16 1,557 1,287
Depreciation of rightof-use assets FREEENE 17 9,030 9,700
Impairment loss on property, ME - BELRERERE
plant and equipment 16 166 -
Impairment loss on rightof-use assets FREEEREEE 17 2,861 5778
Impairment loss on goodwill EmERERE 18 - 614
Impairment loss on infangible assets B EEREER 19 - 5,094
Impairment loss on frade and & I 55 B 3K % HLAth FE W TR IR
other receivables AEEE 23 35 2,603
Impairment loss on loan receivables, nef e EFZURER BT 24 48,657 5,593
Loss on partial redemption of BoBEE AR ERFE 2 EE
convertible loan notes 8 1,248 -
[Gain)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries, net HE—RBARZ
(zs), EiRFaE 33 (46,227) 13,991
Rent concession HeE= 8 (2,107) -
loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE R&EEE
plant and equipment 9(b) - 247
Loss on written off of property, WEME - BB RREERE
plant and equipment 8, 9(b) 9 -
Fair value loss on financial assets BRATFEFABERZ
at fair value through profit or loss, net TREECATE
BEFE 8 5,409 58,094
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FeERenER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZEZ=

B_BET _H=T—HLFE

Period from
Year ended 1 April 2019 1o
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
RZZE—NF
Bz MA—BZE
—E-EE =—NF
t=A=+—-8 t-A=t+—H
LLEE HAE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE TERT FET
Operating cash flows before working BEREBYRI o KER S
capifal changes 13,688 (4,438
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEUEMm,md (487) 2,500
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other JEWE 5 BR 3 & E Ath R UL FE
receivables, deposits and prepayments Re RIEMHEOLEM), B> (79,752) 7,014
Increase in loan receivables e il (7,940 (8,808
Decrease in amount due from FE W — R A B R AR
a relafed company Ve - 10,027
Increase in trade and other payables JETE 5 RR R E A 58 &
and accrued charges FEst & R 0 62,995 71,192
Decrease in amounts due to JERI B RAE R Rl IE R
related companies = (60,573
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERAFEFABREZ
through profit or loss CREE (10,861) (710
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at ~ HEZEAFEFABREZ &/
fair value through profit or loss BEMNMEHIE 35,623 32,057
Cash generated from operations KEEBMGBzRE 13,266 48,261
Inferest received EHAE 8 167
Income fax paid 2R (1,284)
Net cash generated from RETHAB2REFE
operating activities 11,990 48,428
Investing activities REED
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME BEMEHE 16 (4,518) (3,271)
Decrease/increase) in pledged ERRITFETORL, (5 h0)
bank deposits 8,190 (8,190)
Net cash outflow arising on disposal of PEMBAREEZEE
subsidiaries R 33 (2,17¢6) (1,368
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing REEEIFTE, (FiH) 2
activities HEFEE 1,496 (12,829)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FeERenER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZEZZ-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE

Period from
Year ended 1 April 2019 1o
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
RZZE-NF
S mMA—RAZE
—BCEFE —T-NF
t=A=+—-8 +t-A=t+—H
LEE HAME
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E TET FET
Financing activities MEED
Interest paid BRFB 39 (8,476) (9,908
New borrowings BT 39 32,068 18,685
Repayment of borrowings BERER 39 = (11,787)
Repayment of convertible loan notes BEFHMRERER (34,500) -
Repurchase of shares M 1 120 B 30 (4,281) (28,920)
Repayment of principal portion of EEHERENESID
lease liabilities 39 (10,560) (9,262)
Net cash used in financing activities METHTACREFE (25,749) (41,192)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERRELEYWRD FE (12,263 (5,593)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes MEEZSTH 2 HE 20 (2,275
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning &4 2R ERELSEEY
of the year/period 47,072 54,940
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of FR/BMAZRERELEEY
the year/period 34,829 47,072
Represented by: E:
Cash and cash equivalents B RIREEEY 26 34,829 47 072
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RMEE

31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZHF+-_/F=+—H

76

ORGANISATION AND OPERATIONS
China Healthwise Holdings limited A% 824 B4R B R A 7

(the “Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. lts shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The address of its registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman lIslands, and the
principal place of business of the Company is at Unit 1209, Shun
Tak Centre, West Tower, 168-200 Connaught Road Cenfral,
Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and principally
engaged in investment in financial instruments. lts subsidiaries
(fogether with the Company referred to as the "Group”) are
principally engaged in sale of Chinese health products, money
lending business and investment in financial instruments. The
Group was also engaged in sale of Own Brand Manufacturing
["OBM") toys which was discontinued in current year.

The principal activities of ifs subsidiaries are set out in Note 20 to
the financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ["HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company and all amounts are rounded fo the nearest
thousand (HK$'000) except otherwise indicated.

Details of the substantial shareholders of the Company are
disclosed in the section headed “Substantial Shareholders” in the
Report of the Direcfors of the annual report.

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

On 2 December 2019, the Company announced fo change its
financial year end date from 31 March to 31 December in order
fo have a coferminous year end date with that of its substantial
shareholder, which is a Hong Kong listed company domiciled in
Bermuda, for a comparable presentation of financial performance
and position. Accordingly, the corresponding comparative
amounts shown for the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity, consolidated statement of cash flows and related notes
cover a nine-month period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December
2019 and therefore may not be comparable with amounts shown
for the current year ended 31 December 2020.

China Healthwise Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020

PR ERIERERART (AR A—
MRASEEFMAZZERAR - E%HD
REBBERZMERLF ([ ER
e 3P = R i AP.O. Box 309,
Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104,
Cayman lslands * RN ARG E B L EME A
EETHEF—BATNA\EZBREEZPL
PE——FHE -

ARRB—HREZBRAAREERERE
TRTA - EMBAR CERARNRRRES
[REME ) E2NPERERZHE - WE
EBRKRECHIA - AEETTKEHER
Emgsls((BEmEsE DA  ZEB
ERAFERIEES -

HIB AR EREBEN M BRI E
20~

mABmRAET (DB 25 MATT
MRARFININEEER - ARESHER -
AR ZEEREOTM(TET) °

AR EZEROFBCRFRAES SR
SIEBRER] —EHE -

EXMBEELEH

NoZE—NE+-A=R0 KXARSMHE
BEEFEEH=RA=+t—HA+ A
=t+—H UREFERR(BUERESR
BEMHEEEMAR) 2FLEBHEE - B
EHAT R M RIR IR - Bt © 426
BEREM2EKRER  SAESEHE -
HREReRER KBTI RERLRE
FHRE_ZT-NFNA-—HBE-_ZT—AF
+ZA=+—HIEAMA R - BRM AT R
HE T - ZF+-A=+—HZARFEEM
R REMETTLLES



3.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

(a)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA”) for the first time, which are mandaforily effective
for the annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020
for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Definition of Material
HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendment fo
HKFRS 16 Covid-19Related Rent Concessions.

Except as described below, the application of the
Amendments fo References fo the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRS Standards and the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial positions and performance for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

31 December 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS") (Continued)

(a)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

Impacts on early application of Amendment to HKFRS 16
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The Group has applied the amendment for the first time in
the current year. The amendment infroduces a new practical
expedient for lessees to elect not fo assess whether a Covid-
19-related rent concession is a lease modification. The
practical expedient only applies to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 that
meets all of the following conditions:

e the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

*  any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

e there is no substantive change fo other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying
HKFRS 16 leases if the changes were not a lease
modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are
accounted for as variable lease payments. The related lease
liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or
waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised in the
profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The application of the amendment had no impact to the
opening accumulated losses at 1 January 2020. The Group
has benefited from waiver of lease payments on several
leases in Hong Kong. The Group has derecognised the part
of lease liability that has been extinguished by the
forgiveness of lease payments using the discount rates
originally applied fo these leases respectively, resulting in a
decrease in the lease liabilities of HK$2,107,000, which
has been recognised as variable lease payments in profit or
loss for the current year.

China Healthwise Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020

3. EREEBMBHRELEA(EFEM
B|EER DIBRTA )

(a)

REFERFER 2ERBMBRE
REANERT A ()

TEFIERE B & EAFE 165 1E
FTAK Covid- 19 1A R 2 2 &

REBRKRFEREEREAZIEFTAE -
BRI A RAEMASIET 2 AI{THE
HAE  REAGEEATFTE Covid19
HEREREES A —EHEEEET -
ZAITRE R EEERREE TR
EEHHACoidIOEZEA ZHER
7R

s HEMREHEHIHEZLE
AIREREREHF o HERE
EAMERSERZAE

¢ MENRZALBRERTH-
2= — A=+ AR S
2R R

o BEZEMBERREETEEE
PERE) -

ERAITRENZRES R ERZ
HENREB IR Z AFEAR AR —
TRABEABE B RELERNFE 165
HEZEPAR(WMEBDLIFHEERE
7)) HENRZRRHFHRRARIIE
AERENK - HRAEEAEERAE
MRMRERRBR T WRESE
RELEZ B RER DT EREER

B, o
=

ERZETALBHRN T _TF—
A—BZENRFBERELFE - X
SENEENZHEMESEREEN
RE% REBEESREREBERR
ZEHENTREPHERRART LM
ENFMBERNTLOHERR B
HERERS—B—TEZTLTET
YERAFERaTERASFIDHEE
e



3.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("H KFRSS") (Continued)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

vet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

2023.
2022.
be determined.

2021.

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments'

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2°

Sale or Contribution of Assefs befween
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments fo Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)'

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Confract?

Annual Improvements fo HKFRSs
2018-20202

Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January

The directors anticipate that the application of all new and

amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure
requirement of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The directors have, at the time of approving the consolidated
financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources fo confinue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concem
basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis except for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), which are measured at fair values
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for good and services. Fair value
is the price that would be received fo sell an asset or paid fo
fransfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
fechnique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Croup fakes info account the characteristics of the asset or liability
it market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability af the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing fransactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 leases, and
measurements that have some similarities fo fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or
value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Asses.

For financial instruments which are fransacted at fair value and a
valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation technique
is calibrated so that af initial recognition the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value

measurements are cafegorised info Level

1, 2 or 3 based on the

degree to which the inputs fo the fair value measurements are

observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in ifs entirety, which are described as follows:

level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access af the measurement date;

level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and ifs subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

®  has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

®  has the ability fo use its power to affect ifs retumns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee

it facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes fo
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated stotement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases fo control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are affributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is atfributed fo the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group's accounting policies.

All infragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating fo transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership inferests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Changes in the Group's inferests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group's relevant components of equity and the non-
confrolling inferests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
affribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-confrolling interests according to the Group's and the
non-controlling interests” proportionate inferests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling inferests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and affribufed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests
(if any] are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any refained interest and (ii] the
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill], and
liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the
Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
fo profit or loss or fransferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment refained in the former subsidiary af
the dafe when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS @
Financial Instruments or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Opﬁonol concentration fest

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can elect to
opply an opﬁonol concentration fest, on a fransaction- by-
fransaction basis, that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is nof a
business. The concentration test is met if substantially all of
the fair value of the gross assefs acquired is concentrated in
a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable
assefs. The gross assefs under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting
from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration
test is met, the set of activities and assets is determined not
to be a business and no further assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assefs acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first fo
financial assets or financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other identifiable assefs and liabilities on
the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase.
Such a fransaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisitiondate fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group fo the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity inferests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Except for certain
recognition exemptions, the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of an asset and
a liability in the Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced by the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in

October 2010).
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(b)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assefs acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,

except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee

Benefits respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group enfered into fo
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
at the acquisition date [see the accounting policy
below):

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard: and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments [as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of
the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of
low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and
measured af the same amount as the relevant lease
liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared with
market terms.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-confrolling
inferests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment,
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held
interest in the acquiree (if anyl, the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are
initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable nef assefs or af fair value. The choice

of measurement basis is made on a fransaction-by-

transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
refrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
Od]usfmenfs that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumsfances that existed at the acquisition date.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(b)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent seftlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a
liability is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting
dates, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity inferest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control], and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income and measured under HKFRS @
would be accounted for on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had disposed directly of the previously
held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted refrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised at that dafe.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as esfablished at the dafe of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units ("CGU"| (or
groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest
level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A CGU |or group of CGUs| to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs| to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the CGU is less than ifs carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first fo reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated 1o the unit and then fo the other assets of
the unit on a pro-rafa basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit (or group of CGUs|.

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within
the group of CGUs, the atfributable amount of goodwill is
included in the defermination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the CGU (or a CGU within a group of CGUs), the
amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of
the relative values of the operation (or the CGU) disposed
of and the portion of the CGU (or the group of CGUs)

retained.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assefs less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straightline method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease

terms and 5-20 years

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2-5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Moulds 2-5 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected fo arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or refirement of an ifem
of property, plant and equipment is defermined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
fime in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or ofter the date of
initial application or arising from business combinations, the
Croup assesses whether a confract is or confains a lease
based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the confract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a confract

For a confract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or nonlease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative standalone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

Non-ease components are separated from lease component
on the basis of their relative standalone prices.

Shortterm leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption fo leases that have a lease ferm of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption
for lease of low-value assefs. lease payments on shorterm
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a sfraightline basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(e)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Rightofuse assefs

The cost of rightof-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease

liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

e any inifial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

®  an estimafe of cosfs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Rightof-use assefs in which the Group is reasonably certain
fo obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term is depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assefs are depreciated on a straightline basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(e)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In
caleulating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily deferminable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed paymenfs (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement dafe;

®  amounfs expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees; and

e payments of pendlties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to

terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accrefion and lease payments
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(e)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related rightof-use assets)
whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

*  the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts
for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right fo use one or more underlying assets;
and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriatfe
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability,
less any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(e)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
lease modifications (Continued)
Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess
whether the change is a lease modification if all of the
following conditions are met:

e the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

®  any reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

e there is no substantive change fo other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying
HKFRS 16 if the changes are not a lease modification.
Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for
as variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted fo reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with o
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in
the period in which the event occurs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Intangible assets
Infangible assefs acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried af costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straightline basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Infangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Infangible assefs acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their
fair value af the acquisition date.

Subsequent o initial recognition, intangible assefs acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are carried
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as infangible assets
that are acquired separately.

Infangible assets acquired in a business combination with
indefinite useful lives are carried af cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset,
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(9)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assefs and infangible assets other than goodwill with
finite useful lives to defermine whether there is any indication
that those assefs have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order fo determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
test for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is
an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU fo which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assefs are
allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the

relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-fax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continved)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated fo be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced o its recoverable
amount. For corporate assefs or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis o a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount
of a group of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assefs or portion of corporate assets allocated fo
that group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the
group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a proTata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs)
is increased to the revised estimate of ifs recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
defermined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs| in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

China Healthwise Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020

5. EESHBE®)

(9)

MK BERRE ERAEEER
BEE(BERN) 2BEE)

At EE (KRS EEEML) AT
CleRENEREE  MEE(ERE
EE B B REER R EE AT
TR RAREEAE—HEENEE
ReELBUZRAREELLD AR
BE ASESLEReELFENMA
AEEE(RREC I REZRSELE
MR Z AR BEEXRB D ARIEEN
fRmEE) BReEEBMHER 2 KD
TR - NOoRBERBER  BEREE
Bt B LA R ) 7 B 2 BRI ME (i
EA) RRIRBESELBNNIRSE
HEBEUERNASEEZREEMAL
FInEEEEMEE - BEEREENS
B B E QB & AR (20 AT
E) HEREEWRAIEE) RTZ
REE CARTTOEEEEZRER
BeRRUP o EERSELENY
ReELBMMARNZEMEE - BE
ERENR NIRRT -

R EBEREERD - AFESEE (K
B —dHReELASBMN)RAEEHR
RETEATEDSE  ERRASZ
FHETSEABRRIRNBEFELE
HREE(RE-—H—HEREeELEN)
ERBEBEMETE <KREE - RE
JE5 1R 1 Ol BN BERR AR U ©



5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(h)

Financial instruments

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assefs are recognised and derecognised
on a frade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assefs within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from Confracts with
Customers. Transaction costs that are directly affributable fo
the acquisition or issue of financial assefs and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assefs or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly affributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilifies af
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocafing inferest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rafe is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
fransaction cosfs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriafe, a shorfer period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(h)

100

Financial instruments (Continued)

Inferest income which is derived from the Group's ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assefs

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is fo collect confractual cash flows;
and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates fo

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income ["FVTOCI"):

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose obijective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect fo present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

®  on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattermn of
short+erm profitaking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and inferest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated creditimpaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
inferest rafe to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become creditimpaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rafe to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the creditimpaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
creditimpaired, inferest income is recognised by applying
the effective inferest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the defermination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assefs that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assefs at FVTPL are measured at fair value af the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the

“revenue” line item.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss ("ECL") model on financial assets which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade and
other receivables, deposits, loan receivables and bank
balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
period fo reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL ("12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessments are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific fo the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions af the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifefime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since inifial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as af the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as af the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-ooking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

®  an actual or expected significant deferioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

e significant detferioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability o meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deferioration
in the operating results of the debor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used fo identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate fo ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(h)

106

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Creditimpaired financial assets

A financial asset is credirimpaired when one or more
events of default that have a defrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credir-
impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

[a)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) @ breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating fo the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider:

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

le)  the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Irespective of the above, the Group considers that a
financial asset is creditimpaired when it is more than
Q0 days past due.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years
past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assefs
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group's recovery procedures, taking info
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
consfitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
The Group uses a practical expedient in esfimating
ECL on frade receivables using a provision matrix
taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
confractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the confract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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5.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
v} Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For collective assessment, the Group fakes info
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e External credit rafings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue fo
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial assef unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of frade and
other receivables and loan receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition/modification of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues fo
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
refained inferest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group refains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of @
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial assef and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual
cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are
modified, the Group assesses whether the revised ferms
result in a subsfantial modification from original terms taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances including
qudlitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers the terms are substantially different if
the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new ferms, including any fees paid net of any fees received,
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at
least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value
of the remaining cash flows of the original financial asset
after reducing gross carrying amount that has been written

off.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition,/modification of financial assets (Continued)

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial assets will be calculated af the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted at
the financial assets’ original effective interest rate.
Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted fo the
carrying amount of the modified financial assets and are
amortised over the remaining ferm.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any confract that evidences a residual
interest in the assefs of an entity after deducting all of ifs
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at

FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
lease liabilities, borrowings and debt element of convertible
loan notes are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective inferest method.

Convertible loan notes

The component parts of the convertible loan notes are
classified separately as financial liability and equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument. A conversion option that will be sefled
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
(including any embedded non-equity derivatives features) is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that
does not have an associated equity component.

A conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair
value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is
recognised and included in equity, nef of income fax effects,
and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium account. Where the conversion opfion remains
unexercised at the maturity dafe of the convertible note, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to
accumulated losses. No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss upon conversion or expiration of the conversion
option.

31 December 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements

M35 4R R B
—F-FFT-A=T—H

5. FESHBE®)

(h)

PREB R EERERAR

SRMIAE)
ERA BN ES(E)
EHMEE

MAETRBEERRABERNEER
B A I A AT ABRTE °

RBHERATEZERAE

cHMBE(ERES MEMENTA
HERBEURABREERRRZER
BB ) LR (0 A B A ZOR IR E SR A

HE

AR E R RE

MR ERRENAKRE D REE D
ZHOANBTUREREERER T A
MEESEBOELATHMBE L ES -
BEEBSABEEEREI S —HE
MEELDRETHENANRAANG 2
BTANSTAES YOBAERT
Ao

RETRE - AESD (BREEMRA
RS ITAERR) A FEBENE
WHEMEEESS D CBUREZRF
BEETTHAE -

DHEREE BRI EBIEEBRE
BIAZAREBETHGRARSS SR
BRETE YN REEALE K
PIEHEEATENERENTE -
SESN D R SR 2 B R R s
RE - BEERBREETERL - Eit
BRT  ERNESRER Z SR E R
ERMEER - WRRER AT RRE
BEIE R DARREITR - BB R AE
RZEREEBREREBER - N
REERRERS RSN IR TR
EfT iz s B 1R -

111

[
A
[
A
_FH
B




Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RMEE

31 December 2020

—E-EF+_A=+—H

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(h)

112

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Convertible loan notes (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
loan notes are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion fo the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relafing to the equity component
are charged directly fo equity. Transaction cosfs relating to
the |iobi|if\/ component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.

Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

When the contractual terms of a financial liability are
modified, the Group assess whether the revised terms result
in a substantial modification from original terms taking info
account all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers that the terms are substantially different
if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received,
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is af
least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value
of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
Accordingly, such modification of terms is accounted for as
an exfinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised
as part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. The
exchange or modification is considered as non-substantial
modification when such difference is less than 10 per cent.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Derecognition/modlification of financial liabilities

(Continued)

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted at
the financial liabilities’ original effective interest rate.
Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted fo the
carrying amount of the modified financial liabilities and are
amortised over the remaining ferm.

Offsefting a financial asset and a financial liability

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
infention to seftle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
seftle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are inifially recognised af cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, cosfs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the firstin first out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary fo
make the sale.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(i

114

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “confrol” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred fo the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service [or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the customer simulianeously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs;

e the Group's performance creafes or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group performs;
or

,
e the Group's performance does not create an asset

with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(i

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
confrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
fransfer goods or services fo a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

A confract asset and a contract liability relafing to the same
confract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Further details of the Group's revenue recognition policies
are as follows:

(il Sales of OBM toys and Chinese health products

Revenue from sales of OBM toys and Chinese health
products is recognised at a point in time when confrol
of the goods is transferred, being delivery of the
goods to the customers.

(i Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding af the applicable inferest rate.

(i) Sales of investment in financial instruments

Revenue from investment in financial instruments
includes realised fair value gains or losses on frading
investment on a trade date basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profits for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in profit or
loss because it excludes items of income and expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assefs and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statfements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination] of assets
and liabilities in a fransaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the inifial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assefs arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(k)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assefs and liabilities are measured af the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is setfled or the asset is realised, based on tox rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax assefs and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, fo recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilifies.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the rightofuse
assefs and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
defermines whether the tax deductions are affributable to the
rightof-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
affributable to the lease liabiliies, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements fo right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences on initial recognition of
the relevant rightof-use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised due fo application of the initial recognition
exemption. Temporary differences arising from subsequent
revision fo the carrying amounts of rightof-use assets and
lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject to
initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assefs and liabilities are offset when there is o
legally enforceable right to sef off current tax assefs against
current fax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

(h

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate fo items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency [i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are refranslated af the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are refranslated af the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
defermined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not refranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the sefflement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are franslated into the presentation currency of
the Group [i.e. HK$) at the exchange rate prevailing at the
end of the reporting period. Income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of
fransactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
fluctuation reserve.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(h

Foreign currencies (Confinued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group's entire inferest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained inferest becomes
a financial asset], all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
affributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
fo profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assefs and liabilities of that foreign operation
and franslated at the rate of exchange prevailing af the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Employee benefits
(i) Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
[other than fermination benefits) that are expected to
be setled wholly before twelve months after the end
of the annual reporting period in which the employees
render the related service. Short term employee
benefits are recognised in the period when the
employees render the related service.

(i)  Defined confribution refirement plan

Confributions to defined contribution refirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when
the services are rendered by the employees.

(iii)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in several defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes. A defined contribution plan is @
retirement benefit scheme under which the Group pays
confributions, on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis, info a separate entity. The schemes are generally
funded through payments to insurance companies or sfate/
trustee-administered funds. The Group has no further
payment obligafions once the confributions have been paid.
It has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets fo pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee service in
the current period and prior year.

The confributions are recognised as employment costs when
they are due and are reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the scheme prior fo vesting fully
in the contributions.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(o)

(p)

Share-based payments
Equity-seftled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted fo employees

Equity-seftled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-seftled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking info
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straightline basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's esfimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vesf, with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises ifs estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment fo the share option reserve.
For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited affer
the vesting date or are sill not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions aftaching to them and that the grants will be
received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Government grants (Continved)

Government granfs are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or
loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives
of the related asses.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under "Other revenue, gains and
losses, net”.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single coordinated plan
to dispose of a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view fo resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria o be
classified as held for sale if earlier. It also occurs if the
operation is abandoned.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(r

Discontinued operation (Continued)

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, which
comprises:

e the posttax profit or loss of the discontinued operation;
and

* the posttax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal, of the assets or disposal group constituting
the discontinued operation.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive] as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required fo sefile that obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to seftle the present obligation at
the end of the reporfing period, taking info account the risks
and uncerfainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
seffle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows.
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(v)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is nof recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes fo the consolidated financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an oufflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

Related parties

[a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related fo the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

[i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

i) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.
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5.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)
(u) Related parties (Continved)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is relafed fo the
others);

One entity is an associate or joinf venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member):

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is o postemployment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity);

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Company's
parent.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)
(u) Related parties (Continved)

A related party transaction is a fransfer of resources, service
or obligations between the Group and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic pariner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Estimates and judgements
are confinually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

[Continued)

(a)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those

involving esfimations (see below), that the directors of the

Company have made in the process of applying the

Group's accounting policies and that have the most

significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

consolidated financial statements.

(i)

Power to exercise significant influence

The Group investment in Global Masfermind Capital
Limited ["GMC") is classified as a financial asset at
FVTPL as disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated
stafements although the Group has 28% ownership
interest in GMC. The Group lacks any direct or
indirect involvement of the Group at board level of
GMC and does not participate in policy-making
related processes or activities of GMC. With these
facts and circumstances, the directors concluded that
despite the Group owns 28% of the ownership interest
of GMC, the Group dose not have significant
influence over GMC. The interests in GMC acquired
by the Group are just part of its capital investment
alongside with its invesiments in other listed or unlisted
securities portfolio.
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6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

[Continued)

(b)

128

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,

and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of

the reporting period that may have a significant risk of

causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

(i)

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation of
property, plant and equipment and rightof-use assets

The directors of the Company defermine the estimated
useful lives, residual values and related depreciation
charges for its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment and rightofuse assets
of similar nature and functions. The Group will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives
are less than previously estimated lives, it will write-off
or write- down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assefs that have been abandoned or sold. Actual
economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives;
actual residual values may differ from estimated
residual values. Periodic review could result in a
change in depreciable lives and residual values and
therefore depreciation expense in the future periods.
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6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
[Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

[i)  Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and rightof-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and rightof-use assets
are stated af costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In defermining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has fo exercise judgement and
make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has occurred or any indicators that may
affect the assef value; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, in the case of value in use, the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset; and (3] the
appropriate key assumptions fo be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash
flow projections and an appropriate discount rate.
When it is not possible fo estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use
assefs), the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit to which the assefs belong,
including allocation of corporate assets when a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, otherwise recoverable amount is
determined at the smallest group of cash generating
units, for which the relevant corporate assets have
been allocated. Changing the assumptions and
estimates, including the discount rates or the growth
rate in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the recoverable amounts. Furthermore, the cash
flows projections, growth rate and discount rate are
subject to greater uncerfainties in the current year due
fo uncertainty on how the Covid-19 pandemic may
progress and evolve and volatility in financial markets,
including potential disruptions in the Group's retail
operations.
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6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
[Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

[i)  Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and rightof-use assets (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, impairment losses of
HK$166,000 and HK$2,861,000 and (2019: nil
and HK$5,778,000) in respect of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets have been
recognised respectively. Details of the impairment of
property, plant and equipment and right-ofuse assets
are disclosed in Nofes 16 and 17 respectively.

(i) Incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily defermine the inferest rafe
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an
incremental borrowing rate (“IBR"] to measure lease
liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group
would have fo pay fo borrow over a similar term, and
with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of a similar value to the rightofuse asset in a
similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs fo be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the
lease. The Group esfimates the IBR using observable
inputs (such as market interest rafes) when available
and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit
rating).
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6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
[Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iv]  Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s unlisted
equity securities amounting to HK$2,611,000 (2019:
nil) are measured at fair value with fair value being
determined based on significant unobservable inputs
using valuation fechniques. Judgment and estimation
are required in establishing the relevant valuation
techniques and the relevant inputs thereof. Whilst the
Group considers these valuations are the best
estimates, the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic has
resulted in greater market volatility and may cause
further disruptions to the investees’ businesses, which
have led fo higher degree of uncertainties in respect
of the valuations in the current year. Changes in
assumptions relating to these facfors could result in
material adjustments to the fair value of these
instruments. Details are sef out in note 42.

(v)  Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
esfimated selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the hisforical
experience of selling products of similar nature. It
could change significantly as a result of changes in
cusfomer taste and competitor actfions in response fo
severe industry cycle. The directors of the Company
reassess the estimations at the end of each reporting
period.
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6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

132

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
[Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(vi]  Provision of ECL for trade and other receivables and
loan receivables

The Group uses practical expedient in esfimating ECL
on trade receivables which are not assessed
individually using a provision matrix. The provision
rates are based on aging of debtors as groupings of
various debtors taking into consideration the Group's
historical default rates and forward-looking information
that is reasonable and supportable available without
undue costs or effort. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

The Group assesses whether the probability of default
on a loan receivables or other receivables at the end
of the reporting period has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information including historical and
forward-looking information which is available without
undue cost or effort. The Group calculates ECL
allowance for loan receivables and other receivables
based on the estimated probability of default of
counterparties with similar credit ratings, with
adjustment to reflect the current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions, as
appropriate.

The ECL assessment on frade and other receivables
and loan receivables involves significant management
judgements and estimates on credit risk assessment,
the uses of models and inputs in the calculation of ECL
at the reporting date. Defails of ECL assessment are
disclosed in note 41.
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 7. WARDIHmE
An analysis of the Group's revenue from ifs principal activities for ERN/ AN EBEETBEBEELE Y IKA
the year/period is as follows: DT

Period from

Year ended 1 April 2019 to

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
RZE—NF

BZE MA—H=ZE

et St S —T-NF
+=A=+—-H t—A=+—H

LHFE HAR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT T
Continuing operations FEREER
Revenue from contracts with customers REBHBHREENE 155
within the scope of HKFRS 15: HERAZEEEHWA :
Trading of =
— Chinese health products — RS 111,768 88,827
Revenue from other sources: HebFRWA -
— Money lending business — MEES 30,285 21,470
— Investment in financial instruments —RESRTA (4,200) (2,390
26,085 19,080
137,853 107,907
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts REEFEHBATE
with customers mETTHE
Timing of revenue recognition from confracts ERRERPAEHRA Z R
with customers
— At a point in time — R—THEEEZ 111,768 88,827
Sales channels/market or type of customers HERE MiHREF AR
— Retail/individual customers — ZEAANES 72,320 61,412
— Wholesale/corporate customers — BB ERR 39,448 27,415
Total st 111,768 88,827
During the year ended 31 December 2020 and the period from REE-Z-_ZF+_A=+—HILEFER
1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019, the Group's revenue from —E-NAFHRA—HE-_ZEZ—hLF+=H
trading of Chinese health products is derived from Hong Kong. —t+—HIHEE > AEBEKAPERERE
SZWATIREEE °
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—E-EF+_A=+—H

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continved)

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operafing decision-maker (the “CODM”)
that are used to make strategic decisions.

The Group has four reportable and operating segments. The
segments are managed separately as each business offers
different products and requires different business strategies. The
following summary describes the operations in each of the
Group's reportable segments:

e Consumer electronic products: sale of consumer electronic
products

e Chinese health products: sale of Chinese health products

®  Money lending business: granting loans

e Investment in financial instruments: investing in financial
instruments

Segment revenue represents revenue generated from external
customers. There were no intersegment sales in current year and
prior period. Corporate income and expenses are not allocated
fo the operating segments as they are nof included in the measure
of the segments’ profit or loss that is used by the CODM for
assessment of segment performance.

The Group disposed of the OBM toys segment during the year
ended 31 December 2020. The CODM considered the necessity
of reporting the OBM toys segment separately under discontinued
operafion in accordance with HKFRS 5 as the OBM toys segment
was a separate maijor line of business of the Group.

The Group disposed of the consumer electronic products segment
1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019 to

match its business strafegy and improve its financial position. In

during the period from

the opinion of the directors of the Company, the disposal of
consumer electronic products segment does not constitute @
discontinued operation as it does nof represent a separate major
line of business of the Group during the prior period.
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31 December 2020 —ZE-ZTH+_-_F=+—H

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 7. WARDEREHE (&)

(a) Segment revenue and results (a) DWBAREE
Year ended 31 December 2020 BZz—T-—E&4+-_A=+—ALEF
E
Continuing operations o 435 40 AN 2 2

Chinese Money Investment

health lending in financial
products  business instruments Total

REER RESH
#m HEXE® I8 st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEx FRET FEx

Revenue to external customers HNEBE P IR 111,768 30,285 (4,200) 137,853
Segment loss before BrPTISH AT 9 B0 18
income tax (258)  (33,225) (11,281)  (44,764)
For the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019 R-ZE-NFHA-RE_T-NF
+TZA=+—HHHE
Continuing operations BT
Chinese  Consumer Money  Investment
health electronic lending in financial
producis producis business  instruments Others Tofal
R HER RESH
Bm ErEmR WEEHB IA Hity st

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
TET TET TET TET TET TET

(Note)

(Ff3E)
Revenue to external customers  SMNEBE P UL A 88,827 - 21,470 (2,390) - 107,907
Segment (loss)/profit before  BRFT1EH A1 5 &

income fax (E518),/ & H (18,421) (22,199 2,015 (60,791) 3,713 [95,683)

Note: Kiat -
Others reported above represents revenue and results generated by EXFERMEMEHENAEEEME
the sale of commercial kitchen products. EZWAREE -
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7.
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2 FF+-_A=+—H

cial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continved)

(a)

Segment revenue and results (Continved)

7. WARDEB®E #)
() DEURARELSE &)

Period from
Year ended 1 April 2019 o
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
N
—E-NF
BZE mA—BZ
e ap 25 —T-NF
t=A=+—-H +t—A=+—H
IEFE HAH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Confinuing operations FESEER
Reportable segment loss ARG EE (44,764) (95,683)
Unallocated inferest income RAOBF BUA = 3
loss on partial redemption of Bo@EL T RRERER
convertible loan notes 2B (1,248 -
Unallocated finance costs KO BERA (16,386) (16,639
Unallocated corporate [expenses)/income AABAR (LX) WA
— Govemment grant — BB E 216 -
— Staff costs — BIMAE (7,239) (8,039)
— legal and professional fee —ERKRBXER (643) (479)
— Others — Hity (2,865) 1,886
Consolidated loss before income tax KRETISTLRI4R A B8 (72,929) (118,951]
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continved)

Segment assets and liabilities

es to the Finan

Statements
M BT

31 December 2020 —E-_FF+_-_HA=+—H

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and

liabilities by reportable segment:

7. WARDEB®E )

THEEHREE

N TRAKERAREDHMETNE
ERAEZDMH:

At
31 December
2019
R-E-N%F
+ZA=+—8H
HK$'000
TET
Segment assets DHEE
Continuing operations FEREER
— Chinese health products — PERER 103,107
— Money lending business — MEXRH 281,299
— Investment in financial instruments —REEHMTA 138,811
523,217
Discontinued operation ERIEEERR
— OBM toys — BAmBRERA 68,346
Segment assets DEEE 591,563
Unallocated corporate assets RO RREE
— Cash and cash equivalents —ReLREEEY 6,346
— Other (Nofe) — Htb (M) 518
Consolidated fotal assets meaRERE 598,427
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7.

—E-TFETA=1—H

inancial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continved) 7. WARDHHRE &)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continved) AMEERER/ (&)
At At
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R=Z=ZF RKR_ZNF
+=A=+-8 t-A=+—~
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
Segment liabilities 2EMEE
Continuing operations FERERY
— Chinese health products — PERER 22,972 37,266
— Money lending business — BEE 2,295 5,494
— Investment in financial instruments —RERERIA 21,606 -
46,873 42,760
Discontinued operation RESIFSF 7
— OBM toys — BEmERETA - 112,217
Segment liabilities DEEE 46,873 154,977
Unallocated corporate liabilities RKARAFEE
— Convertible loan notes — IMRERER 85,500 110,038
— Others (Nofe) — Hith (Afat) 5614 6,739
Consolidated total liabilities i BERSE 137,987 271,754
Note: Other unallocated corporate assefs and liabilities include Hret Bt RA R EER BEREET
certain other receivables, deposits and prepayments, certain HiEWRIE - ke RENZKE &
other payables and accrual charges, certain tax payable THMEMNZFERESER &ETE
and deferred tax liabilities. FHE R R G A E -
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7

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continved)|
(c)

Other segment information included in segment

results or segment assets

Year ended 31 December 2020

Bank inferest income
Inferest expenses

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation of rightofuse assefs

Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment

Loss on writien off of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment loss on rightofuse assets

Impairment loss on loan
receivables, net

Impairment loss on frade and
ofher receivables

Fair value loss on financial assets
at FVTPL, net

Employee coss (including
directors’ remuneration)

Additions o property,
plant and equipment

Additions fo rightofuse assef
Other segment information

regularly provided to CODM:

Income tax expense/(credi)

RITMEHA
MEFX

nE - BELRERE

EREBENE

nE  BERRERE

B

fsEmE - BERRELZ

EREEEREER

EURERREBRFE

R E 78R Bt

IR 2 BERR

BRVEFARG SR
BEZAHEBREFR

REMKA
(BREZHD)

REME - BERR

FEEAEAE
EREAREEY
RENEIHH

B

g/ (H%)

o the Finan

P35 4R W PA X

31 December 2020 —E-_FF+_-_HA=+—H

7. WARDEB®E )

(c) ZDEFREAIDIMEEZEMDHE

#

BE_2_FF+-A=1t—-HL#HF
E

PEBLRELRERAT —T-BFH
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7.

(c)

140

ial Statements

2 FF+-_A=+—H

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continved)

Other segment information included in segment
results or segment assets (Continued)

For the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019

7. WARDBHE @)

(c)

B(#)
RZF-NFHA-BEZFT-NF

+=-—A=+—HHM

Continuing operations

DERER D MEE 2 Eftb 7 HE

FBEEEY
Chinese  Consumer Money  Investment
health  electronic lending in financial
products  products business  instruments Others  Unallocated Total
RER HER ®E
R  BFER HEXK SRIA Hity AOR @it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TET TAT TET TAT TET TAT
Bank inferest income RITMERA - - (164) - - 3) (167)
Inferest expenses FEHT 834 - 189 - - 16,639 17662
Depreciation of properly, nE  BERRENE
plant and equipment 490 - - - - - 490
Depreciation of rightofuse assets FREEENE 7,859 - 1,466 - - - 9,325
Impairment loss on rightofuse assets A EERERE 5778 - - - - 5778
Impairment loss on loan receivables, net  [EMEFREBIEFE - - 5,593 - - - 5,593
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries, net HEWBAR ZBEFE - - - - - 13,991 13,991
Fair value loss on financial assets RATEHARRZZ
of FVTPL, net SRAEZDTE
BRFE - - - 58,094 - - 58,094
Impairment loss on infangible assets EREERESR 5,004 - - - - - 5,004
Impairment loss on goodwill BHEREER 614 - - - - 614
Employee costs [including I3=1%N
directors’ remuneration (BHEEZHE) 15,926 - 8,416 - - 8,039 32,381
Additions o property, RENE  BERSE
plant and equipment 374 - - - - 374
Additions fo rightofuse assefs NEFREEE 11,286 - - - - - 11,286
Other segment information BERBERRETH
regularly provided to CODM: RENEMD
g
Income fax (credif]/expense R (%) FX (840) - 1177 - - 928 1,265

China Healthwise Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020



7.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continved)

(d)

Geographical information

Information about the Group's revenue from continuing
operations from external customers and non-current assets by
geographical region, according fo location of operations or
the location which the products are delivered and the
location of assets, is as follows:

es to the Finan tatements
B F R =P 5
31 December 2020 —ZE-_TF+_-_A=+—H

7. WARDEHRE &)
d) #wEEH
AR B (. 11 48 P A T2 8 R E MR
WEHE AEANEEEELLER
TRANBEEZMARERDEE
BRI :

Revenue Non-current assets (Note (i)

United States of America  EB R IE A
and Canada
Hong Kong (Note fil) & (PifaE i)

Nofes:
(i) Excluding deferred tax assets and financial instruments.

(i) Revenue from inferest income, dividend income and sale of
financial instruments are disclosed by location of operations.

KA FRBEE (KEE()

Period from

1 April

2019 to

31 December
2019 2019

—Z-NF

MA—BZE

—E-NnE

+-A=+—8~
=il —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT

- 679
107,907 16,298
107,907 16,977

Wt
[} TEEREHBEEERSBTA-

i) FBWA BERARBESHITAE
WA TR L B -
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2 FF+-_A=+—H

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(e)

142

Information on major customers:

Revenue from major customers who have individually
contributed to 10% or more of the fotal revenue of the
Group from continuing and discontinued operations are
disclosed as follows:

7. WARDEB®E #)

(e)

EFREFZER:
KEBEMNEMAEEREIHELLHE
BREKIEREEBRERABS 2+
FNENEREPZBARENT

Period from

1 April

Year ended 2019 1o

31 December 31 December

2020 2019

—ENE

MA—HZE

BZE —ZT-hF

Z2-2F t-HA=1+—H

+=A=+—H LEHAR

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Cusfomer A EEA N/A? R R 2 53,846
Customer B ZFB N/A? & i 2 32,213
! Included in the OBM toys segment which was discontinued ! FFABBEREBRETANE - Z0Eb
during the year ended 31 December 2020. ERE#EZE_ZT-_TF+_HA=+—H

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of
the total revenue of the Group from continuing and
discontinued operations.

Except disclosed above, no other external customer
contributed 10% or more to the Group's revenue from
continuing and discontinued operations for both periods.
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8.

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

es to the Finan

tatements
M T|ME

31 December 2020 —E-_FF+_-_HA=+—H

Continuing operations

Bank inferest income

Fair value loss on financial assets
at FVTPL, net

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries, net

Loss on partial redemption of
convertible loan notes

Loss on written off of property,
plant and equipment

Government grants

Rent concession

Others

RITH S A
BAVEABRSZEREEL
R EERFE
HEMBRARZER  F8
MoBEE AR ERER 2 EE

fiSiEYE S IS E gl 5
BB &

HeEs
Hitp

8. HAWA - WmEREE  F8E

Period from

1 April 2019 to
31 December
2019
RZZE—NF
mA—H=Z=

HAfA
HK$'000
TET

167

[58,094)
[13,991)
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9.

(a)

(b)

144

—E-EF+_A=+—H

LOSS FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD

9. AFE HHEEIR

Continuing operations (o) HERKEEK
Loss for the year/period from continuing operations is RERBEQQER Y KEE HBREE
arrived at after charging: BIYEING T & IEEEYE
Period from
Year ended 1 April 2019 1o
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
RZE—NEF
BZE WA—H=Z=
—E-EF —FE-NF
+=A=+—-H +=-—A=+—H
IEFE HAfE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAR 69,127 55,178
Auditors’ remuneration Z SN <
— audit services — ZERT 1,400 1,900
— non-audit services — BT 129 252
1,529 2,152
Depreciation of property, plant and YE - B REETE
equipment 394 490
Depreciation of right-ofuse assefs FRAREERE 8,354 9,325
Employee costs (excluding directors’ EERA(TEEESRNE)
emoluments) (Note 14) (Hiat14) 22,624 21,851
Directors’ emoluments (Note 15) E=Pe (Wi 15) 14,515 10,530
Shortterm leases expenses REHER X 2,141 4,619
Discontinued operation (b) BRAILKEEL

On 19 August 2020, the Group entfered into sale and
purchase agreements to dispose the entire equity inferests in
LC Global Holdings Corporation, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and ifs respective subsidiaries,
(collectively referred to as the “"Disposal Group”), which
engaged in sale of OBM toys. The disposal was completed
on 30 October 2020, the date on which the control of the
Disposal Group passed fo the acquirer. The profit for the
period from the discontinued OBM toys business is sef out
below. The comparative figures in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
have been restated to re-present the OBM toys business as
a discontinued operation.
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LOSS FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD (Continued)

Discontinued operation (Continued)

31 December 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements

35 40 R B o
—F-FFT-A=T—H

9. XEE HBEEE®
(b) B IEEE R 2

Period from Period from
1 January 1 April
2020 to 2019 fo
30 October 31 December
2020 2019
R=B-BF RN_T-NF
—A—H=ZE MA—BZE
—E-FFE —E-FTF
+tA=+H +-A=+—H
HE HAfE]
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Revenue WA 140,073 202,062
Cost of sales SHE R (110,448 (164,037
Gross profit EF 29,625 38,025
Other revenue, gains and losses, net EHag A - Wzs N B ie s 5 619 (2,094)
Selling and distribution expenses HE R Y (16,623) (27,928)
General and administrative expenses —MRRATEHF X (12,708) (11,383
Finance costs B RN (1,100) (1,393
Impairment loss under expected credit HHEEBEEREET 2
loss model REER = (2,603)
loss before gain on disposal of operation BRHEREEBRRRER
and income tax PRAS T AT B 18 (187) (7,376)
Gain on disposal of operation HELEXB NS 46,227 -
Profit/(loss) before income tax from BRIREERIEREETR
discontinued operation Frisiallas (E18) 46,040 (7,376)
Income tox (expense]/credit s (A%) H&e (1,981) /18
Profit/(loss) for the period from HINR B ER LR ERBH
discontinued operation Wi/ (E8) 44,059 (6,658)
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9. LOSS FOR THE YEAR/PERIOD (Continved) 9. XEE HIEEIE®)
(b) Discontinued operation (Continved) (b) BERIKEER &)

Period from Period from

1 January 1 April

2020 to 2019 to

30 October 31 December

2020 2019

R-E-ZEF RZT—NF

—HA—HBZ WMA—H=ZE

t Sl 33 —TTF

tA=+tHB +-HA=+—H

HA R HAR

HK$'000 HK$'000

FiExT FAT

Profit/{loss) for the period from discontinued HRZREER IR X 2
operation has been arrived at after charging: wH(E18) BNk

WTEREH -

Cost of inventories sold HeEFERA 110,448 164,037
Auditors’ remuneration %A & 81 593
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% « B R EITE 1,163 797
Depreciation of rightofuse assets FREEENE 676 375
Employee costs B IR 5,960 6,017
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment H&EWZE - iE MR E 2 B8 - 247
Loss on written off of property, plant and WEME - BEMREZER

equipment 4 -
Research and development costs (included in A (GEA—R K

general and administrative expense| THEX) 2,943 2,250
Cashflow of the discontinued operation for HADKRIEREEB  Re

the period were as follows: MELAT
Net operating cash (outflow)/inflow KERE R,/ RAFE (13,152) 2,856
Net investing cash inflow/(outflow] BEBERA Cid) F8 3,867 (11,087)
Net financing cash inflow MERIMAFR 10,501 5,233
Total cash inflow/[outflow] BRLHEACR) 1,216 (2,998
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31 December 2020 —ZE-ZTH+_-_F=+—H

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. MEMRA

Period from
1 April
Year ended 2019 to
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
RZZE—NF
BZE MA—HZE
—EC-EE —E-nF
+=ZA=+—H +=-—A=+—H
IEFE HAfE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T

Continuing operations BEREER
Interest on borrowings BERE 1,605 3
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE 856 1,023
Interest on convertible loan notes AR ERZERNE 16,386 16,636
18,847 17,662

11.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 8.25% on the estimated
assessable profits up to HK$2,000,000 and 16.5% on any part
of the estimated assessable profits over HK$2,000,000. No
Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided for the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong for the current year and prior period as
they either did not derive any assessable profits from Hong Kong
or had estimated fax losses brought forward fo offset against the
estimated assessable profifs.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China ("PRC") on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT law"] and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT law, the tax rafe of the PRC subsidiary is
25% for the current year and prior period.

No Enferprise Income Tax has been provided as the Company’s
subsidiary in the PRC did not derive any assessable profits from
PRC for the current year and prior period.

11. i8R (E&) Bx

FEENERDREFTRERRNENREZ —B8
BITH B 2 2 \B — T R fh 5 E SR B 7
BoBEEETNEANSONBESZ TR
AHE - ARAFEIEEMEARFNEE
BB A B W AR E B E A A ERBORT
IRAR B (A R DR B 18 DA SH 5T R R Bt
A Bt R E R RHEHEE NG5
e

REHEARKME ([HE ) BEMEBE
(TREMBHIE]) REEMERIAERIF
Bl BB A RN AEE SR T IR AR
EHBADZ_TH-

RN AR A B E A RN AFE FoRE
IR AR B ELEAERTOET - Bt
WARZERAWEL RS -
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11. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continved)

The amount of income tax (credit)/expense in the consolidated

ial Statements

11. iB8H (ER) Bk @®
SEBETREMETEREZRAZTER (K

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income %) /BY e
represents:
Period from
1 April
Year ended 2019 to
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
RZE—NF
BE WA—H=Z=
—B-EF —E-NEF
+=—B=+—H +=-—A=+—H
IHFE BRI
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT
Continuing operations BEEEXER
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEW
— Current tax — BIHARRIE = 1,101
— (Over)/underprovision in respect — BATFE (BERE)
of prior years BETR (18) 3,832
Deferred tax ERERIE (3,630) (3,668)
Income tax [credit)/expense Fri5®i GR%), ik (3,648) 1,265
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11. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continved)

The income tax (credit)/expense for the year/period can be

reconciled to the loss before income tax from continuing
operations in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

A 365 86 R B i

31 December 2020 —ZE-ZTH+_-_F=+—H

1. FrB%H (ER) B (&)
EX AR (ES), X ERNGA1E
HREMRE R R S S
CRFERAEEEENT -

Period from
1 April
Year ended 2019 1o
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
RZZE—NF
BE mA-AZ=
—E-BHE —ZE-NF
+=A=+—-H +t-HA=+—H
LEE HARE
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TFHETT
Continuing operations BEEEEK
loss before income tax B PR T AT B 18 (72,929 (118,951)
Tax calculated at the applicable tax REABE(AOoZ tREH)
rate of 16.5% STHEZBIEA (12,033 (19,627)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries HAth RhE R &€& 2 M B AR
operating in other jurisdictions TRAMKRZZE (15) -
Tax effect of income not taxable BAEMTBR AR5 2
for tax purposes (952) (87)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible NIRRT E
for fax purposes 2,034 16,610
(Over)/under-provision in respect of prior years B 4 & (FBEBEME ) B ET 2 (18) 3,832
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERHEEHENT G E 7,027 1,917
Utilisation of tax losses previously not PRBERERATIAEE
recognised - (?5)
Others HAh 309 (1,285
Income tax (credit)/expense Frig®i (K%),Fx (3,648) 1,265
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12. DIVIDENDS 12. RE
The directors do not recommend any dividend in respect of the EEfEERNREE S -_T4+ A
year end 31 December 2020 [period from 1 April 2019 to 31 S+ —BIEEZEABE (T — AEN
December 2019: Nlil). A—HZ2-_ZE—NAF+-_A=+—HILH
fal - 4) o
13. EARN|NGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 13. @EQE*U/(EE)

Period from
Year ended 1 April 2019 fo
31 December 31 December

2020 2019
R_T—NF
BE MA—RB=Z=
—EIEF —E-NF
+=A=+—H +t-A=+—H
IEFRE HAfA
HK cents HK cents
724l Al
(restated)
(E751)
Continuing and discontinued operations BEREXBRERIEREXRK
Basic and diluted loss per share (Nofe) FRREAR L EEEE (M) (3.25) (15.34)
Continuing operations FESEER
Basic and diluted loss per share (Note) BREARREGEE () (8.94) (14.52)
Discontinued operation ERIEREER
Basic and diluted eamings/(loss) BRERREERF
per share (Note) (Es18) (Hat) 5.69 (0.82)
Note: No adjustment is made in arriving at diluted earnings/loss per Mt RBE-Z-_EF+_-_A=+—RHIFE
share for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the period from EZZE—hAFNA—HBEZE-_ZE—NF+=
1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019 as the effect of all potential R=+—HHM BRRERERITRE
ordinary shares from convertible loan notes outstanding is anti- EREROMAECERRARBEYE
dilutive. Rt &t E = REFRFEEEL

A
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13. EARN|NGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued)

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share
affributable to owners of the Company is based on the following

es to the Finan tatements

P35 4R W PA X

31 December 2020 —E-_FF+_-_HA=+—H

13. #RERN,(BE) @

ARBEEANEEGREAREERMN, (B
1B) RBEA T BURRTE -

data:
Period from
1 April 2019 to
31 December
2019
RZZE—NF
WMH—HBZ
—E-NF
+=ZA=+—8
HAf
HK$'000
TFHT
(restated)
(&%)
Loss for the year/period attributable to AUFTESREAR B ERE
owners of the Company from RRREE NEIEFBERE
continuing operations, used g 2N, ENEE
in the basic and diluted loss
per share calculations (117,687)
Profit/(loss) for the year/period affributable to  FBLAGT E &R EA K ESERF
owners of the Company from (B18) 2N RARHAE A
discontinued operation, used JEEE RIS
in the basic and diluted eamings/loss FR/ENET] BB
per share calculations (6,658)
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13. EARN|NGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued)

13. BRER,(&8) @)

Period from
Year ended 1 April 2019
31 December  fo 31 December
2020 2019
—T-hEF
'8z mMA—B=E
R-B-2F —E-NF
+=A=+—-H +ZHA=+—H
LEFE LEHAE
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary AU EERERNIEERF],
shares for the purposes of basic and Bz TR NET52E

diluted earnings/loss per share

774,981,861 810,795,454

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose
of basic earnings/loss per share has been adjusted for the share
consolidation effective on 25 September 2020. Comparative
figure have also been adjusted on the assumption that the share
consolidation had been effective in the prior period.
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es to the Finan tatements
B F R =P 5
31 December 2020 —ZE-_TF+_-_A=+—H

14. EMPLOYEE COSTS 14. BERA
Employee costs (excluding directors’ emoluments) comprise: BERA(TEEZEERS) B
Period from
1 April 2019 1o
31 December
2019
R-E—NF
MA—HZE
—E-NEF
+TZR=+—H
Hif
HK$'000
THET
Continuing operations BEREXE
Basic salaries and discretionary bonus BEXR & REBIEA 20,910
Shortterm non-monetary benefits EHIIEE RN 64
Contributions to defined contribution ERRMETURR SR 2 3R
refirement plans 877
21,851
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31 December 2020 —E-—FE#+=-H=+—H

15. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 15. EEREREEABZHE
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments () ES=EMS
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable to BNRENMRATES Y S A5
the directors of the Company are as follows: T
Period from
Year ended 1 April 2019 1o
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R-E—NF
BE MA—RAZE
— —ENF
+=A=+—-H +t=-A=+—H
IEFE HAr
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Directors’ fee EEWE 7,974 5,621
Other emoluments: Hi e :
Basic salaries, discretionary bonus, EX#FHE - BB
housing and other allowances and E5 MHE 2R K&
benefits in kind BN &= 6,487 4,867
Provident fund scheme contributions NESFTEI 2K 54 42
14,515 10,530
No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the FRAR AEETERE SN
directors as an inducement fo join or upon joining the e EBIMARSEB K IIAREEE
Group or as compensation for loss of office during the ZRERER/RRERBL ZEEE - RA
period/year. No directors waived their emoluments in HEMBEFE UVEBEENERSF
respect of the current year and prior period. ZBE -
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15. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The emolument of each director for the year ended to 31
December 2020 is sef out below:

P35 4R W PA X

31 December 2020 —E-_FF+_-_HA=+—H

BExME @)

BE-_T-ZTF+-A=+—BLItHF
B BREEZMEREINMT

Name of director ESft2
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Lei Hong Wi PHRRE
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elion REELE
Mr. leung Alex SR
Ms. Lo Ming Wan CLiE e
Mr. Tse Chi Keung IRV
Mr. Yuan Hui Xia REERE
Independent non-execufive BUFUES
directors

Mr. Lo Hok lim REREE
Mr. Lien Wai Hung BRERE
Mr. Won g Tak Chuen EERRE
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inancial Statements

15. DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

156

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

15. BEEREREEBAEZHME @

The emolument of each director for the period from 1 April

2019 to 31 December 2019 is set out below:

(a)

EEB S ()
R-B-NEMA-RE-FT-NE
+ZA=t-AHY SEFzM
#IIMT -

Housing
Basic slories and other Equitysetlled
and  dllowonces Provident ~ share'based
discrefionary  and benefs ~ fund scheme payment
Name of director Esfs Fees bonus inkind  confrbutions expenses Totol
(5 REfM WEREE
£5Fe BER  ABEHEZ MR ARR
we  REERA BN #5 HRTRER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn BT
Execuive directors YrES
Mr. Lei Hong Wai PHERE 3,060 - - - - 3,060
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elfon REBRE
[oppoined on 28 Ociober 2019)  (W=E—-N%F
TRZT)\REZE) 21 - - - - 21
Mr. leung Alex ATESE 90 2633 - 14 - 2737
Ms. Lo Ming Wan CLE e 90 712 - 14 - 816
Mr. Tse Chi Keung EIEEvi%s 90 1522 - 14 - 1,626
Mr. Yuan Hui Xia REERE 1931 - - - - 1931
Non-executive director FUTES
M. Dio Yunfeng N2EFE
[resigned on 28 Ociober 2019)  (W=E—-N%F
TRZTN\BEM) 69 - - - - 69
Independent non-execufive BUFHTES
direcors
M. Lai Hok Lim RERTE 90 - - - - 90
Mr. Lien Wai Hung BRERE 90 - - - - 90
M. Won g Tok Chuen EEREE 90 - - - - 90
5,621 4,867 - 42 - 10,530
Five highest paid individuals (b) EUEZSHMAL

Five (for the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December
2019: five) directors whose emoluments are disclosed in the

analysis presenfed above were among the five individuals

whose emoluments were the highest in the Group during the

year ended 31 December 2020.
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2020

16. Y% - BMERRE

Notes to the Financial Statements

A 365 86 R B i

—F-FFT-A=T—H

Furniture,
leasehold ~fixtures and Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Moulds Total
HE GH-£E
WELE R RE BA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AL TER TET TR
At 31 March 2019 R-E-AF=ZA=1+—H
Cost A 2,242 6,247 288 21,677 30,454
Accumulated impaiment 25TRE [177) (407) (205) (10,145) (10,922)
Accumulated depreciation 25t E (1,944) (4,826) (83) (9.736) (16,589)
Net book value ER¥E 127 1,020 - 1,796 2,943
Net book amount RZE-NEFNA—HYZ
at 1 April 2019 REFE 127 1,020 - 1,796 2,943
Additions = 288 266 - 2717 3,271
Disposals He - 128 - (375) (247)
Depreciation charge WEYH (242) (502) - (543) (1,287)
Exchange differences AR 104 - - 119 223
Net book value at R-ZB-hE+-A=1—-H
31 December 2019 ZEEFE 277 912 - 3,714 4,903
At 31 December 2019 RIE-AE+-A=1-H
Cost A 881 5,497 - 24,394 30,772
Accumuloted impaiment Z:HRE - - - (10,145) (10,145)
Accumulated depreciafion 2:iE (604 (4,585) - (10,535 (15,724
Net book value FEFE 277 912 - 3,714 4,903
Net book amount at RZTZTF-A—-Hz
1 January 2020 FEFE 277 912 - 3714 4,903
Additions NE /9 201 - 4,238 4518
Depreciation charge WEYH (163 (438) - (954) (1,557)
Disposal of subsidiary [Nofe 33) HEWBAR (M 33) - (29¢6) - (6,998 (7,294)
Impairment A - (166) - - (166)
Wiritten off iz (4) () - - ©)
Net book value at WZZ-ZF+-R=+—-H
31 December 2020 ZEEFE 187 208 - - 395
At 31 December 2020 WZZ-ZF+-RA=+—H
Cost A 325 1,084 - - 1,409
Accumulated impaiment Z:HRE - (166) - - (166)
Accumulated depreciation e [138) (710) - - (848)
Net book value EEEE 187 208 - - 395
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Confinued)

158

Notes:

(al

(b)

As at 31 December 2019, fixture and equipment with carrying
amount of HK$379,000 were pledged to secure designated
banking facility and borrowing (Note 28).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, as the Group
continued fo record losses for several retail shops of the Chinese
health products segment, the directors of the Company considered
there was indication for impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets with carrying amount of
HK$166,000 and HK$2,861,000 [Note 17) respectively. The
Group estimates the recoverable amount of those retail shops, each
representing a CGU, fo which the assefs belong when it is not
possible to esfimate their recoverable amount individually, including
allocation of corporate assets when reasonable and consistent
basis can be established.

The recoverable amount of CGUs was based on the value in use
calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the directors of the Company
covering a five-year period, and prettax discount rate of 16%.
Other key assumption for the value in use calculation relates to the
estimation of cash flows which include budgeted sales, such
estimation is based on the CGUs' past performance and the
directors’ expectations for the market development. The growth rate
used fo exfrapolate the cash flows beyond the five-year period is
3%, which do not exceed the longterm growth rate for the industry
in the corresponding country. As at 31 December 2020, the
recoverable amounts of the CGUs are nil. Accordingly, full
impairment loss of HK$ 166,000 and HK$2,861,000 in respect
of property, plant and equipment and rightof-use assets (Note 17)
affributable to these CGUs was recognised.

No impairment loss is recognised for the Group’s property, plant
and equipment for the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December
2019 upon the completion of impairment assessment as set out in

Note 18.

China Healthwise Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020

16. 1% - BMERZE @

et -

(al

(b)
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NREERTREREERFEER(HZ
28) o

HE T TF=-A=+—HItFE H
RASE ZMFEREHTEEHITE
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BREREEE (M 17) REED I+~
BERATALE_ANTRE—FTAT K
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17. LEASES 17
Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

The Group leases a number of refail shops and office properties in
the jurisdictions from which it operates. Cerfain leases of retail
shops comprise variable lease payments that depends on the
original monthly sales of those refail shops if the amounts are
higher than the original monthly rental. The rest of leases comprise
only fixed payments over the lease terms.

. HE

HEFBAME (UEBASD)

AEERHEEMENRZRBHES TS
ERMERAYE - ETTERREERR
FRMENT . RENKBRNZEZTER
W AEHER(RNZEESRHAE
He) S THEESFERERRNEEN

e
A °

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-nEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Buildings leased for own use, carried e HHSBHRENET
at depreciated cost (LI ER AT ER) 3,100 12,074

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in
profit or loss is as follows:

S 7E B 2550 TR TE B B B A0 TE B ST
mT

Period from
Year ended 1 April 2019 to
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
RZE—NF
B=E MA—BZE
—2o2H —E-NF
t=A=+—-B +Z-A=t—H
ILFE HAFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TETT
Variable lease payments not included in Rt ATHE B EFTEMFENHEEN K
the measurement of lease liabilities - 16
Shortterm lease expense REAHER X 2,141 4,619
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17. LEASES (Continued)

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)
(Continued)

The tofal cash oufflow for leases for the year ended 31 December
2020 was HK$15,710,000 (for the period from 1 April 2019 to
31 December 2019: HK$14,975,000).

No potential future rental payments relating to leases not yet
commenced is committed as af 31 December 2020.

Potential future rental payments relating to leases not yet
commenced fo which the Group is committed as at 31 December
2019 are as follows:

17. &)
HETHHME CUREASH)(2)

HE-_Z-ZF+-_A=+—HLEFENAE
EReREEBELE—THRE LT —88t(/A
TE-AEMA-BE_Z—HAFE+_-A
=t+—HUIEHM: —FTEEAT+EERTHS
TT) °
RZZEZZTF+-A=+—0 ' BEEEAH
RARFBHEENE BEEARRBEMNK -

HAKER_Z—-NFT+A=+T—HEKA
BARFBHEFENBERKEE NN
T

Later than
one year and

Not later than

not later than

one year two years Total
iR —F
Property L/ES THEiE—F BLRME et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Retail shop TEMW 816 816 1,632
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17. LEASES (Continved)

Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RMEE
31 December 2020 —E=-ZTF+_-_F=+—H

17. & @)

Right-of-use assets FREEE
The carrying amount of the Group's rightof-use assets and the AEBNERESE EREREFEEHMN
movements are as follows: T
Buildings
BF
HK$'000
FHET
A1 April 2019 R-Z—hn&EmA—H 15,290
Additions NE 12,262
Depreciation e (2,700
Impairment (Nofe 18(al) B (B 7E 18(a) (5,778)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R_ZE—hF+=-F=+—H
rZEZTF—H—H 12,074
Additions nE 3,272
Depreciations e (9,030)
Impairment (Note 16) WAE (B 16) (2,861)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 33) HEMB AR (M 33) (355)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-BHF+-A=+—H 3,100

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of the Group's lease liabilities
movements are as follows:

HESE

and the AEEWHERBEZRAENREZFHNT

Buildings

BF

HK$'000

THET

At T April 2019 RZE—hFMA—H 15,290

Additions NE 12,262

Inferest expense FERE 1,078

lease payments HE K (10,340)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R-ZE—NEFE+-_A=1+—HEK

N e 18,290

Additions wnE 3,272

Interest expense MEMX 902

Lease payments HEMSRK (13,569)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 33) HEMB AR (M 33) (580)

At 31 December 2020 R=B=-EF+=-A=+—H 8,315
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17. LEASES (Continved) 17. & &)
Lease liabilities (Continued) HEEEE)
Future lease payments are due as follows: KRS ZDN SR
Present value
Minimum lease of minimum
payments Interest  lease payment
REASE
REAEN FE RBEE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
At 31 December 2020 R-B-EF+=-A=+-—H FHT FHxT FHxT
Nof later than one year TBim—F 6,923 (748) 6,175
Later than one year and B —FEIRME
not lafer than two years 2,204 (64) 2,140
Later than two years and HERMFEIREF
not later than five years - - -
9,127 (812) 8,315

Present value

Minimum lease of minimum

payments Inferest  lease payment

=IEEE

=IEBENRK IS NFRIRE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

At 31 December 2019 RZZE-—NF+-_A=1+—H FAETT FAETT FA&TT

Not later than one year TEE—F 12,855 (821) 12,034
Later than one year and iR —FEDIRRE

nof later than two years 5,183 (219) 4,964
Later than two years and BEWFEIHRRESF

not later than five years 1,317 (25) 1,292

19,355 (1,065) 18,290

The present value of future lease payments are analysed as: KAEBERNZZIREDHOT :

2020 2019

—E_EF —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Current liabilities REEE 6,175 12,034

Non-current liabilities EREBEE 2,140 6,256

8,315 18,290
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17. LEASES (Continved)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

18.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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31 December 2020 —ZE-ZTH+_-_F=+—H

17. & @)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the incremental
borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities range from 5.63% to
9.53% (for the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019:

5.63% to 7.80%)

As at 31 December 2020, lease liability of HK$693,000 (2019:
HK$2,676,000) related to lease contracts entered info between
the Group and a fellow subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of

the Company.

HERE#E)

BHE_T_TF+_A=+—HILFE &
RAREEREMNENERNENFESZA
BA=EADPZNHBERE=(ZZT—-N5F0OA
—HEZFT-NAF+-_A=+—HLLHH:
BAZEHAR=2A02tHN\T)-

R-_ZE-_ZTF+_A=+—H HEEE
AThAB=ZFEFE(ZZF— h &F:
ZEATEEBATEL) NEBRAEEH
AABl—BEBRENR R BAGFTEIL
WHEESL -

GOODWILL 18. B8
2020 2019
= —FNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRET TAT
Cost AR
At the beginning of the period N =HE 95,990 95,990
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 33) HEMEB AR (A 33) (95,376) -
At the end of the period HERR 614 95,990
Accumulated impairment ZEE
At the beginning of the period R ERH) 95,990 95,376
Impairment loss recognised HimiER R ER R
in the period - 614
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 33) HEMEB AR (AT 33) (95,376) -
At the end of the period HERR 614 95,990
At the end of the period REAR
Cost A 614 95.990
Accumulated impairment ZiHRE (614) (95,990
Net carrying amount FREFE - -
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18. GOODW/ILL (Continued)

Goodwill acquired in business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the CGU that is expected to benefit from that
business combination. For the purpose of impairment testing, cost
of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives were
allocated to CGU identified as follows:

Cost B
— Chinese health products (Nofe) — FREREE R
(Kiat)
— OBM foys — BAmEEE
b7 =8
Accumulated amortisation and S EENORE
impairment
— Chinese health products (Nofe) — PR R
(Kiat)
— OBM foys — BAmEEE
b7 82N
Net carrying amount BREFE

164 China Healthwise Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020

18. B8 #®)

BREGAFEB L AERKEROEER
WA e X B A S RS ELEEM - UK
BRARME - AERAARAFERAER
FHNEBVEESIKECHNZIREELE
frgn

Goodwill Infangible assets (Nofe 19)
e B EE(MF19)
2019 2019
—T-hF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT




18. GOODW/ILL (Continved)

Notes: (Continued)

Chinese health products

As at 31 December 2019, the recoverable amount of the CGU of
Chinese health products has been determined from value in use
caleulations by an independent third party valuer, APAC Appraisal and
Consulting Limited, based on cash flow projection from formally approved
budget covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are exirapolated using an eslimated weighted average growth rate
of 3%, which does not exceed the longterm growth rate for the industry in
the corresponding country.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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31 December 2020 —ZE-FTF+-A=+—H

18. & (#)

Hfet - (&)

PERRR

RZE-NF+_A=1+—B h#ERER2H
SEEBMMAINOSET BB E =7 HEM
TAMGENBERARARRERBEERXIESN
MERFHMRENEREBRAREREE
HAEE - B AFHENRSREERMGF
MEFIGRERAY) 2 ZHE - ZERXTBB
HERRTERNNRAERE -

2019

R-ZT—NF

Discount rate P = 16%
Growth rate within the five-year period FHEERIEE R 5%

The discount rate used is pretax and reflect specific risks relating to the

relevant CGU.

The growth rate within the five-year period have been based on past
experience.

The directors of the Company reassessed the recoverable amount of the
CGU of Chinese health products as at 31 December 2019 by reference
fo the discounted cash flow calculations with the above estimations. As at
31 December 2019, the recoverable amount of the CGU of Chinese
health products is HK$39,000,000 which is lower than the carrying
amount of HK$50,486,000.

Accordingly, the directors of the Company was of the opinion that a full
impairment loss for goodwill of HK$614,000 should be recognised. The
remaining shortfall of HK$10,872,000 was recognised as impairment
loss under rightof-use assets amounting to HK$5,778,000 as disclosed in
Note 17, and intangible assets amounting to HK$5,094,000 as
disclosed in Note 19.

DR EIERARAR

PRATR AR R  YRREBRSES
BUABNSERR -

HEHAEREDREBELRITHE

RIE-NF+_A=+—B ARAEE2ZE
KA LA Sh 2R RS REE G ERE
mZREELEUMNAREEE R_F—hLF
TZA=+—8 RERERZBSELBMY
JEeER=TLEEEL BEXREEEE
ETEOHNAEARTHET -

Hit » ARREBEERE  BEBERRERES
BAT—BUNTEL ABZEE-—TENTLE
TFERIREREEERBE LT EENATEL
(M7 PARE) REVEETAENENTE
JC (RAPMEE 19 PTHYER ) IR T HERARER R -
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

19. B EE

Trademarks
LS
(Note)
(P &E)
HK$'000
T
Cost: [D%NE
Ar 1 April 2019, 31 December 2019 and RZE—NAFWNA—H  ZE—hAF+_A=+—H
31 December 2020 E—E-—FE+-A=+—H 5,094
Amortisation and impairment: B85 SORE ¢
At 1 April 2019, 31 December 2019 and R-ZEBE—NAFWMA—H —ZE—HAF+-A=+—H
31 December 2020 ;EZZZFTF+=H=1—H (5,094)
Net book value: BREDFE
At 31 December 2019 and i

31 December 2020 )54

Note:

The useful lives of trademarks, which were acquired through the acquisition
of the Group's Chinese health products business during the year ended 31
March 2018, are estimated by the directors of the Company to be
indefinite as the trademarks are renewable at insignificant cost at the
opfion of the Group. Details of the impairment assessment are set out in

Note 18(al.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR R
31 December 2020 —ZE-_ZEF+_/A=+—H

20. SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December

2020 and 2019 are as follows:

20. B A A

RZBEZEFR_FT-NF+_A=+—
B AARZMBARGEBHNT :

Particulars of
Form of issued share
Place of incorporation business copital/
Name of company and operations shructure registered capital Effective percentoge holding ~ Nature of business
E3,% 22 BRIRE/
ARER ARRIREX S 78 AhERHE ERRRE A SHHE
2020 2019
s i
Shares held directly:
ERBEZRG
|C Global Holdings Corporafion* Biish Virgin Islonds Corporate Ordinary US$50,001 - 100 Investment holdings
(C Global Holdings Corporafion* ABGARES A7 ERRS0001ET REER
Future Empire Limited Briish Virgin lslands Corporate Ordinary US$50,000 100 100 Invesiment holdings and
('Future Empire| nvesting in financial instumens
Future Empire Limited EBEARES R LA 50,000% 7 REBRERASHIA
([ Foture Empire])
Ace Seoson Holdings Limited Biish Virgin Islonds Corporale Ordinary US$1,000 100 100 Invesiment holdings
Ace Season Holdings limited iR4ARES 2] LR 1,005 REERK
New Mind [Hong Kong) limiied Hong Kong Corporale Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Invesiment holdings
#8l(FR) ARAR B Al LRk A REERK
Shares/investments held indirectly:
BEREZRG/RE:
Kid Goloxy Corporation* Biish Virgin Islonds Corporate Ordinary US$11 - 100 Invesiment holdings
Kid Golaxy Corporation* ABGARES Al ERR T RERR
Kid Golaxy Inc.* United Stotes of America Corporate Ordinory US$100,010 - 100 Trading of foys
Kid Goloxy Inc.* FH2ATE 2] £33k 100010%7 nAES
Kid Galay limited* Hong Kong Corporale Ordinary HK§10,010,000 - 100 Trading of foys
Kid Golayy limited* (30 Al £33/ 1001000037 nRES
Haier Healfwise Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Corporale Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Invesiment holdings
BRENRRARLA B d LRk A REERK
U Classic Invesiments Limited Biish Virgin Islond Corporale Ordinary US§] 100 100 Invesiment holdings
Ulra Classic Invesiments Limited iR4RARES A LRk % REERK
Good Cheer Global Limited Hong Kong Corporate Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Money lending business
Good Cheer Global limited B A LRk AT MEXH
FESERFEERERAT —F-TEH 167
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—E-F

—_—= ==

20. SUBSIDIARIES (Confinved)

ial Statements

F+-A=+—H

20. fB AT &)

Particulars of
Form of issued share
Place of incorporation business copitl/
Name of company and operations structure registered capitcl Effective percentage holding ~ Noture of business
FHER BRfRE/
ARER AMRIREREH %8 AMERRE BREREIY RHHE
2020 2019
=8%F CF A
Shares/investments held indirecly:
BiE RS/ RE
NPH Holdings limited Biiish Virgin Islonds Corporale Ordinary US$50,000 100 100 Investment holdings
NPH Holdings Limited ABERRES A £33k 50,000% 7 RERRK
Poo Yk loong Limited Hong Kong Corporofe Ordinary HKD350,000 100 100 Investment holdings
REEBRAR ¥ Al £33k 35000037 REER
N PH SinoMedtech Limited Hong Kong Corporofe Ordinary HKD? 100 100 Investment holdings
AL ERERAT ¥ Al EEk2AT REER
Nam Pei Hong Sum Yung Drugs Hong Kong Corporafe Ordinary HKDT,200,000 100 100 Trading of Chinese health
Compony liied producls
BHTBERIERAR 3 2l L8R 1,200,000 7 HERRRES
Geumsamwon [Korea] Company Hong Kong Corporafe Ordinary HKD1 - 100 Trading of Chinese heath
Limied producs
RET(2E)ARAR! Bk Al LR BT TERRRES
Poo Yuk Loong Food (Shenzhen| PRC Corporate Ordinary RMB350,000 100 100 Trading of Chinese healh
Company limited pfO(?UCTS
FREERM (R ARAF hE A EHMARY 3500007 TERRRES

* Disposed during the year (Note 33).
# Deregistered during the year.
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31 December 2020 —ZE-ZTH+_-_F=+—H

. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 2. RAFEFAERZEMERE
PROFIT OR LOSS
2020 2019
— —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&ET FET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — W& _ETTHIAR AR
at fair value BAFE
— Non-current portion (Note (a)) 3F};m§ﬂﬁ|§ (Ktit(a) - 18,306
— Current portion (Nofe (b)) — o (KiaE (b)) 105,088 120,275
Unlisted equity securities FEETRAE
— Non-current portion (Note (c)) — IEREE D (Hfat(c)) 2,611 -
107,699 138,581

Fair value of listed equity securities is defermined based on quoted
bid prices in the Stock Exchange. Fair value of unlisted equity
securities is determined based on valuation using asset-based
approach.

As at 31 December 2020, a portfolio of listed equity securities
with carrying amount of HK$68,942,000 have been pledged to

secure margin loan from a securities broker (Note 28].

Notes:

(a) At 31 December 2019, the non-current portion of the Group's
financial assets at FVTPL represented 28% interest in GMC at the
closing price as quoted on the Stock Exchange.

The Group's interest in GMC is nof classified as a subsidiary or an
associate as the Group does not have the power to control or
significantly influence to participate in the operating and financing
policy decision of GMC, as evidenced by lack of any direct or
indirect involvement of the Group at board level of GMC.

On 14 May 2020, the Group's entire equity inferest in GMC was
fully disposed of.

(b)  The equity securities are classified as financial assets at FVTPL as
they have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
near term, or are part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a
recent actual pattern of shortterm profitiaking. Changes in their fair
values are recognised in profit or loss (Note 8).

(c)  Fair value of unlisted equity securities was determined based on
valuation using assetbased approach. Further details of fair value
measurement are disclosed in Note 42.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RMEE
31 December 2020 —ZE=_ZTF+_-_F=+—H

22.

23.

INVENTORIES 22. &
2020 2019
—EB-FE TR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT T
Finished goods RIBK B 47,964 68,939

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and the period from
1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019, no write-down of

inventories was recognised.

As af 31 December 2019, finished goods with carrying amount
of HK$ 14,123,000 were pledged to secure designated banking
facility and borrowing [Note 28].

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS

The carrying amounts of frade and other receivables, deposits and
prepayments are as follows:

23.

REZE-_Z-_TF+_A=+—HIFER
—E-NFNA—HBE-_ZT—NAF+=A
=+—HI-HBE TERIAMRTE -

R-ZE-NAF+-_A=+—H KEE
— TRt B=TArTZ®KmE EH
IEEEIRTTRVE RIE B 2 AR (FHRE28) -

BRWKE Z R R E R RIER -
BEREANRE

RIS R R E A YRR R E RIS
FBZREENT -

2020 2019
—E-EHF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&ET FET
Trade receivables JEUE F R 7,365 44,624

less: allowance for expected o REMEEEERE
credit loss (616) (5,130)
6,749 30,494

Other receivables H b fE W FR0R

— Deposits and other receivables — ke N EMmERFIE 5,259 7,332
— Prepayments — JEfIF0E 1,561 4,433
13,569 51,259
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

(al

(b)

c)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables, net of allowance for
expected credit loss, based on invoice date as of the end of
reporting period, is as follows:

31 December 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements

M5 HmERME
—ZEFE+=-A=+—H

-

231@%&%%5&wl1ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%h¢
RERANRE®)

(a)

Q

HGBEREEBRBRERENBEZREY
RNBERAMZ EWEZRAZRE DT
W

2020 2019

—EB-BF —T-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FAT

0-90 days TzEh+H 6,071 37,412
1-180 days h+—BZ—8BN+H 678 1,089
1-365 days —BN\+—HBRE=ZAXTAHA = 695
Over 3 65 days B=A/THAH = 208
6,749 39,494

The Group's sales are on letter of credit or open account terms.
Credit terms are reviewed on a regular basis. The normal trade
terms include letter of credit, deposits before shipments and credit
period ranging from 30 to 90 days {2019: 30 fo 90 days) but
business partners with strong financial backgrounds may be offered
longer credit terms.

As at 31 December 2019, trade receivables of HK$27,689,000
and other receivables, deposits and prepayments of
HK$9,110,000 respectively were pledged to secure designated
banking facility and borrowing (Note 28).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, impairment loss of
HK$35,000 was recognised in respect of trade receivables (period
from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019: HK$2,603,000).

Further details of ECL assessment on the Group's frade receivables
and other receivables are disclosed in Note 4 1(a).

HEE

(b)

(c)

BB BR AR

REE 2 HETIAE AR R R IGTETT -
ERERG TSR - —REZERERE
ERAR FEMREARNF=1+BE

ATR(CZE-AF: =+tREATH)A
EERERE] B NEEZ EBBHET A

FEREZBRERS -

RZZEB-NF+-A=+—0 BEES

*”*:F‘tﬁx\-fﬂ\%h?%mu&,ﬁ\ﬁﬂ
FEHSZ R RS RENFBEANE -+ 8
BT A R BERAEEERITHEREE
PR (HI5E28) ©

BE_T-_ZF+_A=+—-RHLEE"
E?JEFEHQT%EE JERREBRE=80T
BL(CE-NAFOA-RE-_T-NF
TZA=+t—BLHHE: —AXTES
=TF#T) e

B B S B R WOR SR H A R MRIR 2 T

B BB IA 2 T2 — SRR
41 (a) 55 ©

171

[
A
[
A
_FH
B




i

Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RMEE
31 December 2020 —ZE=_ZTF+_-_F=+—H

24. LOAN RECEIVABLES

The carrying amount of loan receivables from money lending

24. BWER

BAKERERBELEZBREEKREEN

172

business of the Group was as follows:

T

2020 2019
— —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
loan receivables arising from money B & IS E A 2 ERE R
lending business 282,473 274,533
less: allowance for expected o TEEEEEERE
credit loss (59,359) (10,702)
223,114 263,831

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, loan receivables are
unsecured, interestbearing at fixed rates ranging from 8%—15%
per annum.

The maturity profile of the loan receivables, net of allowance for
expected credit loss, if any, at the end of the reporting period,
analysed by the remaining period fo ifs contracted maturity, is as

RZBZEFER - NFF+_A=+—
B BWEREEER  REEFMNENT
BOZN\EBEHDZTHE

R|ERR - BRER(NRBEREEER
BEA)ZANTAZHA ZFHHR

S mEEERINT

follows:
2020 2019
—B-FF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Within 1 year —FA 87,136 248,831
Over 1 year B—F 135,978 15,000
223,114 263,831

During the year ended 31 December 2020, impairment loss of
HK$48,657,000 was recognised in respect of loan receivables
(period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019:
HK$5,593,000).

Further details of ECL assessment on the Group's loan receivables
are disclosed in Note 4 1(al.
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31 December 2020 —ZE-ZTH+_-_F=+—H

25. AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED COMPANY 25. EWWEBEARIRIE
Amount due from a related company FEU — RS AR E A B EE

Maximum balances

outstanding during
the period ended
BEUTHHLHH
FAMEEREER
2020 2019 2020 2019
R=B=BF R-T-NF bt 22 —Z-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tign TEL TER TR
Company controlled by a close family member A2 7 —EHBRATH—%
of a director of a subsidiary of the Company ~ EEHEREHNAT
L C Technology lid EERRBRAT] - - - 10,027
Amount due from a related company was unsecured, inferestree JEWBBEATZIEAEER 48 RAER
and repayable on demand. BR[EE o
26. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND 26 CEARTERRREEZRRSS
CASH EQUIVALENTS =87
2020 2019
—EC-EE —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
Cash and bank balances IRE RIRITES 34,829 55,262
less: pledged bank deposits o EEMIRITER - (8,190)
Cash and cash equivalents e MBS ZEEY 34,829 47,072
Bank balances carry interest at floating rates and placed with RITHEMRIIBNEGE - DEERLEER
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. RN B RIFEVIRTT -
As at 31 December 2019, bank deposits of HK$8, 190,000 were RZE—NhE+_B=1+H—H A%
pledged to secure designated banking facility and borrowing (Note NBE—THEETHRITERD THER - LA
28). MG ERITRE RER (M E28)

TREEREERERAT —T-TER 173
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31 December 2020

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED

cial Statements

2 FF+-_A=+—H

27 ENESRIAREMEANRER

CHARGES FEstR A
2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Trade payables e E IR 10,700 97,699

Other payables and accrued Hofth &< 51 1E K e B

charges 9,625 19,964
20,325 117,663

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on invoice dates as

BEREHR  BANEZEFIRERB B

of the end of reporting period, is as follows: BRI DTN
2020 2019
—B-FF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TETT
0-90 days =EN+H 2,555 37,888
91-180 days h+—BZ—/N\+AH 8,006 3,409
181-365 days —BNAT—BREZE=B,THHA - 4,931
Over 365 days B=EThH 139 51,471
10,700 Q7,699
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M35 4R R B
—F-FFT-A=T—H

28. BORROWINGS 28. B &
2020 2019
“ECEF  PRIENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Bank loans — secured (Note (a)) SRITER—FIEW (B E(a) = 18,685
Other loans — secured (Note (b)) HEER—-BEIE (AT (b)) 20,000 -
Total current borrowings s 20,000 18,685

[a)  Asat 31 December 2019, the Group had bank facilities of
HK$54,600,000 of which HK$35,215,000 had not been
utilised. The bank loans of HK$18,685,000 were inferest
bearing at prime lending rate of banks in United Stafes of
America plus 3.5% per annum and were secured by the
following assets:

(a)

RZFB-NF+-A=1+—RH &%
EERTRMERTEBAEANTEET
HPF=FTHAAAT-BRETETHRK
BA-ROTEXR-TNEBATNE
ETETREERITREZSEFRNE
M=FHAENFENEGFE  XHNUT
BEFER

Carrying
amount as at

31 December

2019

RZZE—N4F

+=—A=+—8

ZEREE

HK$'000

FAT

Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) W - B MR (A 16) 379

Inventories (Note 22) FE(Kaz22) 14,123

Trade receivables (Note 23) FEUE SRR (HaE23) 27,689
Other receivables, deposits and H A W FRIE ~ 1=e RIBNFIE (M5 23)

prepayments (Nofe 23 ?,110

Pledged bank deposits (Nofe 26) BRIFRITFR (A 26) 8,190

The secured bank loans are scheduled fo be repaid within
one year or on demand and are classified as current
liabilities.

(b)  As af 31 December 2020, the Group had margin loan
from a securities broker of HK$20,000,000. The margin
loan was inferestbearing at 10% per annum, repayable on
demand and were secured by a portfolio of listed equity

securifies with carrying amount of HK$68,942,000.

(b]

PREB R EERERAR

BHEMRITEAN —FRHEEKE
B WD BARBAIE -

R-E-_FEF+_A=+—0 K&
ER—RE5SeRt-_Fa5 Ty
RELER - RECERREETE
FPEC ARERESE WUEBEE
ARFNEBATOE-_FAEITHN FHR
RBHEA VR
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31 December 2020

29. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assefs and liabilities during the
year/period, without taking into consideration the offsefting of

i

Notes to the Financial Statements

+—8

29. IEFERIH

FA/ANEERELERAEEEH (T
KR - aEE RN AERREE(NE)) 1

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, if any, were as follows: T

Deferred tax assets:

LR AEE -

Impairment loss

on financial Cumulative
assets tax losses Total
SREE
BEEE ZRItHEERE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT FET
At 1 April 2019 RZZE—NFWMA—H - 1,870 1,870
Credit/|charge) to profit or loss SPARBRE(BEENR) 2,036 (337) 1,699
At 31 December 2019 and RZE—-NEFE+=_A=+—8
1 January 2020 r—E-FEF—HF—H 2,036 1,533 3,569
Credit/(charge] to profit or loss S ABZE S (BEFIHE) 1,710 (1,053) 657
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 33) HEWB AT (Bt 33) (138) (480) (618)
At 31 December 2020 R-E-_TE+-_A=+—H 3,608 - 3,608
Deferred tax liabilities: EEFIAEAE
Convertible
loan notes Trademarks Total
g
BRE g Febay
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FET FET
Ar 1 April 2019 RZE—NFNA—H 3,767 840 4,607
Credit fo profit or loss ST AEZE (1,847) (840) (2,687)
At 31 December 2019 and RZEBE-—NAF+_A=+—8
1 January 2020 F—E-EF—H—H 1,920 - 1,620
Credit fo profit or loss PNk (1,920) - (1,920)
At 31 December 2020 RZEBEZTF
+=-—A=+—H - - -
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29. DEFERRED TAX (Confinved)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for the

31 December 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements

A 365 86 R B i

29 EIERIE (&)

—E-TF+-_RA=+—H

AT B B RS 25 = AERE N IR &R

presentation of financial reporting purposes: DT
2020 2019
—B-F ZENEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Deferred tax assets ELERIBEE 3,608 3.569
Deferred tax liabilities BLERIARE - (1,920)
3,608 1,649
A deferred tax asset has not been recognised for the following: WEBLIA T X IBRRELERIBEE -
2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THTT
Deductible temporary differences BT AR B B = R
— Accelerated tax depreciation — ZFTARE 6,838 50,433
Unused tax losses AE A IEEE 115,821 120,978
122,659 171,411

Deferred tax assets are recognised for estimated fax losses carry
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits
through future taxable profits are probable. The Group did not
recognise deferred tax assefs in respect of estimated losses
amounting to approximately HK$115,821,000 (2019:
HK$120,978,000) that can be carried forward against future
faxable income. As at 31 December 2019, all fax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely except for the amounts of
approximately HK$22,467,000 which will be expired from
2025 to 2039. All tax losses as at 31 December 2020 may be
carried forward indefinitely.

PREB R EERERAR

EERIRE ET A BRSNS rl B8R
AT BEEE 4 2 FER B M IR M ph FTAS 88 2
HETBIAR IR IEMER - AEBEY B EE
MEHRRERR WA ZAEFTERLY
—E-TFHEHEN+ & TET(ZZE—Hh
F—REZTEATEENTETL) BRE
ERBEE R_T—NAF+-_A=1+—
B BRO-T-_amt<B8LtTETER -
E_RFE_T-NFHEER  ER
HEES I ERAEE R_T_TF =
A=1—R  FAREEES A ER AL o

ZEEFR
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30. SHARE CAPITAL

inancial Statements

—F-FFT-A=T—H

30. BA&

Authorised
HE
Convertible cumulative

redeemable preference shares of Ordinary shares of HK$1.0 each

US$100,000 each (2019: HK$0.1 each)
SREETEZETZ SRAE-HTBIZEER
ARRTEZETEEELR (Z2-h%: BRZH-BT)
Number of shares Number of shares
RAEE RAEE
US$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
FTET T FET
At 1 April 2019, 31 December 2019 RZT—-AFMA—H -
and 1 January 2020 “E-NFTZA=T-H
k=—E-ZF—-—H 40 4,000 15,000,000 1,500,000
Share consolidation MDA B - - (13,500,000} -
At 31 December 2020 RZE-TF+-A=+—H 40 4,000 1,500,000 1,500,000

Issued and fully paid
BRTRARE
Convertible cumulative

redeemable preference shares of Ordinary shares of HK$1.0 each

US$100,000 each (2019: HK$0.1 each)
SREETEERZ SREAE-HSAIZEER
ARRITEETREELR (ZB-hE: ERZE-#BT)
Number of shares Number of shares
BHEE BHEE
US$'000 '000 HK$'000
FTET Fht FEL
At 1 April 2019 RZZE—-NENA—H - - 8,521,308 852,131
Repurchase and cancellation B KR (M)
of shares (Nofe (a)) - - (655,850) 165,585)
At 31 December 2019 and RZZE-NEF+-A=1+—H
1 January 2020 k—E-FF—H—H - - 7,865,458 786,546
Repurchase and cancellation B0 R iR (M3t (o))
of shares (Nofe (a]) - - (160,650) [16,065)
Share consolidation (Note (b)) A& B (BaE (b)) - - (6,934,327 -
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZF+-A=1+—H - - 770,481 770,481
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continved)

31 December 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements

35 40 R B o
—F-FFT-A=T—H

Note:

(al

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
repurchased and cancelled its own shares as follows:

30. BA ()
et -

o REEZZ_TF+-_A=+—HLFE"
RNAREOWFHEEARFBRMOMT ¢

Price per share

BRER

Number of ordinary Aggregate
share of consideration
HK$0.10 each Highest Lowest paid

Month of repurchase  E&E A BEREH =
BrTzEBER &S RIE BRE
‘000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000
TR BT BT THETT
January 2020 —ZT-TF—A 19,900 0.036 0.034 700
March 2020 ZTTF=H 20,150 0.029 0.026 577
April 2020 —Z-TFMA 17,550 0.028 0.027 480
May 2020 —ZE-FFFHA 29,850 0.030 0.028 875
June 2020 ZECEERA 52,150 0.034 0.029 1,649
139,600 4,281

The above repurchased ordinary shares of HK$4,281,000,
together with 21,050,000 ordinary shares of HK$711,000
repurchased during the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December
2019, representing aggregate amount of HK$4,992,000, were
cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2020.

During the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019, the
Company repurchased and cancelled its own shares as follows:

B ERTERASNA -+ \BE—T
B BER_ZE-NAFENA-BE_ZT
—hWF+-A=+—HIHMABLOEE
tt+t—EB8TETZ-_T-EZRERZE
B #BANEATAE-_THET B
REBE-ZTZ-TF+-_A=+—HIEtFE

RZZE-NAFOA-—BE-_Z-AF+=
A=+—B8E ALAERILEHEEA
SR

Price per share

TRERE

Number of ordinary Aggregate
share of consideration
HK$0.10 each Highest Lowest paid

HREE
ZH-TETZ etz
Month of repurchase  BERIRR (5 2 A5 ELimRE e &= &K BRE
‘000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000
TR BT BT FHET
June 2019 —ZE-hFRA 77,750 0.039 0.038 3,030
July 2019 —T-hF+A 578,100 0.050 0.039 25,890
655,850 28,920

The above repurchased ordinary shares were cancelled
during the period from 1 April 2019 1o 31 December
2019.

On 25 September 2020, the share consolidation became effective
whereby every 10 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each was
consolidated into one share of HK$ 1.0 each.

(b)

PREB R EERERAR

LTREERMERRER T -AFOA—
HE-Z-NAF+-HA=+t—RILHHZE

RZZEZZTFNA=-1+EHA  BHEHE
EEM G HRSTREREES® BT
ZEBREAHA—BREE—MTE LY
AR o
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the "Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operation. The Scheme, which was adopted by an ordinary
resolution of the shareholders on 14 September 2012, consfitutes
a share option scheme governed by Chapter 17 of the Llisting
Rules.

Under the Scheme, share options can be exercised at any time
during the periods to be defermined and notified by the directors
of the Company to the grantees at the time of making offers to
grant share options fo them, provided that such periods shall not
exceed the period of ten years from the date of grant. The scheme
mandate limit of the Scheme was refreshed pursuant to a
shareholders’ resolution passed in the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 4 September 2018 (the "AGM”"). The
maximum number of shares available for issue under the Scheme
is 85,213,083, representing 10% of the issued ordinary share
capital of the Company as at the date of the AGM, affer the
share consolidation of the Company on 25 September 2020. The
subscripfion price for the shares under the Scheme shall be a price
defermined by the directors at its discretion, provided that it shall
not less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares stated
in the daily quotation sheets of Stock Exchange on the date of
grant and (i) the average closing price of the shares stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of share options. A
nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable for each of the share
options granted.

No share-based payment expenses were recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and period from 1 April 2019 to 31
December 2019 in relation to share options granted by the
Company.

No share option was granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

All outstanding share options of 340,000,000 options were
lapsed and no share option was granted, exercised or cancelled

during the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019.
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32. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

32. FERER

AEBHEFEAD 2 A+ RGN R
H2EWBAR  AEEHEEAN ZAT—
a2z N EERE2ENE AR A RAE
BHEAER D 2T NL A e 2m) 5
THEEEAFELRED R -_FT—NFOA
—BE-T-AF+-_A=1+—HLLHEA
W REBERGMN BE - ORI &) 5
TR BBHE -

Shenzhen Oasis and its wholly-owned subsidiary, 51% owned by
the Group, Oasis Shanghai and its wholly-owned subsidiary, 51%
owned by the Group and Sichuan Yi Fang, 59.976% owned by
the Group had material NCI. During the period from 1 April
2019 to 31 December 2019, the Group's equity inferesfs in
Qasis Shanghai, Shenzhen Oasis and Sichuan Yi Fang were fully
disposed of.

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of
Shenzhen Oasis and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Oasis Shanghai

BRERYIMNEEZEMBRT - &N L8
NEZEMBRRIARIIIIS T 2 FEERHE

and its wholly-owned subsidiary and Sichuan Yi Fang, before SEFNEEE YIRS S BT Y B TR A M E 2 51 41
infro-group elimination are presented as follows: T
Period from

1 April 2019 1o
31 December

2019
RZZE—NF
WA—HB=Z=
—T-NF
+-A=+—H
HifE
HK$'000
FET

Shenzhen Oasis and its wholly-owned subsidiary RYEEMN R E 2 EWE R R
Revenue WA -
Loss for the period & 1E (2,449)
Total comprehensive loss for the period HANEHEEBEEE (2,449)
Loss allocated to NCI P FIEIE R iR 2 5 1R (1,200)
Total comprehensive loss allocated to NCI DRTFIHFERERZ RPEEBBRER (1,200)
Net cash flow RemnF5E -
2019
—ZT-NF
HK$'000
FET
Non-current assets IEMBIVEE -
Current assets mENEE -
Current liabilities mEBE -
Net liabilities BEFE -
Accumulated NCI BT IR E R -
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32. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continved) 32. kIR ER &)

Period from
1 April 2019 1o
31 December
2019
RZZT—hF
WMA—H=Z=
—E-NF
+-A=+—H
HAfE
HK$'000
FET

Ooasis Shanghai and its wholly-owned subsidiary BN EBRAEZEMBAR
Revenue WA -
Loss for the period A EE (2,712)
Total comprehensive loss for the period AL EERER (2,712)
Loss allocated to NCI DT IEIE R R 2 S 1R (1,329)
Total comprehensive loss allocated to NCI DERTFIHFERERZ 2EEBBRER (1,329)
Net cash flow BeRAFEE -
2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FET
Non-current assets IEMBEE -
Current assefs mBNEE -
Current liabilities mBaE -
Net liabilities BEFR -
Accumulated NC| R IR iR g -
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32. FERELS )
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Period from
1 April 2019 1o
31 December
2019
R=ZZT—hF
mMA—HZE
—E-NEF
+-A=+—H
HAfE
HK$'000
FET

Sichuan Yi Fang mINS7
Revenue WA -
loss for the period HNER -
Tofal comprehensive loss for the period A2 EEBERE -
Loss allocated to NCI DT IEERR R 2 BB -
Tofal comprehensive loss allocated to NCI DT IEERER 2 T HEBEAR -
Net cash flow R mFEE -
2019
—E-NEF
HK$'000
FET
Non-current assets EMBNEE -
Current assefs mBNEE -
Current liabilities mBaE -
Net liabilities BEFRE -
Accumulated NCI R IR R -
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 33, HEKE AT

(a) Disposal during the year ended 31 December (o) RBE=-Z=-Z2H+=-A=+—H
2020 LHEENHESE
As referred to Note 9(b), on 30 October 2020, the Group A EEQb)Frih - R =T &E+
disposed of the Disposal Group which engaged in sale of B=+H AEFEHEHEEE (RS
BEmBEEITAHE) - RIBELTHHR
AIE14AE - ERBARFINE LA
WHAEALT - BEEmMBRETADE
RS BN aEFROT

OBM toys. The purchaser is a connected person of
subsidiaries of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The net liabilities of OBM toys segment at the
date of disposal were as follows:

HK$'000
THTT
Net liabilities disposed of: BEELRERE
Property, plant and equipment e S 7,294
Rightof-use assets EREEE 355
Deferred tax assets RIERIAE & 618
Inventories #E 21,462
Trade and other receivables, deposits and FEUE 5 BR % EoAth fR U R E -
prepayment ®’e MIANFRIA 117,407
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 2,176
Trade and other payables FER B B R N HoAth e A< /0B (163,090)
lease liabilities HEBE (580)
Borrowings fams (30,753)
Tax payables JERT IR (928)
Amount due fo the Group e RSB FRIE (8,640
Net liabilifies BEFH (54,685
Amount due to the Group assigned to the purchaser B2 F 8 5 2 B ANEEFHIA 8,646
Release of exchange fluctuation reserve upon H ST B QN I ARRR 2 E R B S
disposal of subsidiaries (188)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B A R 2 W 46,227
Total consideration #RE -
Safisfied by: FERPIEE
Cash Re -
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEFHEEENR ML FHE
Cash consideration REeRE -
Cash and bank balances disposed of FrHEIR & KIRITEER (2,176
(2,176)
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(b)
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33. HEMB AR @)

Disposals during the period from 1 April 2019 to (b)
31 December 2019

Name of entities
Notton Limited (Note (i)

Keytime Global Limited (Note {ii))

(i

Disposal date
26 September 2019

27 October 2019

On 26 September 2019, the Group enfered into a
sale and purchase agreement fo dispose of the entire
equify interests in Nofton Limited. The purchaser is a
connected person of the subsidiary of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the listing Rules. The disposal
was completed on 26 September 2019, the date on
which the control of Notton Limited and its
subsidiaries, which engaged in the commercial
kitchen products business, passed to the acquirer. The
net liabilities of the disposed subsidiaries at the date

of disposal were as follows:

R-EBE-hFNA—HE=-Z—H
F+-_A=+—HHEMNHESE

BERERE HEBH
Notton Limited —E-NF
(H1aE(i) NAZ=Z+7xH
Keytime Global —E-NF
Limited (B75E (i) +AZ=++H

(i)

RZE—NFNLAZ+RHE &
SBT3 E & % A H & Notton
Limited 2 ZpA% % - REA B LT
HAE4AZE T 2 AR AIKE
NE—R@EBAL - HEFIE
BERZZE-NFNAZF AR
B - & X Notton Limited X E [ B
AEl(tEMAEEERER) W
THEEETWES  REEE
HRZEHENBRARIZAE
FERET ¢

HK$'000
FET
Net liabilities disposed of: BB EFHE
Inventories FE 301
Cash and cash equivalents Re MR EEY 1
Trade and other payables e B 5 8RR N HoAth e < 5008 (18,142)
Tax payables JESI TR IR (3,236)
Net liabilities BEFR (21,076
NCI ESrlie o 5,872
Release of exchange fluctuation reserve upon HEHT B A IR RRR 2 E NN B S
disposal of subsidiaries 11,154
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMEAR K= 4,051
Total consideration BRE 1
Safisfied by: FERPIE-E
Cash Re 1
Net cash inflows arising from disposal of HEWNBARELZRERAFRE
subsidiaries:
Cash consideration RERE 1
Cash and bank balances disposed of FTHEIR & RIRTTAESR (1)
PRBEREERERAT —F-TEH 185
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

186

Disposals during the period from 1 April 2019 to

31 December 2019 (Continved)

33. HEMB AT (&)

b) R-B-—NEMA—BZE-B—A
E+-—A=+— AHENHESEE

(%)

li)  On 27 October 2019, the Group entered into a sale i) MZZT—AFE+A=-++H K
and purchase agreement to dispose of the entire SEET B E W DA & Keytime
equity interests in Keytime Global limited. The Global limited 2 EFR&#E - HeE=
disposal was completed on 27 October 2019, the BER-_ZE—NE+A-1++H
dafe on which the control of Keytime Global Limited % K B KKeytime Global
and its subsidiaries, which engaged in the consumer Limted R EHMTB AR (HEHE
electronic products business, passed to the acquirer. MEFEQER) MITHEER
The nef liabilities of the disposed subsidiaries at the FUEES c REEZRTEAS B
date of disposal were as follows: HEWBARZAEFHENT -

HK$'000
FHET
Net liabilities disposed of: b Ea B
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEED 1,369
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 BR 3% I B Ath B~ 5RIE (56,619)
Short term bank loan RHRITEN (1,625
Tax recoverable A g @75 IR 1,041
Net liabilities BEFE (55,834
NCI FEFRR M 2R 49,940
Release of exchange fluctuation reserve upon BB A B ARER 2 B 5 BN
disposal of subsidiaries 23,937
loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBE AR ZEE (18,042)
Total consideration ERE 1
Satisfied by: TR
Cash B2k 1
Net cash outflows arising from disposal of HEMBAREEZRSIMEFHE
subsidiaries:
Cash consideration RERE 1
Cash and bank balances disposed of P ER S RRITER (1,369)
(1,368)
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34. RESERVES

The Group

The natures and purposes of reserves are set out below:

Share premium

Under the Companies Law [Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions and dividends to shareholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum and Arficles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distributions or dividend
payments, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share opfions
granfed which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payment fransactions in Note

5(o).

Convertible loan notes — equity reserve

Amount of proceeds on issue of convertible loan notes relafing to
the equity component (i.e. opfion to convert the debt info share
capital).

Exchange fluctuation reserve

Exchange fluctuation reserve represents foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in Note 5l).

Accumulated losses

It represents the cumulative net gains and losses recognised in
profit or loss.
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34. #E
A EH
G2 R A BB -

R (&
REFEHERREEEIE228 - K
RALZ Bt (B A AR IR H AR A R KA K 4
Al Z 53 BIERBRRAN D IR RS - 1
ZREDIRFRMNIEIR - NAFEMEEE
REBEXRBERTEEZETR -

PR

AP RE S(O) AR REMN AL R 5 2 85
BORFrEHL - B EERERBERTT
R E AT E -

ARRERFR — #alEE

BB EREBROMSRREES TS
(BN ERS SR RN E 120 ) BRERI S %8

PE SR B

[E SR B e e I BB SN RS B A SRR R A
EEMIMNEEZRE - KBTI RB M EES() AR
HETTRFETTRE -

REtEE
HIg M 8a iR 2 Rt et MBS IRIFHE -
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34. RESERVES (Continued) 34. @#FE =)
The Company ADTF
Convertible
Share loan notes —
Share option equity  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
AR
EXREE -
RIEE BRERE BRfEE Byt | @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT THT FTHET FET
At T April 2019 RZE-NEWA—A 424,467 15,742 19,835 (032,315)  (472,271)
loss for the period HNEE - - - [186,008] (186,008
Equitysetled sharebased payment AR EEARH A
expense BT - (15,742) - 15,742 -
Repurchase of shares f& 15 i - - - 36,605 36,605
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NFE+-A=1+—H
1 January 2020 k—E-FF—-A—H 424,467 - 19835 [1,065916] (621,614
loss for the year ERER - - - (83,051) (83,051)
Repurchase of shares BEEn - - - 11,073 11,073
At 31 December 2020 RZE-_ZF+-_A=+—H 424,467 - 19,835 [1,137,894] (693,592
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35. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 35. EIRA BB EARRE
FINANCIAL POSITION
2020 2019
B TR
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries A SN 155,447 255,657
Financial assets at FVTPL BAVERABRZ
ERMEE 2,611 18,306
158,058 273,963
Current assefs REBEE
Prepayments TEfFRIE 145 510
Tax recoverable EIRiqEEaE = Q
Cash and cash equivalents RERIESZEY 7,251 4,774
7,396 5,293
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accrued charges  E b B~ 78 K& fE5T & A 3,065 2,366
Convertible loan notes AR EREE = 110,038
3,065 112,404
Net current assets/ (liabilities) RBEEFE(EEFHE) 4,331 (107,111)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBEE 162,389 166,852
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Convertible loan notes AR ERER 85,500 -
Deferred tax liabilities BEFRIBEEE o 1,920
85,500 1,920
Net assets EERE 76,889 164,932
EQUITY =
Share capital A% A 30 770,481 786,546
Reserves 1 34 (693,592) [621,614]
Total equity s 76,889 164,932
Signed on behalf of the board of directors by: RREFGERF
Lei Hong Wai Tse Chi Keung
Y 2 ik
Director Director
EE EE
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36.

37.

190

—E-EF+_A=+—H

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Group had

no material contingent liabilities.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year/period, the Group had transactions and balances
with related parties, some of which are also deemed to be
connected parties pursuant fo the Llisting Rules. Besides,
fransactions between the Company and its subsidiaries have been
eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note.

(a)  During the year/period, the Group entered into the
following material transactions with related parties:

Related party relationship

36.

37.

Types of transaction

HREE

R-ZE-EF+-_A=+—BEk _Z—NHF
+Z—A=1+—8 AEEVESAKAREE -

BFREALRS

FRNHN AEEGRABEAL(FD
RE EMRRRBESBEREAL)ETR
5 RBERER - I ARRREMER
AlZENXHERGEE ARKEEHE - WER
AHFERWE -

() FRHRN - AEBREBEA L
MATERRS

Transaction amount

EHREALRR REEH XEEH
Period from
Year ended 1 April 2019 1o
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
R-ZF—N%F
S MA—HZ
—ECERF —T-NF
t=A=+—H8 t-A=1+—H
LEE HifA
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Companies controlled by a close family  Purchases (Nofe)
member of a former director of BE (Kt)
a subsidiary of the Company - 11,080
HARF—FEMBARN—BAEEZ
ATRAK B R HIR R A
Fellow subsidiary of a substantial Inferest on lease liabilities
shareholder of the Company HEAEHNE 129 35

ARAB—BEERROFARME QA

Note: These companies ceased to be related parties of the Group
since the resignation of that director on 7 May 2019, and on
the same date, the amounts due to these companies of
HK$29,164,000 were reclassified to trade and other
payables. Accordingly, the transactions for the period from 1
April 2019 up fo 7 May 2019 amounting fo approximately
HK$11,080,000 were related party transactions of the
Group. Nevertheless, the transactions for the period from 1
January 2020 to 6 May 2020 amounting to HK$7,311,000
(period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019 amounting
to HK$74,365,000) constitute connected transaction or
confinuing connected fransaction as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continved)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel
remuneration

The remuneration of directors, who are key management
personnel, are disclosed in Note 15(a) to the consolidated
financial statement.

The remuneration of directors is determined by the
remuneration commitiee having regard fo the salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities, and employment conditions elsewhere in the

Group.

38. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES

On 8 October 2018 [the "Issue Date”), the Company issued
initially 8% straight bonds with a principal amount of
HK$120,000,000 with conditional conversion rights (the
"Conversion Rights”). The bonds mature two years from the lssue
Date at their principal amount, or subject fo the satisfaction of
certain condifions precedent in relation to the Conversion Rights
(the "CB Conditions Precedent’), can be converted info ordinary
shares of the Company at the holder's option (the “Conversion
Option”) at the fixed rate of HK$O.1 per share. On 22 November
2018 [the "Change Date”), the Conditions Precedent have been
fulfilled and the straight bonds were changed to 6% convertible
loan nofes embedded with the rights of early redemption by the
Company (the "Redemption Rights”]. The convertible loan notes
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Further details of the
convertible loan notes were set out in the Company's
announcements dated 8 October 2018 and 22 November
2018.

The convertible loan notes contain the Redemption Rights that
allow the Company as the issuer fo redeem the convertible loan
nofes af par together with accrued interests at any time during the
life of the convertible loan notes. The redemption price is
substantially equal to the amortised cost of the liability component
of the convertible loan notes. Accordingly, the Redemption Rights
are considered fo be ‘closely related to the liability component of
the convertible loan notes, and the Redemption Right is therefore
not separately recognised from the liability component of the
convertible loan nofes.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
exercised Redemption Rights o redeem the convertible loan notes
with principal amount of HK$34,500,000. The redemption price
paid fo the subscriber was HK$34,500,000 and loss on partial
redemption of HK$ 1,248,000 was recognised in the profit or
loss.

J—
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37. BEALRF &)

b) TEEEERSHHHE

EX(FRTETEERE) HNER
B P BEBRRM T 15(a) B

EEFHAaTMEE@2RUELR
RAMNHE - BREARREENR
AEEEMERGEEE

38. AIRIRERER

RZZE-NF+ANRB(ETH] » AQA
NEBHRGTN\ENEBRES A28R
—E-TEETAMG A Rt ERE((EhR
#]) - BERZATEARITREFTMERE
Hl - i IR A RS T OR IR
([AHABEZF TORIRIF ) 1R - A AREE
REEERERTH B TERASARFIN
EEp((EgEE]) R /\F+—A
—+=RA(EEA] @ BREGHFEEERK
EREFEERNEZBRBREREE A
BMARBZ R REOE(TEERE]) - ATRK
ERERTIRETEE - BB AIBRERE
BE—THBERARABAHA TN
FHANBR-_Z-N\FE+—-A=-+=HZ

N

AR ERE IR ABEOE - RRFARR(1E
BETAN)RABREEREBRFHRNRERR
EEER AT REERER REFE - EE
EABHEFRAIRRERRRAED D OE#
AR o B - BB Bl R AR A B Rl R AR B R
SRAEN) [ETAE/M] - AitEogErm
ABRERERRBRA B D FRER

HE-_ T TF+_A=+—HItFEE " XK
R FEDENERLRSSES
ZTHNERTEB TN RRERERK - B
NTFREANEBELNEA=ZTHNERETES
L MEBoERMEE - TESNTE
TLEEBETER -
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38. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continved)
On 28 August 2020, the Company entered into the supplemental R-FE-—FTHENA=-+/\H ' KAG)EHRE

agreement with the subscriber that the Company and the
subscriber conditionally agreed to extend the original maturity

i

38. AIAREREE #)

ANETM T heg - BBUL ﬁ@?,\wuﬁﬁAﬁ
BHREBATRERERZRENRIARALER

date of convertible loan notes for two years to 10 October 2022. MEZ-"T——®=+A+08 - FiakREH

All the conditions precedent was fulfilled on @ October 2020.

adjusted to HK$ 1.0 per share.

The directors at the Company considered the terms of the

per share was

BERZZE-_ZTF+ANLHEEK °

Pursuant fo share consolidation effective on 25 September 2020 BIEA-SE-_TFENA —+R B ARG
(Note 30), the conversion price of HK$0.1

EH(HIE30) HBREHRERZH—E T
FAREEFR T BT -

ARAREERARTRREREBRNERTE

convertible loan notes met the ‘fixed-forfixed" criterion. Therefore, [EEYET | 2% - IIHZ s RE S A
the Conversion Option is recognised as equity component of the AR S E RS IS

convertible loan notes.

The fair values of the liability component and the equity conversion BES
component were determined at the Change Date. The fair value
of the liability component, was calculated using a market interest

19 RS N AT EREE A
BT o REHHHAFERASEETER
meﬁmm%ﬂfuﬁ°ﬂ%éﬁbﬁg

rate for an equivalent non-convertible loan notes. The residual HRER IS NEE) ST AREEZ (B ELE
amount, representing the value of the equity conversion BIg) o

component, is included in shareholders’ equity net of deferred tax.

The convertible loan notes recognised in the consolidated ?\?éﬁﬁﬁ&zﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁuamT#HXEU)\%TEE
statement of financial position are calculated as follows: BIAT A REE
HK$'000
FHT
Equity component of convertible loan notes REE AN AR ERE RS D
on the Change Date 19,835
Equity component of convertible loan notes RZE—NF+_A=+—HK
as af 31 December 2019 and —ECEFFZA=+—H®
31 December 2020 MR EREBENERT S 19,835
liability component at 1 April 2019 R-_T-NFOA-BNEEIS 100,891
Interest expense MBI 16,636
Coupon interest 5] (7,489)
liability component at 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+ZHA=+—8K
and 1 January 2020 —E-EF-A—HMEEIS 110,038
Partial redemption of convertible loan notes o BEIAHARERER (33,252
Interest expense MBI 16,386
Coupon interest e (7,672)
Liabilities component af 31 December 2020 RZEZZF+HA=1+—HBNEENRD 85,500
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38. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continved)

Inferest expense on the convertible loan notes is calculated using

39.

the effective interest method by applying the effective interest rate

of 9% per annum (2019: 9% per annum) to the liability

component.

Upon extension of the convertible loan notes on @ October 2020,

inferest expense on the convertible loan nofes is calculated ot 6%

per annum fo the liability component.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(a)

(b)

Maijor non-cash transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had
non-cash addifions to rightof-use assets and lease liabilities
of HK$3,272,000 (period from 1 April 2019 to 31
December 2019: HK$12,262,000) and HK$3,272,000
(period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019:
HK$12,262,000), respectively, in respect of lease

arrangements for buildings.

As disclosed in Note 3/(a), amounts due to the related
companies of HK$29,164,000 were reclassified to trade
and other payables upon the resignation of a director of a
subsidiary of the Company during the period from 1 April
2019 to 31 December 2019.

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be classified in the Group's consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

31 December 2020

38.

39.

PREB R EERERAR

Notes to the Financial Statements

M35 4R R B
—F-FFT-A=T—H

ARREFEZEE &)

AR ERERNN SR RERERD
RABERFENEBEOZN(ZE—NF: F
MEBDZN) 2 BBRENEREE -

R-ZE-_ZF+ANATREERZRLTH
% AERERRENNERXIRFENER
DZNTEERERD -

RERMEZD 2 REYHR

(o) EBIREXRS

REBEE-ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HIE
FE AEEREFHHELHEES
FAEEELHEAGEIERSAIESD
AAE—B-ttE=-FET(ZZ—AI
FWMA—HE2E-_Z—hAh&E+_-A
=+—HIHE: =EE-tEE =T
BLTIR=F—Bt+=8=F&Fx(=
E-NENA-—BE_Z—-NE+=
A=+—HIE8E: —F=ZBa=+~
EB-FEL) -

AN FE 37 () AR - R -T— N5
MA—BE-Z—-hF+_A=1—
BB ENARERARA
“TAE-TABETETERAR
ANBARIN —REEHIREN D
BERNE SRR E MR -

b) TERAINAEEEREEHELEZE
E2%) BRERSLIRSEH - B
BEPELCABRERSREBIKRK
RenEURAKREGARAERER
TOEARERDMEREREZA

5 o
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31 December 2020

39. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

Notes to the Financial Statements

—E-EF+_A=+—H

FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

39. REMETBH 2EEHER @)

(b)  (Continued) (b) (#&)
Interest  Convertible Leases
payable  loan notes  Borrowings  liabilities Total
G-
ENFE EXRE B8 WHEEE HEt
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET FET
[Note 38)  [Note 28]  [Note 1/)
(Wi#38) (KaE28) (Kat17)
1 April 2019 —NEWMA—H - 100,891 13,412 - 114,303
Change from cash flows Aene®
Proceeds from borrowings EEmERIE - - 18,685 - 18,685
Repayment of borrowings BERE - - (11,787 - (11,787
Interest paid BERFIE (1,3471) [7,489) - (1,078) (9,908)
Repayment of principal portion  EEHEEE
of lease liabilities e ghn - - - (9,262 (9,262
(1,3471) (7,489) 6,898 (10,340 (12,272
Other changes H fth
Inifial application of HKFRS 16 &R EAEBI KHE
ERIZE 1657 - - - 15,290 15,290
New leases Mg - - - 12,262 12,262
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR - - (1,625 - (1,625)
Finance cost BEKE 1,341 16,636 - 1,078 19,055
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF
+=—A=+—8 - 110,038 18,685 18,290 147,013
Change from cash flows: BEeREEE
Proceeds from borrowings EEMERIEA - - 32,068 - 32,068
Repayment of convertible loan 1,\€T$ﬁﬁ4§?§(§ﬁ
notes - (34,500 - - (34,500
Interest paid BEAFE (1,054) 16,520) - (202 (8,4706)
Repayment of principal portion  EEHEEE
of lease liabilifies Reghn - - - (12,667)  (12,667)
(1,054) (41,020) 32,068 (13,569 (23,575)
Other changes: Hip s :
loss on partial redemption of  &f 4 B& [ A] #2 % & X
convertible loan notes =R VER - 1,248 - - 1,248
New leases bk - - - 3,272 3,272
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT - - (30,753) [(580) (31,333
Finance costs BEKE 3,811 15,234 - 902 19,947
At 31 December 2020 NZEZEF
+=—A=+—8 2,757 85,500 20,000 8,315 116,572
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40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's objective of managing capital are to safeguard the

Group's ability to confinue as a going concern in order fo provide
refurns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, comprising
the borrowings disclosed in Note 28, lease liabilities disclosed in
Note 17 and convertible loan notes disclosed in Note 38, less
cash and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits and financial
assets at FVTPL, and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising share capital and reserves as disclosed in Notes 30
and 34 respectively.

The directors review the capifal structure periodically. As part of
this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of management, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, issue of new share as well as
new debfs or redemption of existing debts.

The gearing ratio at the end of reporting period was as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

M5 &M
31 December 2020 —ZE=FF+=A=+—H

40. EXERERE

AEEEEREAHNE AN ERERNE B R
BRE  REREHLOBESEMN SR E
ATREWRES  WHERFRENERRBIAR

AEBNEARREBRERERFHE(BREINH
E28REMEER - MEI7HENHERE
KM 8B AT MR ERRERR S K
ReEEY  cEBRRTERRIZAFER
ANBRZEREE)  MARRHEA AN
#am(BHEDRIRM 3 R 34HE 2 BA
K fEf) °

EEE MR EARRE - (ERIEE 2 — &6
D EBEREEREANANBERENER
MER - REEEENES  AREKER
IRTBCR - BITHBA R EB RE@IRE
B - FEaEREBNEARRE -

RERRZEEAGBLERNT ¢

2020 2019

—ECEH —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET TFHT

Debts B 113,815 147,013
Cash and cash equivalents HeREEEED (34,829) (47,072)
Pledged bank deposits EHEMRITIFR = (8,190)
Financial assets at FVTPL BEATEFABER SREE (107,699) (138,581)
Net debts B 58 (28,713) [46,830)
Equity R 296,291 326,673
Net debts o equity ratio B R L R N/A T8 F N/ANEH
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—E-EF+_A=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk

and equity price risk.

These risks are limited by the Group's financial management

policies and practices described below.

(al

196

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
and other receivables and loan receivables. The directors
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take info account information specific to
the customers as well as pertaining fo the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Ongoing credit
evaluation is performed on the financial condition of trade
customers and, where appropriate, credit guarantee
insurance cover is purchased. Trade receivables are due
within 30-90 days from the date of billing. Debtors with
balances that are more than 3 months past due are
requested fo settle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry and country in which customers operate
also has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At
the end of reporting period, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 36% (2019:26%) and 81%
(2019: 51%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively within the Chinese health products business
segments (2019: OBM toys and Chinese health products
business segments).

China Healthwise Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

Credit risk (Continued)

(al

The credit risk of the Group's financial assets (which
comprise gross trade and other receivables, loan
receivables and bank balances) arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

Trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, which is calculated
using @ provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group's different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the Group's
exposure fo credit risk and ECL for frade receivables as af
31 December 2020:

31 December 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements

35 40 R B o
—F-FFT-A=T—H

41, BERBER @)

B EREE (&)
(o) EERRE)

AEEeREE(BEREE SRR R
H i fEURIR AR RE - BB R RTT
RERNEERBKEHTF HEN &
RNEBRBAFNZETENKEE -

FEWE 5 BRK

AEBZAENERBBREREZ
AERAFRANEREEBBRNER
AERKE SRR ZEBEREE - AR
AEEZEBEEEBERERYERT
RAEFNHBREABREAZR
REARREFTEZBREBLER
AEBTREFPERZHE—FED

TREHREBAKRER T _FF
T-A=+—HEEESERAAE
R EERRLEMEEERZER

Expected Gross Loss
loss rate carrying amount allowance
AHEER HAREE EiERE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% TET TAT
Current [not past due) e (RiEE]) 0.12 5,121 8
1-30 days past due BE—AZ=1H 0.28 767 3
31-90 days past due BHA=t—BAZENATH 1.00 196 2
Q0 days — 1 year past due BENTEE—F 1.91 696 18
Over 1 year past due BE—F U E 100.00 585 585
7,365 616
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Confinved)

198

(al

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The following table provides information about the Group's
exposure to credif risk and ECL for frade receivables as at

31 December 2019:

4. BERERER &)

Bt mER R E (&)
(o) EERRE)
EWE SR (&)

TREAEFEAEENR_T—NF
TZA=t—HREREBEZENRAE
Bz EERBRLEREEBERZEN

Expected Gross Loss

loss rate carrying amount allowance

AHERR HAREE BiRRAE

% HK$'000 HK$'000

% T TET

Current [not past due) mEy (REHR) 0.05 31,077 16
1-30 days past due BME—AE=1A 0.47 1,185 5
31-90 days past due BH=t—RENATH 0.51 4,121 21
90 days — 1 year past due BHANTRZE—F 46.12 5,852 2,699
Over 1 year past due BE—F L 100.00 2,389 2,389
44,624 5,130

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past years. These rafes are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group's view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance in respect of trade

Notes to the Financial Statements

A 365 86 R B i

31 December 2020 —ZE=-_ZEF+_-_A=+—H

B EREE (&)
(o) EERRE)

41, BERBER @)

EWE SR (&)

FR/HAEHEEKRESERFHER

receivables during the year/period is as follows: B e
Period from
Year ended 1 April 2019 1o
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
RIZE—NEF
BZE mA—B=Z
it i —T-NF
+=A=+—H +=ZHA=+—H
LEE B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Lifetime ECL (not creditimpaired) 2HEREEER (BEERE)

At the beginning of the year/period REY],HH) 5,130 18,485
Impairment losses recognised RE R RERBRE 35 2,603
Disposal of subsidiaries HENE AT (4,549) (15,958)
At the end of the year/period REXRHIEK 616 5,130
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinved)

Financial risk factors (Confinved)

(al

200

Credit risk (Continued)
loan receivables

In order fo minimising the credit risk, the management of
money lending business regularly reviews the financial
position and repayment ability of each of the borrowers and
guarantors. Moniforing the ongoing credit risk of each
individual borrower is carried out by reviewing patterns of
repayment of principal and interest of each individual
borrower.

The Group assesses allowance for expected credit losses on
loan receivables individually based on hisforical credit loss
experience of the customers and adjusted for forward-
looking information.

China Healthwise Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinued) 41, BBRAREE @
Financial risk factors (Continved) BEEMEE (&)
(a)  Credit risk (Confinved) () EERK(E)
Lloan receivables [Continued) JEWE (&)
The movements in the loss allowance of loan receivables EWE R BREHEZESHNT

were as follows:

At the beginning of the year Nzl

Transfer to 12m ECL BREZ12EAARHEE
Transfer fo creditimpaired BRZCEERNE
Impairment loss recognised ERRREERE
Impairment loss reversed BORESR

At the end of the year RER
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinved) 41. BB EREE @)
Financial risk factors (Continved) BEEMEEZ)
{a)  Credit risk (Continued) () EERKE)
loan receivables (Continued) JEWE K (&)

202

Period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NERA—BE-Z-NE+_A=+—H5H
lifefime ECL (not lifetime ECL
12mECL  creditimpaired) ~ (creditimpaired) Tofal
AEA AR
FHINH FHRH
12188 BHEERE EHEEHE

BHEEEE  (ERENE) (BEERE) #ar

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEL FEL FEL FEL

At the beginning of the period RE) 675 4,434 - 5,109
Impairment loss recognised BERARERE 1,267 4,793 - 6,060
Impairment loss reversed B EER (467) - - (467)
At the end of the period REIR 1,475 0,227 - 10,702
During the year ended 31 December 2020, loan BE_Z_ZF+_A=+—HILF
receivable with gross carrying amount of HK$67,865,000 E-FRELEAE~NTEtENTARE
became credit-impaired and resulted in a significant ETATHERERDEERE &
increase in loss allowance of HK$36,424,000. BEEBERAESEN =T BN+

BOTET -

During the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December RZE—NFOA—BEZZ—NF
2019, credit risk of loan receivables with gross carrying TZA=T—BAHHE REEER
amount of HK$59,000,000 increased significantly and EThASETHRKERNEER
resulted in a significant increase in loss allowance of M FR L0 - B EUE BB R IR IS AN
HK$4,793,000. NEE+AE=FET -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinued)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)
Lloan receivables (Continued)
The following tables provide information about the Group's

credif risk exposure on loan receivables:

The grading of each loan receivable represents infernal
credif risk assessment upon approval of granting the loan
and ongoing credit risk evaluation by management of
money lending business.

Infernal credit grading

2020 B8
Stage 1 FREER
— Grade | — R
— Grade 2 — ¥R 2
— Grade 3 — 3R 3
— Grade 4 — 44
— Grade 5 )
— Grade 6 — &6
— Grade 7 - &7
— Grade 8 — T8
— Grade 9 — 59
Stage 2 ERER

Stage 3 (Note] — FE=F&E (Hfiz)

s to the Finan

M HRmE

31 December 2020 —E-_FF+_-_HA=+—H

4. BERERER &)

B EREE (&)
(o) EERRE)
JEWE K ()

TREHEBAKEERE KR
ZIEERBZER

BERWEFFEEREXBEREH]
ERBEFRRFEMGEEERREMR
R A B EE R o

=
=

MBS

g

1
i

p=Ill
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinved)

Financial risk factors (Confinved)

(a)  Credit risk (Continued)

204

Loan receivables [Continued)

Infernal credit grading (Confinued)

41. BKREBER @)

Bt mER R E (&)

(o) EERRE)
FEWE K ()
NEMEERF AR (&)

Gross carrying amount {unsecured)

REBE (EIER)

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

Expected 12m (not credit [credit-
loss rate ECL impaired) impaired) Total

ZHEEEE 2EEHEER

12@A%EE BEEEE BREREFE
TEREIE X EEBE WE) FE) mEr
2019 —ET-NF % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% FHET FHT FHET FET

Stage 1 F-EER

— Grade | a0 - - - - -
— Grade 2 SR 2 - - - - -
— Grade 3 43 - - - - -
— Grade 4 A 0.69 213,620 - - 213,620
— Grade 5 ) - - - - -
— Grade 6 6 - - - - -
— Grade 7 7 - - - - -
— Grade 8 T8 - - - - -
— Grade 9 9 - - - - -
Stage 2 EPEER 15.15 - 60,913 - 60,913
Stage 3 (Nofe) BEZMER (K/5E) - B - - -
213,620 60,913 - 274,533

Note: There is evidence indicating the asset is creditimpaired.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinved) 41, BBRAREE @

Financial risk factors (Continved) BEEMEE (&)

(@) Credit risk (Continued) () EERK(E)
Other receivables H it fEW K IE
The directors review the credit quality of other receivables EER2EZHTFHNPEMRARBAR
with reference to financial position and historical repayment TERX B HMERZRENEES
pattern of the counterparties. =
The movements in the loss allowance of other receivables Hin g IB  BiRRmE s T -

were as follows:

At the beginning of the year RER
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR
At the end of the year RER
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinued) 41. BB EREE @)
Financial risk factors (Continved) BEEMEEZ)
{a)  Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERRE)
Other receivables (Continued) H o fEM K TE (48 )

Period from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019
RZE-NERA—BE-Z-NE+_A=+—H5H
lifefime ECL (not lifetime ECL
12mECL  creditimpaired) ~ (creditimpaired) Tofal
AEA AR
FHINH FHRH
12188 BHEERE EHEEHE

BHEEEE  (ERENE) (BEERE) #ar
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL THL THIL
At the beginning and atthe end  FAERFI R EIR
of the period - - 21,956 21,956
As at 31 December 2020, gross carrying amount of other RZZB-_TF+-_A=+—H  Hft
receivables which is creditimpaired was HK$ 1,906,000 ERFBEREAELA—BLTES
[2019: HK$21,956,000). N T E o Z T — A Fo
—F-BATREARTHER)  B2EE
RE o
Bank balances RITAEER
The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from bank HRZXSGHFREEEERNIRT
balances is limited because the counterparties are high- R/ BEHE  AEERREEE
creditquality banks and/or financial institutions, for which R ERIK - A E B ERTT 4SS R
the Group considers fo have low credit risk. NEEERBRAR -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Confinved) BEREBREZE &)
(b)  Liquidity risk b) mBEERER

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
shortterm investment of cash surpluses and the raising of
loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to approval
by the Company’s board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The Group
maintains availability of funding through an adequate
amount of available credit facilities. The directors aim to
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping credit lines
available.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities af the end of reporting period of the Group's non-
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates, or if floafing,
based on rafes current at the end of reporting period) and
the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

31 December 2020

I—

Notes to the Financial Statements
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41, R ERE (@)

AEEABYZEERARESANA
TEE ERSHCBNREEHRKRE
RESEFARNERNREFRK(E
fEEREEE TREABENREKT
RBARSARBESSHE) - AKE
BRRMZAUHBEERERRAS
RHEL BEFEHREAREANPH
EE #REZERT-

TRAJAREITESRHBBERT
SHMRZRBAOHR - DREEHD
ARRERE (BREAOFERFE
s (W 720% B ) I & BRI 1T R =5
BRSNS AR IA R AN 62 18 AT 4 SR A
RZEFHME -

Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than  but less than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years
BRRTR —FR BB-F BBmF
RHEE REREAE REER EIRWmE EIREF
2020 —ECEF HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THERT TET THET THET

Trade and other payables and BT E 583 & E b fE 1
accrued charges REUREER 20,325 20,325 20,325 = =
lease liabilities HEAE 8,315 9,127 6,923 2,204 =
Borrowings BE 20,000 20,000 20,000 - =
Convertible loan notes HRETZE 85,500 95,760 5,130 90,630 -
134,140 145,212 52,378 92,834 -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4] B EBEE &)
Financial risk factors (Continved) BREAKBEZE)

(b)  Liquidity risk (Continued) b RHELEBR(E)
Total More than More than
confractual Within 1 year but 2 years
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than  but less than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years
BRRFH &R BE—F BBMmE
BREE RLRERR FEBX  BEIRME  EIRDF
2019 —T-NEF HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TAT TAT TAT T

Trade and other payables and R B ZER R EMER

accrued charges RIBLARESEBH 117,663 117,663 117,663 - -
Lease liabilities HEaR 18,290 19,355 12,855 5183 1317
Borrowings EE 18,685 18,685 18,685 - -
Convertible loan notes HRRETZE 110,038 127,220 127,220 - -
264,676 282,923 276,423 5,183 1,317

The following table summarises the maturity analysis of bank TEERAEEEZRESERMNIETT
loans with a repayment on demand clause based on EHREEIMERE B
agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan MEELZHBEEAT - SHLER
agreements. The amounts include interest payments TERA LR R B AT
computed using confractual rates. As a result, these amounts B EAESR L EFEEEA S

were greater than the amounts disclosed in the “on

Hreh [ EEK IR T REL SR -
FERASEZT BRI - EERDIR
T RRAIBERITIE BB E KA

demand” time band in the maturity analysis contained in
above table. Taking into account the Group's financial
position, the directors do not consider that it is probable that

the bank will exercise its discretion to demand immediate 1B - ERMEE - AHERTERNT

£ = 2 b = o
repayment. The directors believe that such bank borrowings ARAR S SR 15 8 T8 2 1 5 B 5K B il
will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment fEIE

dates set out in the loan agreements.

Total More than ~ More than

contractual Within 1 yearbut 2 years but

Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years
BRKRFH —FR BE-F BEWE

REE SeRESE FEER EORWE EBIREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER ThR TER TER THR

2020 —EC-EE - - - _ _

2019 —E-NF 18,085 19,934 19,034 - -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed
rafes expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and
fair value inferest rate risk respectively. The interest rates and
terms of repayment of the Group's borrowings are disclosed
in Note 28. The Group currently does not use any derivative
confracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
However, the directors will consider hedging significant
inferest rate exposure should the need arise.

The following fable details the inferest rate profile of the
Group's total debts at the end of reporting period.

At fixed rate REERNE
Converiible loan notes HRRERE
Other loans HinE®

At variable rate BFEAE
Bank loans FITER

Net fixed rate borrowing as o REEFIR 2 (& FHEE
percentage of folal debis EHAEZADNL

P35 4R W PA X

31 December 2020 —E-_FF+_-_HA=+—H

4. BERERER &)

B EREE (&)
() HMERER

AEBZMERREIERBRBE - &
FEMEREEMNEXELZEEDF
SAREEBRERENXAREA
FEMERR - AEREEENMNER
ERIEFRMIE 28 P RE - N&EE A
A SR A E A OT £ A K8 A A &
Rk AT EEERBEEFZEY
HPEAN K@ o

TR IR RS B AR B 7
2 F% o

2019
—T-NF
Effective
interest rate
% HK$'000
BRAI®
% FHET
9 110,038
110,038
8.84 18,685
18,685
128,723
85%
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Confinved)

(c)

(d)

210

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in inferest rafes had occurred at
the end of reporting period and had been applied fo the
variable-rate bank loan in existence at that date. The 50
basis points increase/decrease represents the director’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in inferest rates
over the period until the next end of reporting period.

At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in inferest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would increase/decrease
the Group's loss before income tax by approximately

HK$93,000.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed fo foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect fo United
States dollars ("US$") and Renminbi ("RMB"). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations. The Group currently does not hedge its
foreign exchange exposure.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued 4. HEEBEE @)
Financial risk factors (Continued) BEEEE (&)
(d]  Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (d)  SNERR(E)
The following table details the Group's exposure at the end TRFANAEBRREPRKGFET
of reporting period to currency risk arising from forecast TSN ABBEE 2 e B AN
fransactions or recognised assefs or liabilities denominated EML|EsERREES BB INE
in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity R o

to which they relate.

2019
—ENE

RMB Us$

AR™ e

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHET
Trade and other receivables  [EWNE ZEER R

HiElsa - 33,353

Cash and cash equivalents BeRRLEEY 520 8,315
Trade and other payable BB SERT R

Hib M08 - [14,219)

Borrowings f& - (18,681)

Overall net exposure BERBRAEFE 520 8,768

FESEREZRERAT —E-TER 211



Notes to the Financial Statements
MR RMEE

31 December 2020

—E-EF+_A=+—H

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(d)

212

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
Group's loss for the year/period in response fo reasonably
possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the

4. BERRER &)
BSEMEZF)
d  HNERE ()

TRERAEBHARER, BEEE
R A 3 A 45 R B AL 2
SEE A BT BB IR WO

Group has significant exposure at the end of reporting I
period.
2020 2019
ZEC-Ef “ENF
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) [decrease] (decrease]
in foreign in loss in foreign in loss
exchange rates for the period exchange rates for the year
HNEER rHEER SNEER TERER
E#/(F&) 2,/ (H) R/ (F8) m/(Rb)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
RMB AR 5% 31 5% (26)
(5%) 31) 15% 2%
Us$ e 5% - 5% (438)
(5%) - 15% 438

The sensitivity analysis has been defermined assuming that
the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the
end of reporting period and had been applied to each of
the group entities’ foreign currency denominated monetary
items in existence at that dafe, and that all other variables,
remain consfant.

The stated changes represent the directors’ assessment of
reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rafes over
the period until the end of next annual reporting period. In
this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between
HK$ and US$ would be materially unaffected by any
changes in movement in value of US$ against HK$. Results
of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an
aggregation of the effects on each of the group entfities’
profit or loss for the period.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continved) BEEBREE &)
le]  Equity price risk le) REAREBRERER

The Group is exposed fo equity price risk arising from listed
equity securities classified as financial assets at FVTPL.

The Group manages its equity price risk by regularly
moniforing equity portfolio fo address any portfolio issues
prompily and spreading price risk exposure by investing a
number of listed equity securities.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the
exposure fo equity price risk af the reporting date. As af 31
December 2020 if the prices of the listed equity securities in
Hong Kong with quoted market price held by the Group
had been 15% (2019: 15%) higher/lower, with all other
variables remain constant, the Group's loss for the year
would have increased/decreased by HK$15,763,000
(2019: HK$20,787,000). Unlisted equity securities are
excluded from sensitivity analysis as the directors consider
the exposure fo equity price risk arising from unlisted equity
securifies is insignificant.

42. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assefs and financial
liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are

categorised as follows:

31 December 2020

I—
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41, R ERE (@)

AEEmE RO RAEBRRRK A DE
REAFEFABRENEHEEN L
MRAFE R ©

AEEEBEHERBRAES - A
REEFNASHESE  LBEBKREZE
ERBRABSDBERER - FEAE
EEBRAERRR -

BREREDMERBERS B HORAE
BRARBRMEE R_TE-_ZTF+=-A
—+—H MAEEMREEAETS®
BRES LMRAESHESR LR T
BKEH P2 TRE(ZE—AF - EBHZ
TH) T EHMEERIFTIENE
BT AREESNFAREEBBIEIN R
LP—FHEEE+AE=ZTHEL(=Z
—hE  —FEE+N\BLTHEL) -
BEEDS T T EIEIE ETIRAE
RRAEERAIELTRABSFEL
R AERRRIT NEK -

2. #ERETHNEREERES®ME
BHE
AEER—ZE_TF+-_A=+—HERZ
cMEENSRABBEZRAENSBENT

2020 2019
—E_EF —FE-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets SMEE
Financial assefs at amortised cost HEEK AT EZ S RMEE
lincluding cash and cash equivalents) (BIERSRESEEY) 269,951 365,919
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFAEG 2REE 107,699 138,581
377,650 504,500
Financial liabilities SRIBE
Financial liabilities measured at DEHEKATECCRIBE
amortised cost 134,140 264,676
FETEREERERAT —T-TFR 213
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42. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 42 BERESNEREERSTME
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (Continued) BHE )
Fair value of the Group's financial instruments that are AEERAFTEKLEMTENSMIA
measured at fair value on a recurring basis AFE
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments TEREHIANFLELES 27T BN TE
carried af fair value by level of fair value hierarchy: B D -
level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for E—0: HELESBENEIRTESR Y
identical assefs or liabilities; WE CGRECHER)
level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within E—F BE—RFOEREIREES
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, BETHEZE(EMER) (AN
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly |i.e. BEERERFAEISE: R
derived from prices); and
level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on = BAES BB A ERTIEY
observable market dafa (unobservable inputs). (AT RS 8 o
2020
—BoRF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ B B=M Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET FHET THET
Financial assefs at FVTPL ZRFEFFABREZ
— listed equity securities — L IRAES 105,088 - - 105,088
— unlisted equity securities — EEMERAES - - 2,611 2,611
105,088 - 2,611 107,699
2019
—T-NF
level 1 level 2 level 3 Total
E—R FER E=R mEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FETT FHETT
Financial assefs at FVTPL BAFESABERZ
— listed equity securities — ETRARES 138,581 - - 138,581
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42. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of financial instruments, the Group uses
market observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level
1 inputs are not available, the Group engages independent
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The Group work closely
with the independent qualified valuers fo establish the appropriate
valuation fechniques and inputs.

Fair values of listed equity securities have been determined by
reference fo their quoted market closing prices af the end of the
reporting period.

Fair value of unlisted equity securities is determined based on
valuation using assetbased approach. Fair value of individual
business assets less liabilities of the investment company was
considered fo arrive the fair value of the Group's equily inferests in
the investee company. The significant input is the net asset value
of the investee company. The net assef value is positively
correlated fo the fair value measurement of the unlisted equity
securifies.

31 December 2020

42.

I—
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BREREITHNEREERSRE
BEE )

FEERAFEEEMHITENEMIA
DFE(E)

EfHSRTANATES  FEEESE

RS ABREE - WEEINEE —RH
B AEESZRBEISERMMEMETH

B ARERBYAERMGEMBEZAE
AR B E M A ERTRBAE -

TR AFESHRAFENR2EERNRS
sy mBET -

HIR

FELTRABFNORFENAEERERT
HEEEE - Bt RREQATRNERNEBE
ERAENRFERS Hj$’§lﬁ’\?ﬁ?x§
AIREN LA TE - BRBABR/KIKRER
H’]ﬁ%@ﬁ BEFEEIF EMRAE #E’]
:F{En-l—gﬁkﬂ':tto

The following table presents the changes in fair value of financial TRENSEAEE-RIGHNERMEEAT
assets which are classified as Level 3 valuation: BEEE)

HK$'000

FET

1 January 2020 R-FB-_FF—H— El -
Investment in unlisted equity securities WERIE TR 8,500

Fair value loss on financial assets at FVTPL BATESABENESREEANTLEER (5,889)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEF+=-HA=+—H 2,611

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and the period from
1 April 2019 to 31 December 2019, there was no fransfer

between Level 1 and 2, or transfer into or out of Level 3.

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
carried at amortised cost were not materially different from their

fair value at 31 December 2020 and 2019

HER

Eﬁzi E_TFEFT_A=+t—BLEFEERR
—NEFOA-RE-_T-AF+_-A
_+ B THRAEFS - REE K ZHE

WER - T FEEARELE=FNBER -

FEENTHEERSHEBENAFE
W ARFEEEMTE

NR_E—EFR_F—NF+_A=+—
B DEERNATRNEREERSREE
FEMEEEANTFTETEEAEZR -
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43. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform
with the current year's presentation and the disclosure requirements
in respect of the discontinued operation sef out in nofe 9(b).

44. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statfements were approved and authorised for issue

by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2021.
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